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IMPACT OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS ON
CALIFORNIA'S CENTRAL VALLEY

MONDAY, APRIL 1, 1996

House of Representatives,
Subcommittee on National Economic Growth,
Natural Resources, and Regulatory Affairs,
Committee on Government Reform and Oversight

Mondesto, CA.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 1:41 p.m., in the
Red Lion Hotel, 1150 Ninth Street, Modesto, CA, Hon. David
Mcintosh (chairman of the subcommittee) presiding.

Present: Representatives Mcintosh and Condit.
Staff present: Mildred Webber, staff director; Karen Barnes, pro-

fessional staff member; David White, clerk; and Liza Mientus, mi-
nority professional staff member.
Mr. McIntosh. Welcome to today's hearing of the Subcommittee

on National Economic Growth, Natural Resources, and Regulatory
Affairs. Thank you for coming today to discuss an extraordinarily
important issue that many in Washington are only now beginning
to waken to and realize we need to cut back on the tangled web
of red tape that stifles small businesses, hurts job creation and con-
sumers in this country.

It is great to be here in Modesto and I want to thank Gary
Condit and thank his staff in the District for helping us put on this

field hearing.
There is a bipartisan effort in this Congress to put some common

sense back into our regulatory process. Gary is a real leader in

Washington. Those of us who are in the freshman class on the Re-
publican side have come over and talked to him to say "what do
you think about this?" "How can we move forward in this area?"
His work with us shows potential to put aside partisanship to have
real changes to make life better for real Americans. So I want to

thank you, Gary, for helping us come here today.
Mr. Condit. I am sorry, you are going to have to repeat all that

again. [Laughter.]
Mr. McIntosh. They waited until I got all the flattering things

through and then turned on the microphones.
This subcommittee is a new subcommittee in this Congress. The

staff refers to us, because it has got a long name, as the committee
to cut the crap. [Laughter.]
And we view as our effort to go through a lot of these regulations

and find out where they do not make sense, where they are costing
us jobs and where we can do a better job of regulating to protect
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the environment, health and safety. We have got a long way to go,

but we have already started to have an impact.
The statistics have come out about last year, 1995, our first year

in business, and we had 10 percent fewer new regulations in Wash-
ington because of that pressure and that oversight. But as I say,

that is only a beginning and we do have a long way to go in order
to cut back on unnecessary regulations.

One of the things that we need to do is make sure that Washing-
ton starts getting off of our backs and back on our sides. And in

order to do that, I think we need to start listening to Americans
about problems in our regulatory systems. And that is one of the
reasons why I was delighted to have this field hearing. It is the
14th that we have had so far for this subcommittee. We have been
able to learn about new problems and more about how these prob-

lems affect real people by getting outside of Washington and taking
testimony from citizens, which then we take back with us and
make part of the official record of this subcommittee.
And I wanted to share with you one of the things we heard be-

cause I think it is telling about some of the problems that we have
seen in our regulatory process. We heard testimony from a farmer
from Indiana, my home State, her name is Kay Whitehead and she
owns a family farm that produces pork products. Kay pointed out
that she has to comply with 75 different handbooks of regulation

just on their grain-producing side of their business and that there

were over 1,000 regulatory changes last year that she had to keep
up with. And she said even that is manageable but so often she
finds that there are conflicting and burdensome regulations that

she just cannot possibly comply with.

And she gave us one example where the Soil and Conservation
Service, the Indiana Division of the Department of Agriculture Soil

and Conservation Service, had come in and told her that when she
disposed of the manure from her pork producing process, that she
could not till it into the soil, because they were worried that there

would be additional runoff and the soil would run into the streams.

So she thought that is OK, we can spread it on top and let it fer-

tilize the ground that way, but then the local EPA agency, IDEM
as it is called in Indiana, came by and said, no, no, Kay, you have
to till it into your soil because we are worried about the manure
running off and causing a pollution problem in our streams.
Now, Kay said that she actually did not care which way they

came out on that regulation, but she knew that no matter what she
did, she would be violating one agency's rule. She did point out in

our hearing that her neighbors had a strong preference for her
plowing it into the soil. [Laughter.]
But this subcommittee will take back the testimony we hear

today and make it part of our official records. It will become part

of our oversight of the agencies and we will be bringing up dif-

ferent agency heads and asking them about these regulations, ask-

ing them why they are doing it and what their plans are to make
more common sense in their programs.
Last week, we made a historic step forward, a small step, but

historic one, in the regulatory relief process. As part of the bill to

extend the debt limit, we passed the first regulatory relief legisla-

tion since 1980. And it did two things—one, it required an addi-



tional review so that small businesses would not be penalized by
regulations and gave small businesses the right to go to court if the
agencies ignored that law, which they have been doing for the last

14 years. The second was to require that these regulations now
come back to Congress and that we will have to start voting on
these rules and regulations, and you cannot have Members of Con-
gress and Senators come back to you and say oh, well, we did not
pass that, some agency put that regulation in effect. We are now
going to have to be responsible for those.

Now it is not everjrthing, and there is a lot we still have to do
on the agenda. I am going to continue to work with Gary to make
sure that we pass a regulatory relief bill that uses market-based
approaches, cost/benefit analysis and good science when we write
regulations. We are going to work for legislation to protect private

property rights.

Gary has taken the lead, along with some other Members on leg-

islation that will protect us from the Endangered Species Act and
put some common sense into that proposal.

And then we have got a bill that our committee had worked on
to say let us sunset some of these old regulations. After 7 years we
can take a look at them, if they do not make sense or the tech-

nology has changed or they are not working the way they should,

we will let the regulation expire and have the agency come up with
a new program—common sense approach. So much of a good idea

that by the time it made it to the House floor, they had taken the
sunset out of our sunset bill and said we will look at these regula-
tions after 7 years, but we want to keep them all on the books. And
we decided that does not cut the mustard and let us take that back
next time with the full bill, so that we can get some real Changes.

Well, 1994 was a crossroads in this country where the people
sent a mandate to change the way Washington does business, to

start getting Government off of our backs and back on our sides.

We have been listening to that mandate and this new Subcommit-
tee on Regulatory Affairs has been working very hard to implement
that.

I appreciate you coming today to give us your input and Gary
and I both want to reassure you that we will not give up on this

effort, we will continue to push, change will come, and we will con-

tinue to work on these bills this year and next year when we get

another mandate from the people, and once again, I think we will

get to a situation where Americans will not laugh when somebody
says, "I am here from the government and I am here to help you."

So that is our mission and what we are here to do today. Let me
now turn to Gary and see if you have any opening remarks and we
will then start hearing from our witnesses.
Mr. CONDIT. First of all, David, let me thank the subcommittee

for coming to Modesto today and I would like to thank you, David
Mcintosh, for bringing the subcommittee to the Central Valley.

For those of you in the audience. Congressman Mcintosh, who
hails from Indiana, is one of the leaders in the Congress of regu-
latory reform and he has demonstrated from day one when he ar-

rived there his interest in regulatory reform, and has fought the
good battle. We have not always been successful but we continue
to fight it and we will be back at it when we get back after this



break and hopefully if it takes us into next year, we will do that
as well.

The fact that Modesto was selected as the site of the hearing
demonstrates the subcommittee's understanding of the tremendous
impact of the Federal regulatory system upon the Central Valley.
Today, we will be hearing firsthand from those most heavily im-

pacted by the Federal regulatory process. We will hear how regula-
tions, though perhaps well-intended at their inception, have been
implemented in a fashion that defies logic and to some extent com-
mon sense.

We will hear how farmers wishing to avoid devastation of future
floods have been held up by bureaucrats from Sacramento to Wash-
ington, DC. We will hear how Fish and Wildlife Service has twisted
the definition of harming endangered species to include develop-
ment in an area that is outside kit fox habitat because the develop-
ment may lead to future development, which may in turn have an
impact on the kit fox habitat.

We will hear how agricultural food processors, seeking to expand
their operation have been penalized by air districts for poor air

quality caused by smoke, smog blown over from the Bay Area, de-
spite the fact that equipment used in these expansions is state-of-

the-art and highly efficient.

The hearing will confirm what this subcommittee has been hear-
ing throughout the Nation: This Congress needs to eliminate over-
burdensome and counterproductive regulation; reduce the size of
government; make government more responsive and efficient; and,
bring common sense into the regulatory system.
The House has heard the message loud and clear. Major reforms

have passed the House with bipartisan support, as my colleague
has mentioned—risk assessment, cost/benefit analysis, regulatory
sunset and placing a moratorium on new Federal regulations.
We still have a long way to go, particularly in the Senate where

these proposals are stalled. We need to keep the pressure on the
Congress to continue to move forward on all these measures.

I look forward to this hearing, to hear from the witnesses, many
of them that I know very well and I know their cases very well be-
cause we have tried in many ways to be of assistance and helpful
to them.
Once again, I would like to thank you, David, for being here. I

would like to thank the staff that you brought for being here and
we are delighted that you are in Modesto, and we look forward to

the outcome of this hearing once we get back and put all the infor-

mation together.

As you can see on each end of the table, the apricot lady has
been here. She is a little bit like the Easter bunny, she brings choc-
olate covered apricots and other commodities that come from the
Central Valley, so we will keep our energy level up.
But thank you very much for being here, I appreciate it.

[The prepared statement of Hon. Gary Condit follows:]
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Mr. Chairman,

I would like to welcome the House Government Reform and Oversight

Subcommittee on National Economic Growth, Natural Resources and

Regulatory Affairs to the Central Valley of California. I would

also like to take this opportunity to thank the Chairman of the

Subcommittee, Mr. David Mcintosh, for bringing the subcommittee

to the 18th District of California.

That fact that Modesto was selected as the site of this hearing

demonstrates the Subcommittee's understanding of the tremendous

impact that the federal regulatory system has upon the people of

California's Central Valley. The impact of federal regulations

is particularly acute in the Central Valley, where a boom in

S STATIONERY PRINTED ON PAPER MADE OF



growth has placed additional pressure upon our already limited

natural resources, particularly water and prime agricultural

land.

Today we will be hearing first-hand from those in the Central

Valley who are acutely impacted by the federal regulatory

process. We will hear how regulations, though perhaps well

intended at their inception, have been implemented in a fashion

that defies logic and common sense.

We will hear how local farmers who got flooded out in 1995,

wishing to clear debris and sediment from creek beds in order to

avoid the devastation of future floods, have been held up by

federal regulators from Sacramento to Washington, D.C.

We will hear how the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service has twisted

the definition of "harming endangered species" to include an

approved development of factory outlets in an area that is

outside the endangered San Joaquin kit fox habitat. The

Service's twisted reasoning is that the development may lead to

future development, and the cumulative affect of this unknown and

unplanned development may have an impact upon the kit fox's

habitat!

We will hear how agricultural food processors, seeking to expand

their operations in order to compete in the worldwide export

market, have been penalized by air districts for poor air quality



caused by smog blown over from the Bay Area, despite the fact

that equipment used in these expansions is state of the art and

highly efficient.

I believe that this hearing will confirm what this subcommittee

has been hearing throughout the nation:

- We need to eliminate overburdensome and

counterproductive regulations;

- We need to reduce the size of government;

- We need to make government more responsive and

efficient;

- We need to bring common sense into the regulatory

system.

Fortunately, the House of Representatives has heard this message

loud and clear. Major reforms-- risk assessment/cost benefit

analysis, the Regulatory Sunset Act and placing a moratorium on

new federal regulations— have passed the House of

Representatives with bi-partisan support.

Unfortunately, these proposals still have a long way to go,

particularly in the Senate where most of them are stalled. It is

my hope that today's hearing will help to keep the pressure on



the Congress to continue to move forward on these measures.

I look forward to hearing from the witnesses of real world

examples of the need to bring common sense intq. our federal

regulatory system.

Again, I would like to thank the Chairman for his commitment to

these issues, and especially for coming to Modesto to hear

directly from those impacted by federal regulations.

Thank you.



Mr. McIntosh. Thank you, Gary. Thank you for providing the
apricots, that is great.

Let us now call forward the first panel of witnesses: Mr. Shel
Thompson, Mr. Ron West, and Mr. Robert Rucker. If you would
please come forward.
For the benefit of the audience and the witnesses, let me tell you

how we are going to be having this session today. We have got four
panels of witnesses, we are asking each of them to confine their re-

marks today to about 5 minutes. They have generally prepared
very thorough written testimony and what I would ask you gentle-

men to do is summarize that for me. And to the extent you feel

comfortable doing it, try not to read from the testimony but just ex-

press in your own words what it is. The written testimony will be
put into the record as the official testimony for you.
David White, who is with our subcommittee, will be flashing up

a reminder to you and to me as we get closer to the 5-minute mark.
He is the enforcer on the clock for us.

One of the reasons that we unfortunately have to do that is that
we have a lot of people who have asked to talk during what we call

the open microphone period, where anyone in the audience can
come and testify, and that will be after we have gone through the
fourth panel. I am sorry to make folks wait, but I do want to give
people an opportunity at that time to be heard. And I will stay for

as much of that as I can, I may have to catch a flight at the end
of the day to move to another hearing up in Seattle, but I think
we should have enough time to handle all that today.
Mr. CONDIT. And I will stay.

Mr. McIntosh. Great.
Let me ask each of you to please rise. The committee chairman,

Mr. Clinger, has asked that we swear in all of our witnesses, so

there does not appear to be any favoritism when we swear in folks

back in Washington.
[Witnesses sworn.]
Mr. McIntosh. Thank you very much. Let the record show that

each of the witnesses answered in the affirmative.

Our first witness today is Mr. Shel Thompson, president of Char-
ter Mortgage. Shel, you have got a very compelling example of the
horrible costs of regulation. Why do I not let you just lead off and
tell us about what happened to you.

STATEMENTS OF SHEL THOMPSON, PRESIDENT, CHARTER
MORTGAGE; RON WEST, RON WEST CONSULTING; AND ROB-
ERT RUCKER, PRESIDENT, RUCKER CONSTRUCTION
Mr. Thompson. I have been involved in real estate and real es-

tate lending since 1970. I am also an environmentalist. I was presi-

dent of GOAL, which is a local environmental group, I was presi-

dent back in 1978. My particular points of interest were land use
and aesthetics.

Since that time, over the years, and not just because my ox has
been gored during the last couple of years, I have become increas-

ingly disillusioned with the ways that the environmental laws and
the EPA is being used, not for the stated purpose of protection of
clean air and clean water, but strictly to legislate their own agen-
das and keep their own bureaucracy in action.
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There is a subdivision called Mesa de Oro in Sutter Creek, CA.
My company was the lender on the subdivision and subsequently,
due to a variety of things, we got it back and I was forced to deal
with the subdivision.

The subdivision was built on mine tailings from the Central Eu-
reka Mine. The Mother Lode is an area 125 miles long and 1 mile
wide, which is called the arsenic belt because wherever you find ar-

senic, you also find gold. All of that area is arsenic.

Our subdivision was tested by the county, it passed the EIR and
all the other regulatory things. It had elevated levels of arsenic and
the county suggested that we put a foot of topsoil over all the ex-

posed parts in the subdivision and they said go ahead and build,

which we did.

After we had built about 15 houses, the State EPA walked in and
said no, this is no good, arsenic is a known carcinogenic and you
are out of business. We are broke, we are absolutely broke. We
have been stopped for 2 years unnecessarily over an issue that they
freely admit they will never be able to prove whether arsenic or
mine tailings is harmful to people or not.

The first meeting that I attended with the State EPA, I said OK,
let us assume that the soil is bad. The county already said it is

bad, everyone in the Mother Lode knows it is bad, that does not
mean anyone is going to eat it, but let us just assume it is very,

very bad. Let us solve the problem, let us find out if it is actually
detrimental to people. Let us do tests on people, let us do hair,

urine, skin tests. They said no, you cannot do that because you can-
not force people to comply. I said well, let us do it with volunteers.

No, we do not want to do that. Let us do plant tests, let us test

the vegetation. No, you cannot do that because at certain times of

the year, plants pull more than at other times of the year. I said
well this is spring time, you will get your worst reading possible.

No, we are not going to do that. Let us go back and test in the coro-

ner's office, let us look at the record for the last 150 years since

these mine tailings have been in. Let us find out if there have been
elevated levels of cancer. No, you cannot do that unless there is at

least 100,000 people. Everjrthing they rejected, including covering
it up with cement. They wanted to test.

Now during the last 2 years, they have tested and tested. They
have never addressed the issue of whether or not it is harmful. All

they have looked for is is there elevated levels of arsenic. We al-

ready knew that.

To make a long, long story short, I think what needs to be—oh,

finally, and incidentally, my lawyer told me all the way along what
would happen. He was right in every case. He told me that when
the EPA runs out of money, they are going to do this; when they
do this, they are going to do that. Finally, they found a deep pocket
in Allied Signal, which is a $7 billion corporation. They rejoiced at

that point. This project has cost millions to date, somewhere be-

tween $3 million and $6 million. They have never admitted along
the way how much they were spending.

Finally, their way to solve the whole problem was to put 2 feet

of topsoil instead of 1 foot. I said well, OK, that is all right, but
how come you do not put 2 feet of topsoil on the houses where peo-

ple are living in our subdivision. Answer was they do not want it.
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The bottom line is if 2 feet is the magic number and 1 foot, as we
were told to do, is not, then why are the people who live there 24
hours a day not subjected to something dangerous.
The whole thing has been a farce. They knew where they wanted

to go at the beginning, they wanted to spend massive amounts of
money. They are arrogant, they have put everyone up there out of
business and they have caused panic among the people. There are
lawsuits all over the place that solve nothing, it has done nothing
and I wish I had a lot more time to get into this more thoroughly.
Mr. McIntosh. Actually, we will be able to come back to you in

the questioning period because there are several things I would
like to talk with you about then.
Thank you very much for coming forward and putting that into

the record.

Mr. West.
Mr. West. Do you want me next or do you want Bob?
Mr. McIntosh. Go ahead, Ron.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Thompson follows:]
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March 28, 1996

TO: CONGRESSMAN GARY GONDII
and Staff

Gentlemen:

This letter shall outline the history and the handling of events by the EPA at the Mesa

de Ore subdivision. Sutter Creek, California.

Obviously, the facts and reasoning in this document are from my personal perspective

and are therefore open to scrutiny by the opposing side which I welcome. I inttend

herein to be as concise and factual as possible. Unlike almost anyone else involved. I

have been subjected to these events from the beginning and I, alone to date, have

been totally vanquished economically and effectively by an outrageous process that

serves no one in a positive manner.

My company, Charter Mortgage, financed the improvements at the subdivision via

private investor deeds of trust. The project was approved by all state and local

entjtities according to the usual procedures which included Environmental Impact

Review. When passed, the developers took reservations from prospective buyers and

quickly had all 43 lots reserved. These lots were to sell for approximately $45,000

each.

At that point, a neighbor who had objected to the project from the beginning asked the

county to test for arsenic which was not by law included in the E.I.R. at that time. She

had apparently read a news article which correctly stated that arsenic is common
throughout the Mother Lode, a 1 20 mile band, running from Grass Valley, south to

Mariposa. The band is typically over a mile wide and is host to large deposits of gold

and arsenic which are geologically compatible. In fact, thousands of test holes were

dug thoughout the Mother Lode seeking high concentrations of arsenic because there.

Is also found gold. For this reason, the nick name for the Mother Lode has always

been the "Arsenic Belt." Everyone living there resides on elevated levels of arsenic
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and logic would suggest that their health, mortality rates, and body tissue readings

would differ drastically from people not living around arsenic, if in fact there was a
problem.

The county complied with the request from the neighbor to test for arsenic despite the

fact that it was not a legal requirement at the time, and despite the fact that the

subdivison had already been approved and lots spoken for.

Tests showed elevated levels of arsenic. Various governing agencies tested and
pondered for nine months and ultimately decided that the arsenic had always been
there. It was almost certainly arsenic which is not bio available, and there was no
reasonable cause to deviate from the original project except to have the developer

cover all exposed areas (the yards not covered by cement or structure) with one foot of

top soil. In addition, there was a disclosure added to the title report which must be
signed and read by purchasers stating that the site had arsenic and other heavy

metals and that the test results were on file with the County.

During this nine month period, from early 1990 to 1991. a severe real estate recession

began. Due to the recession, retired people for whom the project was designated,

virtually stopped migrating as the values of their homes in metropolitan areas

plummeted. Others died, bought alternative housing or lost interest during the nine

month investigation. Only four of the 43 lots closed escrow, eventually forcing the

developers into insolvency. They deeded the project to Charter Mortgage subject to

the investors deeds of trust.

Because the property was deeded in bulk (more than four lots to a single entity) the

Department of Real Estate insisted on an amended public report, a lengthy and
expensive process. Thirteen months later, the project was identteally approved except

for a reduction in homeowner fees for each lot in the sum of less than $20 per month.

The thlrtoon month period cost Charter Mortage, of which I am the sole owner, more
than $125,000 in interest payments, taxes and professional fees.

Finally, the project was ready to go in Novemt>er 1993. By this time, tfie recession

was worse and no bank would loan regardless of collateral on a 'speculative project.'

I personally arranged for funds to build ten houses which cost more than $700,000.

Private investors took equity positions, trades were made, and I borrowed against real

estate and note assets. I also sold my house to finance construction. We built

inexpensive houses selling in the $100,000 - $115,000 range which was considerably

below Sutter Creek comparables. The program worked in that 17 sales were
generated from the ten houses actually built. At the rate of construction and sale, the

project would have been completed by September 1994. thereby returning investors

their capital, making my company whole again, generating county and city revenue

and providing a total of 43 new homes.

In April, we were visted by Cal Osha and California EPA. They forced a shutdown

based on the same tests that the County had done approving the project. At that

-2-
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point, the circus began.

The first two meetings i attended were closed door sessions at the Sacramento Office

of the California EPA. A preview of the siege to come revealed as was the arrogance

and structure of the EPA.

The EPA officials told me, among other things the unsettling news that:

1 . "We bankrupt people*

2. "We have unlimited powers to test for whatever and wherever."

3. "We can't give any estimate as to cost.

4. You will pay.

5. So long as there is a chance that any public health issue is un-

resolved, we will be there.

I immediately suggested that we already knew by the County's test there was elevated

levels of arsenic in the soil. The important thing to learn. If there was a question, would

be if any effects on humans, plants, or animals were detrimental.

I suggested:

1

.

Do hair, urine and tissue test on all people who had ever come in contact

with our project

This was rejected because they said arsenic leaves the body in 48 hours plus

no one can be required to t>e tested (not even the ones who originally lodged the

complaint). Not disuaded by this obvious denial of the right to cross examine the

accuser. I suggested we invite people to t>e tested voluntarily. Answer - no.

2. Do tests on plants, trees, etc. as well as plant test vegetable gardents on site

and test for arsenic. The EPA rejected this approach because during certain seasons

plants pull more from the soil than at other times. I said, 'great were in Spring and the

worst possible readings will be available.' This was rejected.

3. Do tests on gophers, insects, and other animals living on the site. That was
rejected t>ecause animals don't have the same digestive tract as humans. If that were

true, no animal tests would ever be valid. No dice.

4. t suggested doing historical surveys at the coroners office to chart the

incidence of area cancers and specific disease and mortality rates since 1849. This

was rejected tjecause they said population tests were only valid with concentrations of

100,000 people or more.

-3-
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It was obvious that these people were more interested in creating questions than
answers. So. I suggested a more radical approach. I said, "Let's assume that the dirt

is 100% toxic. Instead of testing an endless proposition, why don't we cover it with

cement and build a mobile home park?"

Mr. Wolfpenden of EPA thought a moment and said that while intesting . how could

one know if arsenic could not seep through cement?

I pointed out that their approach admitted that no known problem existed, admitted that

hard data could never be concllusive and that subsequent waves of law suits would
result. The EPA group was apologetic but confident that the "circle of law" would
eventually resolve all problems.

The EPA was correct in that the process did bankrupt me and the circle of law would
get everyone involved. I have been named in approximately ten class action suits that

include pratically everyone whoever drove by the property. I don't bother to answer
any of these because subsequent to that, the United States EPA sent me a letter

threatening to fine me $25,000 per day until I cleaned up the land. At those prices, I

could soon start my own county.

For months, the State EPA tested, held meetings and stirred up the public. At each
public meeting. I asked the same question which was. "In that you could not estimate a
cost at the beginning, how much have you spent to date?"

They never could or would answer that although I had been told in the first meeting

that their staff bills at $125 per hour regardless of the function. This means that public

meetings with 8 EPA people cost $1000 per hour. Their coordinator billed at $20,000
per month. Presumably, they could have kept a running tally on their costs but either

they did not know or would not divulge.

Throughout this period, EPA failed to address the key issue. Was this for available

arsenic or not?

At the time. I had an attorney who told me that California EPA would test until they ran

out of money. They would then say the project was so serious that the Federal EPA
must l>e brought in. Tt)e Federal EPA would ultimately estimate a cleanup cost of $2
million which is coincidentally the sum they are authorized to spend without

congressional approval.

Everything happened exactly as my lawyer predicted, with one exception. A deep
pocket potentially responsible party (P.R.P.) was located to the jubulant celebration of

the EPA staff.

-4-
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Mesa de Oro is located on mine tailings deposited from the shaft of the Central Eureka
Gold Mine. The last mining entity was Pacific Industries which stopped mining in the

1950's and sold the property In the 1960's. In the 1970's, the corporation was sold to

Allied Signal, a $7 billion corporation. Although Allied bought Pacific Industries years

after the Mesa de Oro site was sold, and although Allied certainly had nothing to do
with the land in any way, nor had they ever heard of it, they were named a responsible

party by Federal EPA Although the distribution of liability in the "In for a dollar, in for a
mill." concept helps me personally, it is patently wrong.

During the test conducted by both State and Federal EPA. the unanswered question of

whether health risks to the public actually existed was continually ignored.

Congressman Ooolittle demanded via letter dated, January 27, 1995 that the species

of arsenic be determined. California EPA had repeatedly said these tests were for the

purpose of speciation. Federal EPA finally conducted such tests which indicated

arsenic pyrite deposits and then stated their agency does not distinguish between
types of arsenic.

Independent chemists, such as Don DeVries and geologists such as George
Wheeldon and Dr. Lee Scholls, have analyzed the data provided by both California

and Federal EPA and have shown that the arsenic from this site is:

1. Not water soluable

2. Not bio available

3. Not migratory

EPA representatives have admitted in private meeting, public forums and publications,

such as Time magazine (September 25, 1995, page 36) thay they do not now know,

nor will they ever conclusively say that arsenic in mine tailings is a health hazard.

However, they hold up the all inclusive allegory of thought provoking doubt that In

matters of public heath no amount of caution is unreasonable.

People are people and agencies are agencies. Most of the EPA functionaries are civil

and profess concern and sympathy. Some, however, are incrediably insensitive and
authoritatively obstinate. My personal favorite encounters to date have been the

correspondence from the "command posT (what is this a Green Beret movie?) and the

statement from EPA attorney Rabino that I was "still on the governments radar screen."

I did not realize that my government used such sop^isticated articles of surveillance

but it is informative to know the truth.

The discovery of a well endowed meal ticket such as Allied Signal prompted renewed

frenzy by EPA agents of all description. Quickly the estimate of cleanup sky rocketed

from $2 million to $4 million.

-5-
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In addition, the mood of the Sutter Creek neighbors changed markedly with the

prospects of pain and suffering compensations from a huge corporation. The first

public meeting (all of which Is on record some place) featured genuine anger and
disgust by practically everyone. They all know that arsenic exists, no one has
apparently suffered from it and their property values and life styles were threatened.

By the second public hearing a few weeks later, public opinion shifted. Obviously the

attorneys (all of whom are from San Jose, San Francisco and other non local areas)

relayed the wisdom to everyone to go along with the gag and collect some money. I

have been told personally by several former friends in Sutter Creek that I shouldnl be
offended, they are just looking out for number I. No problem, the EPA endorses this

kind of thinking and irresponsible pursuit of unearned increment. The cancer
unleashed by the legal system, paradises and bankrupts individuals and ultimately

makes commerce and societal interaction impossible.

The months dragged on. My attorney, who by this time had become a friend rather

than a paid consultant because I couldn't compensate him anymore, told me things

would wrap up by the end of 1995 due to the uncertainly of EPA's further funding by

the Congress. Once again he was right.

In the summer of 1995. solutions were determined via several meetings between all

the ("P.R.P's) and the EPA. I and others made It clear that we had no money to play

with and left. Presumably I am still on their radar sceen.

The solutions included:

1 . Dig up the back yards of the subdivision down hill from Mesa de Oro and
replace all dirt. Haul the dirt across the freeway to the Allen Ranch and pile it up.

dirt.

2. Put plastic honey comb like material on the Mesa de Oro slopes and fill with

3. Cover all exposed tots at Mesa de Oro with 2 feet of top soil.

These mitigation measures are interesting in that they expose the fact that the true

intent of EPA activity had nothing to do with public health. Please consider:

1

.

The downhill subdivision had lower readings of arsenic than Mesa de Oro.

Assuming it is dangerous (which of course has never been proven or even
addressed), it seems strange to decapsulate a posion, spread it through the air, haul it

across the street and stack it up. Now spaceship earth has the dreaded soil in two
places Instead of one.

2. The stope previously was stabilized with vegetation, sprinkler system and top

soil. The honey comb approach while achieving the real goal of spending barrels of

-6-
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cash (day laborers earr^od $27 per hour prevailing wage plus time and a half

overtime) failed to stabilize the hill and suffered several washouts during the rains.

3. This Is thft most absolute outrage. If the County's requirement that one loot

of top soil over exposed areas on the lots was inadequate, and if two feet is the magic

number for public hedth, then It seems that two feet should be required on all lots.

Wrong again. No additional top soil was required or placed by EPA in the yards of

people residing on the mesa. When asked why not, Commander Shipley said the

people didn't want their yards disrupted.

\jOQ\c tells us that if one foot of dirt is enough for those who live in ilie mesa 24 hours

per day. and it that one foot was County mandated and put there by the developer, the

original approved plan was safe and a permanent solution.

One foot is either safe or It Is not. it's either a public health issue or not. The EPA
solution reveals the complete unnecessary nature of this exercise which has cost

somewhere between four and six million, ruined others as well as myself and pitted

the citizens against each other while anticipating multi-million dollar seniements from

people and entities that had nothing to do with the mine in the fiist place.

Subsequent to this needless exercise, the following facts have come to light:

1. Tlie EPA announced in the Amador Ledger Dispatch, December 18, 1995

that not ne single person tested for on the site had elevated arsenic readings and wore

in fact below the national average. This Information was conveniently released after

they left

2. There have been approximately 25 EPA arsenic sites in the United States.

The mitigation standard for cleanups has averaged 230 parts per million. The soil at

Mesa de Oro was mandated not to exceed 22 parts per million. Might this have

anything to do witn the blank check charge account the EPA found with the emergence

of Allied Signal?

3. Although the EPA told me that when the work was finished, Mesa de Oro

would be deemed safe, clean, and able tu proceed. Now they refuse to authorize

building permits on the meaa, citing my failure to conliibute to the cleanup cost

The theory of joint and several liabilit/ is that all P.R.P's are responsible for

1 00% of the cleanup until it is done. Allied Signal got unfairly stuck with the bill. I airi

broke. The work l.<% done. Maybe Allied should come after me for my portion (a

proposal. I of course, reject) but should the EPA be paid twice?

Building permits have been issued in the subdivision downhill trom the mesa while

cleanup continues. If this is a public health issue, no permits should be issued on or

near any site that is yet unmitigated. The inconsistencies once again reveal the tme
nature of the project. The purpose of EPA is to perpetuate their bloated purposeless.

-7-
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Mr. West. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Gary, I appreciate you in-

viting me. My name is Ron West, I am a land planning consultant
here in the Central Valley, have been for 20 years.

During the past 6V2 years I have worked with a project in Santa
Nella, which is effectively the updating of the Santa Nella specific

plan. For those that do not know, Santa Nella is a small commu-
nity in the western Merced area. It is off of the main Central Val-
ley farmland area, and for that reason the county general plan has
directed growth to this community. Besides being in the right loca-

tion, it has already just a maze of Federal and State facilities, both
highways and waterways. Highway 33, highway 5, highway 152 all

intersect in that area. We also have several major canals. Delta
Mendota Canal, San Luis Wasteway, and California Aqueduct all

bisect this small community. Its significance to the county of

Merced is simply this: It is one of the busiest truck and traveler

stop areas in the United States. It is worth an immense amount
of money in the next 20 and 30 and 40 years to this community.
It is worth an immense amount of money to the county of Merced,
which has over 22 percent unemployment.
The update that we are doing in Santa Nella calls for about

18,000 people after a 20-25 year build-out. It calls for about 6,200
homes and it calls for about 7,500 jobs. Our jobs and housing bal-

ance, therefore, has been built into this community, it is on the
highway routes, we think we have developed after all the many,
many years of plans and designing and studies and tests, a good
community.
The problem has been this—from day one, the Fish and Wildlife

Service has determined that that is a potential habitat area for the
San Joaquin kit fox. The San Joaquin kit fox is a tiny little animal,
cute, cute, cute as it can be, and that is part of its problem. It is

identically genetically the same as a thing called the swift fox that

is very common all over the United States in the Western portion.

But yet, for reasons I am not sure I understand, it has been des-

ignated as an endangered and threatened species. And along the
western hills of the Valley, historically they were able to find a
home.
Now what has happened in Santa Nella is that extensive agricul-

tural uses have come in over the many, many years. A variety, as

I mentioned of Federal and State facilities have been built—high-

ways, dams, including a huge reservoir west of us. And adjacent to

that is a State game reserve. So there has been a lot happening.
A new national cemetery has just been built right outside Santa
Nella. So this is not a new, virgin area of open land. Santa Nella
has had an existing specific plan for many, many years, it is simply
being updated.

Right now we are not through our hearings and we will not be
through until this summer. We are concerned that we continue to

get opposition from the wildlife agencies, they continue to try to

stop this project and either ask for wild amounts of money or land
dedicated someplace that would stop this project. As we speak, one
of the real key portions of this development is being held up, and
that is the factory outlet stores which will start providing our job

base down in that area. It has been through extensive studies, it

has been zoned for many years, it is being built on a parcel that



20

has had development on it for over 15 years but yet every time we
turn around that project continues to get stopped again. The latest

was they had to transfer some water from one district to another.
That provided Federal agencies an opportunity to jump back in and
go lobby the Bureau of Reclamation to stop this project again.

What I am appealing to you today is that folks, it is time we
stopped making enemies of the Federal Government or out of the
citizens. We are all in this thing together. The owners in Santa
Nella are trying to develop a good community. I think the agencies
that are trying to stop it are not doing it because they are bad peo-
ple, I think they are just misguided and I think they do not have
enough good guidance from up above that says folks, here is what
habitat is and here is what it is not.

Recently, the Supreme Court has made I think a ruling that
helped clarify what is habitat, that is the Sweet Home case. I think
the Congress has to pass something that is going to take what that
Sweet Home case said in terms of defining habitat, and put it into

the law and make it clear. To stop us and say this is potential

habitat, you cannot build here even though there are no animals
is simply not fair and it is not good business. Thank you.
Mr. McIntosh. Thank you, I appreciate that.

Our third panelist on this panel is Mr. Robert Rucker. Mr.
Rucker.

[The prepared statement of Mr, West follows:]
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Hon We&i ComuBwq
Land Use Planning & Entlliements

324 No. Sam Ana Av». Ph; (209) 523-3321
Modesto. CA 95354 Faj,. (209) 525-8645

April 1, 1996

TESTIMONY before the SUBCOMMITTEE OK NATIONAL ECONOMIC GROVrTH,
NATURAL RESOURCES & REGULATORY AFFAIRS; of the HOUSE C(^IMITTEE ON

GOVERNMENT REFORM & OVERSIGHT;

"Hearing on the Impact of Federal Regulations on California's
Central Valley"; Red Lion Hotel, Modesto, California (panel 2).

Honorable Committee members:

My name is Ron West, and for the past year I have been in
private practice as a land-use consultant in the Central Valley.
For the previous 5 1/2 years I served as Director of Forward
Planning for Kaufman & Broad, Central Valley, Inc. During the
prior 13 years, I provided planning services to local property
ovmers, both in private practice, and as Planning Director for two
other major Valley homebuilders and developers.

Almost all my efforts have been directed toward housing:
single family, multi-family and some elderly. I am proud of my
contribution to the building industry, and active in the Building
Industry Association of Central California. Along with food, I

consider the product my Industry produces to be one of two most
basic and important to the people of this Nation.

Over the past two decades in local planning and entitlement,
I have dealt with a variety of government regulations, processes,
and agencies. I have witnessed the ups and downs of the national
and local economies and of the housing Industry, and have seen a
variety of planning trends and changes. But I have also seen the
consistencies, the basic human needs, wants and dreeuns part that
hasn't changed in the last 20 years - and probably much longer than
that.
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In general, Z believe that ' well-intentioned Agencies and
employees of various Governments, including Federal, have sometimes
unreasonably and/or \infairly added cumulative time delays, costs
and requirements to projects in the Central Valley, including Santa
Nella, my example today. And I believe that those additional costs
and delays negatively impact and discourage even appropriate and
well-planned developments. The result is an. overall dampening
effect on investors, iinnecessary cost increases, and time delays.

Hy exeunple today, of Impacts of Federal Government actions and
policies on economic development in the Central Valley, is an
ongoing story of a small but growing, and economically significant
Community. Santa Nella is a busy, highway-oriented Community on
the edge of the foothills in western Merced County. It has an
existing Community Specific Plan (CSP), but property owners were
asked by County Planners to cooperatively fund a complete Update of
the CSP, Master Plans, and EIR.

For the past 6 1/2 years, those planning, environmental
review, and update efforts have been underway. Property owners
have spent over $1.5 million in direct costs, and have accrued
several millions in laind C2Lrry costs, all of which are ultimately
reflected in the prices paid by residents and businesses. A
variety of land use changes and updates have been proposed and
studied in the Update, but the net CSP planning area increase is
only 92 acres (approximately 4%).

Property owners were specifically directed here by the County
General Plan, away fr<»n more prime agricultural lands on the
central valley floor, and close to major existing transportation
routes. Santa Nella includes the "golden triangle" area where
Interstate 5, and State Highways 99, and 33 intersect. The area is
not just a maze of State and Federal highways, but also waterways,
with the California Aqueduct, Delta Mendota Canal, and San Luis
Wasteway also bisecting the Community. The existing and future
infrastructure challenges have been formidable, but not as
difficult as some of the political/environmental roadblocks.

My cumulative experience, and the last 6 1/2 years of project
management in Santa Nella, have very much convinced me that it is
time the governments and citizens in this gretiC Kdliun quit
treating each other as the enemy. That is essentially my plea

-2-
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today. To paraphrase a wonderfully simple question which emerged
from a terribly complex situation: "People, can't we just all try
to get along?" Can't we all just agree that reasonable ^scientifically sounds fiscally responsible, environmental
protection is everyone's concern, and that it should be a useful
planning tool, not a weapon? Can't we prevent (and resist) the use
of wildlife for offensive or defensive political purposes? I
believe we can, and oiust. And I believe that those specific goals
must be clearly identified and enacted by the Congress of the
United States. With well over 50% of California owned by Federal
and State governments, and only 3-4% of the State urbanized, there
is no justification for draconian government intervention.
Imagine, instead, focusing the creative, business, and public
efforts of this nation toward solving the problems facing our
people, instead of wasting tine, money, and human resources on the
never-ending "wars" between citizens and government.

Unlike others you have heard testimony about, the Santa Nella
Specific Plan Update project has not been driven into bankruptcy or
had it's viability destroyed by government regulations and/or
agency actions. .. .yet. And hopefully it will not.

However, we are just now finalizing our EIR, and have yet to
begin our entitlement hearings - and there continue to be areas of
pbtential conflict between the USFWS and property owners. I can
only hope that the project's extensive studies and good faith
efforts to address all reasonable impacts, will allow entitlements
to proceed without further serious USFWS opposition. I would love
to use this 6 1/2 year effort as an example of how environmental
issues Ccin be reasonably addressed. That has not necessarily been
the case in the past, but C2in, hopefully, be in the future. And if
we are successful, it will be because property owners were willing
and 2Lble to proactively insist that good, thorough science be used,
tuid that realistic impact/mitigation assumptions made. This has
not been an easy or inexpensive process.

The ESA issue in Santa Nella is the San Joaquin Kit Fox, a
tiny species virtually genetically Identical to the common Swift
Fox, yet listed as Federally Endangered and State Threatened. Long
ago, before extensive agricultural use of this area, and before the
massive State and Federal highway and ceuial projects, the huge San
Luis Dcun and the new National Cemetery, the Kit Fox probably found
this area satisfactory habitat. Today, however, numerous studies
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have failed to Indicate the presence- of these animals in the CSP
area. The essential issue for USFWS has been whether any such
animals could still "potentially" exist in the area, now or in the
future, and the" concept of "potential habitat" is central.

The U.S. Supreme Court in a recent landmark case (Babbitt v.
Sweet Home Chapter of Communities for a Great Oregon^, has done
much to very boldly and clearly address this question of when an
area can be considered "habitat". Also, ongoing legislative
efforts continue to include the requirements of good-science

,

legitimate peer review of findings, and ecohoalc realities as part
of environmental review. These obviously critical factors must be
incorporated into all Federal and State environmental legislation,
and this must be a priority. That can prevent other situations
like Santa Nella, where essentially there is little or no clear
"problem", and the "standard" Agency assumptions don't apply, yet
the political uncertainties, time delays, and additional costs take
their toll on yet another important part of the Central Valley's
future

.

Santa Nella is one of the busiest truck and traveler stop
areas in the nation and is extremely important to Merced County's
economic future. There is much to lose for everyone if, for
example, further unnecessary delays and costs - or threats to
project viability - were to occur.

IN SUMMARY:

1. In general, the police actions by the Federal (and other)
Government Agencies intended to protect the environment and
our citizens, must be based on sound econcxnic principles,
accurate science and assumptions, and clear identification of
real harm (or eminent harm) to real endangered species. That
requires th6 Congress to follow the U.S. Supreme Court's
example of attempting to clarify this law, not leave it open
to individual Agencies or individuals to try to determine what
it means. And then, the overall economic, social and other
realities must be considered as mitigation, options are
developed. . .if necessary. How much should the property otmers
and tax payers be asked to pay for what level of "protection".
Again, reasonable, good-faith efforts are assumed, and special
interest "environmental" croups must not be allowed to use the
laws as weapons for their own purposes.

-4-
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2. Specific to Semta Nella, I believe this is, in some ways,
very "typical" of the "potential habitat" situations. And
hopefully Supreme Court decisions and legislation will
continue to clarify this issue. Government agencies eind

employees must be given a clear set of goals, guidelines and
priorities, as well as the requirements for good science and
economics. If this course were followed, the environmental
"issues" in Santa Nella, and many other Santa Nellas all over
the Covintry, could be discussed and resolved in a calm,
businesslike and timely manner.

However, we cannot forget that if the Santa Nella project is
approved as currently proposed (no additional mitigations), it
will only be because the property owners have fought a long,
difficult, and costly fight. This was an tjmnecessary fight
against unreaisonable assumptions and mitigation demands. And
it was a waste of public and private time and money. And, of
course, there ie a direct impact on housing affordability and
the cost of doing business, two basic elements of the
"American Dream"

.

I appreciate the opportunity to provide this input. I am not
representing any of my particular clients or associates today, but
I believe my sentiments are consistent with most of those who are
working to make the great Central Valley a good place to live and
work and build their dreams. Thank you.

-5-
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Mr. RUCKER. Thank you. I am Bob Rucker. I am a developer of

single family residential, multi-family residential and commercial
projects in Merced. I was born and raised in Merced and have re-

sided there most of my life.

I would like to start off by giving you a background of what we
think is an ill-conceived manner on which FEMA started off devel-

oping flood maps for our area. It appears that back in the last

heavy floods that we have had in Merced, which was 1955 and
1956, that FEMA took the aerial photographs from that area and
developed flood maps. And anjrthing that showed a reflection on
these flood maps, whether it was half an inch of water or 2 feet

of water or whatever, was considered to be in a flood zone.

Since that time we have, through Federal tax dollars and local

dollars and so forth, have built the New Exchequer Dam, which
was a major flood control dam. The Castle Dam was built in the
last few years at an expense of several millions of dollars of tax-

payer money from both Federal level and local level. And all of

these were to mitigate the existing flood problems.
As an example of what we believe to be these excessive regula-

tions in Merced, three of us a couple of years ago bought a small
industrial park, a finished industrial park, that had 13 completed
lots on it that we were under the impression and had been told

were ready to be built on. We thought we will build a few indus-
trial buildings, create a few jobs and hopefully make a buck on this

project. We bought the project, we had some financing in place on
it with a local bank and we sold our first lot off to a local builder.

And then we discovered that FEMA had redone the flood maps,
and our property in the event of a flood would have 5 feet of flood

water on top of it, which rendered it worthless—I mean virtually

worthless to build on.

So through the help of our Congressman, Gary Condit, and his

chief of staff Mike Lynch, our public works director, our engineer-
ing firm and the person that worked for FEMA at the time in San
Francisco, we commissioned an engineering study and had a hy-
drology study done at an expense of a little over $18,000, spent an-
other $12,000 on local engineering, and finally through the help of

all the people I just mentioned, came to the conclusion that the
flood levels could be lowered, which would at least allow us to half-

way economically build industrial buildings on this site. This site,

by the way, is right next to Castle Air Force Base and right below
the Castle Dam that I mentioned just got built for flood control

purposes.
We did come to that resolution, we built one building. Then the

person that worked at FEMA retired, a new guard took over at

FEMA. They have since called the county or whatever and told the
county to cancel our floor variance. The county has been threatened
with punitive recourse if they did not follow through on that so the
flood variance has been revoked. The property is not buildable and
we are sitting there basically with a worthless piece of property
until this gets resolved.

As a matter of financial necessity, there is a resolution about to

be agreed upon with the help of the Army Corps of Engineers.
FEMA is finally going to take into account the reduction of flood
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danger, if you will, from the newly built Castle Dam, which to this

point they do not even consider exists.

In addition to all these studies that I have mentioned, we have
testimony that we have sent to FEMA from local residents who
have lived there for years and years and years, back in the time
of the early floods, that—one of them owns a local water district

and has been there for years—has testified that the potential wa-
ters that were standing in that area at the time were far below the
levels that have been mitigated by existing county ordinance and
existing flood diversion control.

This is just one of many examples and frustrating experiences
that we are all going through here in the Central Valley dealing
with FEMA. It is certainly a hindrance to economic development,
job creation and enjoyment of private property rights in our area.

I think it is something that is really worth Congress looking into

and I thank you.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Rucker follows:]
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Congressional Hearing on Regulatory Reform Modesto, CA
April 1, 1998
Subject: FEMA
Presenter: Bob Rucker

Rucker Construction, Inc.

My name is Bob Rucker. I am a developer and builder of single family

residential, multi-family residential and commercial projects. I was born and raised in

Merced and have resided in Merced most of my life.

Thank you for allowing me to make a short presentation regarding what we
believe to be excessive restrictions imposed by FEMA - specifically the Issue of

flooding in Merced County. Our community, as well as others In the San Joaquin

Valley, have experienced what we believe to be excessive, time-consuming, and

expensive restrictions placed on us by FEMA.

1. As an example, starting with flood maps, we believe the flood maps were

ill conceived by utilizing aerial photos taken during the heavy winter rains in 1955-56.

Any and all areas showing a reflection on these photos were considered as being

flooded whether It had a 1/2 Inch of water or 2 feet of standing water. This policy

virtually rendered our entire community In a flood zone.

2. The winter of 1955-56 was the last time that any significant flooding did

occur. Since that time, the New Exchequer Dam, Castle Dam. flood control structures

ar^J diversion structures from one stream to another have been constructed and

installed to control any potential fboding and run-off In our water shed.

3. As an example, last winter (1994-95) we received just over 18" of rainfall,

about six inches above normal. During one storm in our watershed area an over 100

year rainfall event took place. Bear Creek - the major creek and flood control facility

for Merced City, was able to contain ell of the runoff without any urban flooding. This

was accomplished through flood control structures that I have just mentioned and are

already in place upstream.

4. We have records for rainfall that go back over 100 years. In that time we
have never experienced the 100 year rainfall event that the National Weather Service

defines as 3* in any one 24 hour period. The 1955-56 winter did have a rainfall of

about 2i" in a forty eight hour period, causing standing water and flooding of minimal

impact in certain areas of our city.

5. One example of the problems we are experiencing Is a project I have

been involved with for the last few years, "Santa Fe Business Park." which has been

held up due to excessive regulations imposed by FEMA. We purchased this project

as a completed Industrial park subdivision which consists of 13 finished lots ready to

be built on. When this project was developed, it was In an "A" Zone. The 'A' Zone is
"

an area of undetermined flood depth by FEMA standards and regulations. The
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Merced County ordinance requires finished floors to be constructed at elevations of

two feet alcove existing grade. After we purchased these completed lots, we realized

that a revised flood map had been created establishing a new flood elevation of 165
feet. This new elevation meant that flood waters would cover our property with a
depth of at least Ave feet of water but that the properties contiguous to us did not
show any flooding. We then spent in excess of $30,000 on engineering and had a
hydrology study done, and through cooperation of our Congressman, Gary Condit,

the fvierced County Public Worl<s Department, the Army Corps of Engineers and the

FEMA representative from San Francisco that was employed at the time, a
determination was made that the maximum water depth in the predicted one hundred
year flood should be at an elevation of 163.8 feet which would allow construction of

industrial buildings to at least be partially financially feasible. We applied for and were
granted a flood elevation variance by Merced County. Since then the guard has
changed at FEMA and our flood variance has been revoked and the County has been
threatened with penalties if they did not revoke our variance, thus prohibiting the

financial feasibility of new construction on this site due to extreme cost. As a matter of
financial necessity, we are close to reaching a resolution of this problem but,

nonetheless, we are convinced that this property should be out of a fiood zone and
that these excessive costs and time requirements placed by this government agency Is

unnecessary. In addition to the above mentioned costs, we have testimony from long
term residents of this area that during the winter storms of 1955-56, this project site

may have had standing water at depths of 12-18 Inches, tart no greater. The original

A Zone ordinance would mitigate this. As I mentioned before, since the 1955-56
winter storm, the New Exchequer Dam, Castle Dam, and other flood water control

facilities have been constructed.

6. Flows developed by FEMA contractors have steadily been increased over
the years to levels nearly triple vA)at is likely, based on historical information available.

Again, we believe the Increases were made without sound data and for the purpose of
showing the creek banks would be overtopped and flooding would result in a 100 year
storm event. This all for the purpose of extracting flood insurance dollars from our
county residents as well as other San Joaquin Valley residents. This is one example
of an experience of land owners, developers, and local government spending a
multitude of time and money in attempting to reach agreement on acceptable fiood
levels to satisfy FEMA. We are firmly convinced that the contractor who prepared the
flood studies for the area for FEMA used data that was not appropriate for the study.
Had an independent analysis been made based on the more than 100 years of actual
rainfall data, a more realistic depiction of the extent of flooding and fiood depths would
have resulted.

7. A related issue Is the recently completed Casfle Dam. This is a useful
flood control project constructed as a Joint effort of local and federal govemment,
particularly the Army Corps of Engineers and the County of Merced. However,
although constructed with local and federal tax dollars, this will serve no purpose in

the eyes of FEMA until the FEMA engineers have done duplicate studies. Congress
should took closely at the Issue of allowing FEMA to decide the benefits to the people

41-532 97-2
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after tax dollars have been spent and good sound engineering practices have been

completed.

8. Our county public works director has been studying the background data

and supp>osed causes of flooding In our community and would be willing to participate

in a study of the excessive and costly burdens placed on all of us by FEMA, which not

only costs the taxpaying public a significant amount of money but Is an obstacle to

affordable housing, economic development and creation of much needed Jobs.

Thanks again for letting me speak to you today. I urge you to take the

appropriate steps In alleviating these unnecessary burdens.
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Mr. McIntosh. Thank you, thank you very much.
This has been very teUing, that there are three different agencies

creating problems for growth and development in the Central Val-

ley here.

I wanted to ask a couple of foUowup questions, particularly, Shel,

of yours. One of the things that fascinated me when I started read-

ing your testimony is what does EPA plan to do with the rest of

the area in that 120 mile long swath of land? Are they treating

that all as a potential site that will need to have remediation?
Mr. Thompson. Yes. In the Mother Lode, first of all, the topog-

raphy is such that the hills come down in little gulleys. All of the
towns in the Mother Lode with flat surfaces are flat because of

mine tailing fill that has been put in there over the years. So they
have their work cut out for a long, long time. They can go to every
little community and do the same things that they have done with
us. And the worst part about it is they admit, they admitted in

Time magazine, that it is very debatable as to whether or not mine
tailings and arsenic are harmful to people. But because arsenic is

a carcinogenic and any time there is a hint of a question that pub-
lic health or safety is involved, they have carte blanche to deal with
the issue as they see fit and to make whomever pay that they de-

termine is a responsible party.

Now I did not put it there and all the other people who are on
the hook did not put it there either. This was put there starting

150 years ago by the 49ers.

So in answer to your question, yes. We are finished where we
are, but do not let them go further because they can paralyze every
town in the Mother Lode if they want to.

Mr. McIntosh. When they finally said you could put 2 feet of

topsoil over it, does that satisfy them that the risk has been re-

moved, or the potential risk?

Mr. Thompson. They told us last summer that when that was
done and they were gone, that we could continue. Just in the last

couple of months, they have told us that we cannot pull building
permits on our subdivision, not that the work has not been done
and not that it has not been done to their specifications, but be-

cause we personally did not contribute to their clean up effort, we
cannot pull building permits.

Now last summer, they sent me a letter and told me they were
going to fine me $25,000 a day, unless I threw who knows how
much into the pot. I respectfully declined, and so now I am where
I am. So there is no consistency with what they do.

Just recently, I found out that there have been about 25 other

arsenic sites that EPA Superfund or EPA has dealt with. They
have had to clean their surfaces up to 230 parts per million, we
have to do ours 22 parts per million, which seems a little strange.

Plus, the State of California arsenic requirement in drinking water
that you drink is 50 parts per million. So there is no consistency

with what they do, whatsoever.
Mr. McIntosh. So they are not looking at science. And I thought

I recalled in your testimony that there was some expert evidence
that that type of arsenic, the way it was fastened, was not soluble

in water?
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Mr. Thompson. Exactly. There are two types of arsenic. One is

bio-available and one is not. The type that is not bio-available, you
can literally drink it or eat it and it passes right through in 24
hours. Originally they told us that is why you cannot test for ar-

senic in people because you will never find it.

So all the tests, using their data—independent chemists and
independent geologists have shown that from their data, this par-
ticular arsenic is arsenopyrite, it is not water soluble and it is not
bio-available and it is not migratory. And those are the three tests

that would tell you whether or not it is harmful. They do not care.

Mr. McIntosh. It is incredible to me that they are just ignoring
the facts and moving forward with the program.
Ron, I wanted to check with you on the Fish and Wildlife Serv-

ice. Have they listed the San Joaquin kit fox or is that still being
considered?
Mr. West. Yes, it is listed as federally endangered and State

threatened. So it is on the list. The problem is it is not on our site.

[Laughter.]
Mr. McIntosh. And so the fact that your site might potentially

some day be habitat for it is what is causing the problem.
Mr. West. That is what they are getting at. They are saying if

animals were to get there somehow, they could survive. Well if I

fed them and gave them water, they could survive in my living

room, but that is not potential habitat either. [Laughter.]
Mr. McIntosh. Maybe you ought to fmd the potential habitat of

the EPA headquarters or something, I do not know.
That is amazing. And so with that, they are blocking any type

of further work on the plan until you reach an agreement on an
alternative?

Mr. West. They have responded to all of the environmental docu-
ments saying you cannot do this, you have got to have 1 mile wide
corridors here and you have got to dedicate land here and you have
got to give money there—all the routine things that happen. But
they are also—and more dangerously, I think—they are going to

other Federal agencies like the Bureau and they are saying we do
not have enough information to stop this with what falls in our ter-

ritory, you guys do not let them transfer water. That is the dan-
gerous part.

If an agency can come on your site and say something is here
that does not allow you to develop this site, that is one thing, but
when they cannot find that and have to go to another agency or
go to Cal Trans and say if you approve an encroachment permit for

this community, we are going to go back to Washington and give
you guys trouble. That is where the danger comes, so there is a lot

of ways to stop a project besides directly

Mr. McIntosh. What do you think their motive is, if they cannot
identify

Mr. West. The motive that I understand is that they are con-
cerned about a north-south corridor between the kit foxes that live

50-60 miles this way and some that live 50-60 miles down the Val-
ley. They are concerned that those two populations will somehow
be cutoff from each other ultimately and that they will not be able
to inter-breed. Well, kit foxes only travel a mile from where they
are born, so if they are going to go 100 miles, it is going to take
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them 100 generations even if they know where they are going, to
get to Bakersfield.
So it is a theory that has not been shown or proved by anybody

but it is the movement theory that they keep saying that nothing
between here and there can really get in the way of these animals
because they will not be able to migrate back and forth.

Mr. McIntosh. As if nature cannot adjust. That is interesting.
I appreciate you bringing this forward. I think this will be a good
example for us to use as we move forward with reform in that area.

I have no further questions. Gary, do you have questions?
Mr. CONDIT. Well, I might just followup. Just so that there is

some credibility established here—Shel has got an impeccable rep-
utation over the years of being an environmentalist and being in-

volved in many of the groups locally that would be perceived to

want to protect the environment and so on and so forth.

And my comment to him is since EPA opposed the project, does
he feel like his environmental credentials were challenged some-
what, do you feel like that was an environmental policy statement
that was constructive or do you think it was anti-environmental?
What is your reaction to that? I mean as one who comes out of that
movement, why do you think that occurred and what is your reac-
tion to that?
Mr. Thompson. My reaction is that they are using the power of

the environmental movement incorrectly. I do not think anyone in
this room is in favor of dumping oil in water or dirty air or bad
land use. There are degrees, everyone has a difference of opinion,
but no one is against the right aims of the environmental move-
ment. But what they are doing, they have created a tremendously
powerful bureaucracy and they are using it, they are using—as Ron
said, they are using agency and inter-connection of agency to stop
things that they personally do not want to see happen, or to perpet-
uate their personal bureaucracies.

I will vote for any environmental issue today that is a real one.
The other day in the newspaper there was a thing about how the
Ku Klux Klan around here burned a cross and so they were trying
to get the EPA to knock them out on air pollution standards. Well,
the real issue is if the Ku Klux Klan is a bad thing, run them out
of town, do not let them do their thing, but do not take an issue
that is totally unrelated and make it a sham, because the people
lose all respect for the perpetration of a sham. And that is what
the EPA has done to the environmental movement.
Mr. CONDIT. Could I take that to mean it may be a perpetuating

of their own bureaucracy and protection of
Mr. Thompson. Absolutely. They told me in the first meeting

that they bill at $125 an hour—now this was State EPA—and so

I asked how much will this cost on our project, they could not give
me a clue. So in all the public meetings, I continued to ask the
question, you could not say what it was going to cost at the begin-
ning, how much have you spent to date? Surely you can tally up
the hours that your people have spent. They never could, they
never would. Finally, on one meeting, they said well we have spent
about $18,000 to date. I said wait a second—I think there were
eight people from the EPA there, that is $1,000 an hour. That was
the third meeting we had been to. Their coordinator full time, 40
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hours a week, is $20,000 a month. I said your math does not add
up, at least give us a reasonable answer. They have never done
that. But yet they tell you right from the start that you will pay
and the logical question is OK, what is it going to cost or give me
a clue—we cannot give you a clue and then they will not give you
a clue. And the coup de grace was when one of the EPA lawyers
said Mr. Thompson, you are still on our radar screen. Now that
was a very offensive statement to me, but that is the way they
think—^you are still on our radar screen.

Mr. CONDIT. So tell me, what is the current status of the land
upon which the topsoil was placed, is it eroding or
Mr. Thompson. Pardon me?
Mr. CONDIT. Is it eroding?
Mr. Thompson. Yes. What they did—our lawyer told us several

months ago what would happen eventually at the end of 1995, be-
cause there was uncertainty whether the EPA would be fully fund-
ed by Congress, there would be this rush to get it finished, and
whatever happened, that would be good enough. Everything he
said came true. They put the soil there except there are 44 lots,

they put the soil on all the lots except on the houses that were fin-

ished where people are living.

So it looks like this (indicating). Here is a high lot, here is a low
lot with a house on it—peaks and valleys. So there has been ero-

sion from the high lots to the low lots and down the slope, but more
importantly, my question continues to be, if 1 foot of soil, as we put
on, is not safe, you have got 10 or 12 people living on those types
of lots. Now if your 2 feet is safe and the 1 foot is not, you had
better put another foot over on the yards where the people are liv-

ing. They said well the people do not want that. It is obviously not
an issue of public health, and if it were, there would be a single
standard. But there is not.

Mr. CONDIT. Let me—I will finish up here, I am familiar with
Bob and Ron's case extensively. I just would ask each of them. Bob
in his case, do you have any suggestions on how we might deal
with FEMA in terms of reforming that would have helped in your
situation and, in your situation, Ron, where you had Fish and
Wildlife Service. Could you suggest any specifics, either one of you,
in your case, that we might be able to take with us?
Mr. RuCKER. I think we would be happy if FEMA would just use

actual statistical data. In the last few years their flood levels have
tripled and it seems like every time a project needs to be federally

funded, whatever figures have to come out to make it feasible

comes out and then after the project is funded, the figures change.
We have data over 100 years old and we have never had in Merced
what the National Weather Service says is a 100-year flood, which
is 3 inches of rainfall in a 24-hour period. Last year, we had 6
inches above normal rainfall. We had an event going down Bear
Creek, which is the main creek and flood control facility through
the city, considered to be over a 100-year event, and we did not
have any urban flooding at all. We still have the ability to divert

water into other streams and canals.
So, it just seems like FEMA comes up with whatever figures they

want to come up with that are convenient at the time. And all we
ask is that they use statistical data. And last, I am wondering why
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when the Army Corps of Engineers is charged with the custodian-
ship of our navigable waterway and dams and so forth, why they
are not the ones that are estabHshing the flood flows. They have
nothing to benefit from flood insurance premiums.
Mr. CONDIT. Ron.
Mr. West. In Santa Nella, Gary, I think we would be satisfied

if the agencies would use good science as we go to our hearings.
And as a question comes before them, if they will simply look at

what the studies are showing and what the scientific reality is, I

think we would come out just fine.

Mr. CONDIT. Thank you very much.
Mr. McIntosh. Thank you all. I appreciate your testimony, it

has been very, very helpful to us.

Let me call forward now the second panel, which is a series of

individuals who will testify on the impact of regulations on Califor-

nia water policies. Mr. John Roberts, Ms. Norma Cordova, Mr. Dan
Nelson and Mr. Allen Short. Welcome to all of you.

If I could ask each of you to please rise.

[Witnesses sworn.]
Mr. McIntosh. Thank you. Please let the record show that each

of the witnesses answered in the affirmative.

Our first witness in this panel is John Roberts, who is the chief

executive officer of the California Rice Industry Association. Mr.
Roberts, thank you for coming forward today.

STATEMENTS OF JOHN ROBERTS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFI-
CER, CALIFORNIA RICE INDUSTRY ASSOCIATION; NORMA
CORDOVA, DIRECTOR, SAND CREEK FLOOD CONTROL DIS-
TRICT; DAN NELSON, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, SAN LUIS
DELTA MENDOTA WATER AUTHORITY; AND ALLEN SHORT,
GENERAL MANAGER, MODESTO IRRIGATION DISTRICT

Mr. Roberts. Thank you. Chairman Mcintosh, and also thanks
to Congressman Condit.
We could probably have written a book on this subject; that is,

on Federal over-regulation, redundancy and abuse of the regulatory
mechanism. But Congressman Condit has been one of the few to

listen to us, and for that, we will be forever grateful.

For the past 15 years, our organization has been actively en-

gaged in water quality regulation. Before 1985, we played catch-up
to address real problems of significant public concern with regard
to water quality. Taste and odor problems in the drinking water
supply of the city of Sacramento were being attributed to rice field

discharge that ended up in the Sacramento River. The loss of fish

was similarly attributed, at least in part, to rice production in the
Sacramento Valley.

In response, a cooperative effort was begun under the watchful
eye of California's Regional Water Quality Control Board, to de-

velop solutions which would protect the Sacramento River and
allow the continued production of rice in the Sacramento Valley.

Thus, began what is known as the Rice Pesticide Control Program.
This program has widely been acknowledged as a huge success.

Today, rice chemicals do not show up in Sacramento's drinking
water or in the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta or San Francisco
Bay.
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As a result of these and related achievements, California's EPA
has called the program one of the most successful water quality
programs in the United States.

How did this industry and its Government partners accomplish
this? Well, a great deal of effort was put into developing control

measures. One of these measures consists of growers banding to-

gether to create what are commonly called closed systems into

which their field water flows. This is called tail water, and it is

held, allowing agricultural chemicals to dissipate before being re-

leased into public waters. These systems are encouraged by Califor-

nia's regulatory authorities. Importantly, they are expensive to con-
struct and remain costly to operate and maintain.

In 1984, as if to prove the old adage that no good deed goes
unpunished, the State's Regional Water Quality Control Board,
without warning, announced the closed systems in our rice fields

to protect the Sacramento River, the delta and the bay, were in fact

waters of the United States, and subject to the full regulation
under the Federal Clean Water Act. In essence, we were informed
that water in these constructed agricultural systems would be held
to the same standards as the most pristine mountain streams.
Every time we asked State regulators why they were trying to

subject our constructed agricultural ditches to the same regulations

as mountain streams, they say that it was demanded by U.S. EPA,
acting under the Federal Clean Water Act.

Bewildered, we took our case to the headquarters of U.S. EPA
Region EX in San Francisco. U.S. EPA Region IX staff would give

us no guidance as to which waters were properly regulated under
the Federal Clean Water Act. We were told that EPA attorneys be-

lieved they could define the Clean Water Act in a nearly limitless

fashion, and EPA seemed resentful of the fact that we pursued
clarification on the matter.

It was at this point that we were contacted by Congressman
Condit, asking for suggestions for a Corrections Day bill. We imme-
diately responded affirmatively and what resulted was H.R. 2567,
the Constructed Water Conveyance Reform Act of 1995. The bill

makes it clear that the Clean Water Act does not require States
to regulate water in constructed conveyance facilities. The idea
came from visits to other States which have taken the position that
these facilities need not be regulated. It was reinforced by visits to

U.S. EPA headquarters in Washington, DC, where the net results

of our meetings was that the agency had no desire to regulate
these waters. Not only could we not find anyone who advocated the
position being advocated by U.S. EPA Region IX in California, we
were unable to find anyone who even thought it was a good idea.

Once H.R. 2567 was introduced, however, EPA began to sing a
different song. In what appeared to be a closing of the ranks in

support of Region IX, U.S. EPA immediately made it know that our
efforts with Congressman Condit were not appreciated. Region IX
staff made it clear that their cooperation with us up to this point
would be difficult to continue in the light of our efforts with Con-
gressman Condit.
EPA's preferences, as we understand them, would impose a mas-

sive and unfunded workload on the State. For example, there are
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more than 6,400 constructed conveyances in the Sacramento Valley
of California, the combined length of which is over 20,000 miles.

U.S. EPA's reaction to the bill indicates that despite Congres-
sional intent that Clean Water Act regulations apply to navigable
waters, the agency believes that anything that is now or ever has
been wet is fair game. The agency's inability or unwillingness to

clearly define what waterways it believes are waters of the United
States and which are not, keeps everyone guessing. This costs in-

dustry and taxpayers money, not to mention making Federal guide-

lines seem arbitrary and subject to the whims of Federal agency
staff.

Thank you.
Mr. McIntosh. Thank you. I appreciate that. I remember when

that bill came through on our Corrections Day committee and Gary
was working to get that through.

I have got several questions that I will ask you when we are fin-

ished with the panel.

Mr. Roberts. Thank you.

Mr. McIntosh. Our next witness is Ms. Norma Cordova, who is

the director of the Sand Creek Flood Control District. Thank you
for coming today and we appreciate your testimony.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Roberts follows:]
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The California Rico Industry Association is a not-for-profit trade

association made up of California's leading rice mills. Our members include

farmer-owned cooperatives, large corporations, partnerships and small

family-owned operations. They handle approximately 92 percent of

California's annual rice crop.

For the past 15 years, CRIA and its predecessor organizations have been

actively engaged in matters of water quality regulation. In the early days,

before 1985, we were playing "catch-up" to address real problems of significant

public concern. Taste and odor problems in the drinking water supply for the

City of Sacramento were being attributed to rice field discharge tl-vat ended up

in the Sacramento River. The loss of fish was similarly attributed to rice

production in the Sacramento Valley.

In rG.sponse, a cooperative effort was begun. The rice industry, the

California Department of Pesticide Regulation and the California Department

of Food and Agriculture joined forces under the watchful eye of the State'.s
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Regional Water Quality Control Board to develop solutions wliich would

protect the River and allow the continued production of rice in th«

Sacramento Valley. Thus began the Rice Pesticide Control Program (RPCi')-

The RPCP has been widely acknowledged as a huge success. No longer do

we receive complaints regarding the effect of rice field discharges on

Sacramento's water supply. Today, rice chemicals are rarely even detected at

the Sacramento water supply intake. And they never show up in

Sacramento's driiiking water. Moreover, those concerned about the impact of

rice pesticides' flow iiito the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta and San Francisco

Bay and harming sensitive aquatic life now acknowledge rice pesticides

simply aren't found there any longer.

As a result of these and related achievements, California's

Environmental Protection Agency has called tlie RPCP one of the most

successful water quality control programs in tlie nation.

How did the industry and its governmental partners accomplish this? A

great deal of effort was put into developing control measures. One such

measure is holding water on fields \mtil it no longer exceeds protection levels

established for truly public waterways.

Some efforts, however, were not so easy or inexpensive. In a number of

areas, growers banded together to create what arc commonly called "closed

systems," into which their field water flows. That "tail water," as it is called, is

then held, allowing agricultural chemicals to dissipate before release into

public waters. Tliese systems were encouraged by Califorrua's Regional Water

Quality Control Board. Many system designs were approved by the California

Department of Fish and Game prior to construction. Importantly, these

systems were expensive to cor\struct and remain costly to operate and

maintain.

Despite these measures, and our successes, the regulatory effort

intensified. Even while regulators were claiming credit for the success of the
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RPCP, standards were made more restrictive and more waters were being

subjected to regulation.

Finally, in 1994, as if to prove the old adage that no good deed goes

unpurushed, the State's Regional Water Quality Control Board, without

warning, announced that tlie closed systems constructed in California rice

country to protect the Sacramento River, the Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta

and San Francisco Bay were, in fact, "waters of the Ur\ited States," ond subject

to full regulation under the federal Clean Water Act. In essence, we were

informed that water in these constructed systems would be held to the same

standards as tlie most pristine movintain streams!

Wo were successful in dissuading the Board from imposing such a

standard in our constructed agricultural draim and closed systems iii 1994.

But the pressure to do so remains, as does the uiicertainty and the tlircat to

the tremendous investment that was made to protect truly public waters with

government oversight and encouragement. It was, and is, our "best

management practice."

Every time we ask State regulators why they are trying to subject our

constructed ditches to the same regulatioiu as mountain streams, they say it is

demanded by U.S. EPA, acting under the Clean Water Act.

Bewildered, we took our case to the headquarters of U.S. EPA Region IX

in San Francisco. We were told there that the Clean Water Act contained a

great deal of flexibility and that the federal agency was not demandmg tliat the

State require the application of the Clean Water Act in constructed drains,

ditches and related conveyances. U.S. EPA assured us that not all constructed

waterways were "waters of the United States."

Thinking our problem was solved, we returned to Sacramento to be told

that the Stale's regulators knew all about U.S. EPA's line regarding flexibility,

but had been unable to ever find any action or written indication of the

agency's view; only action that went in the otlier direction. We were told that
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every attempt to craft a creative solution met with U.S. EPA disapproval. A.s

to what types of water courses or facilities actually were waters of the United

States, State regulators smiled and asked us if their federal counterparts had

offered any guidance.

Our further inquiry began to bear out what the State was saying. The

vehicle most often touted by the U.S. EPA as providing flexibility had proved

nearly impossible. Conducting a Use Attainability Analysis, a formal process

for determilling that certain standards cannot be met, is to be followed by tlie

adoption of Site Specific Objectives. This process was tried by the State on two

water bodies in the San Joaquin Valley. The effort cost more than $2 million

and was rejected by U.S. EPA. Understandably, we're reluctant to spend that

kind of money on a process the full resources of the State of California

couldn't successfully complete. Even if we could, why spend the money? In

effect, wc would be indicating wc agree that farm ditcher come under the

purview of the Clean Water Act, and unless specifically and individually

exempted, must be as clean as streams in the Sierra Nevada mountains. We

think this is wrong, and not consistent with what Congress intended when it

adopted the Clean Water Act.

Stated simply, U.S. EPA Region IX staff would give us no guidance as to

which waters are properly subject to the Clean Water Act. Instead they

suggested we try other avenues to gain the relief and certainty wc were

seeking. Wc were also told that EPA lawyers believed they could make the

definition nearly limitless, and seemed resentful of the fact wc have pursued

clarification on the matter.

It was at this point that we were contacted by Congressman Coiidit asking

for suggestions for the "Corrections Calendar." We immediately responded

affirmatively, and what resulted was HR 2567, the Constructed Water

Conveyance Reform Act of 1995. In reality, this is a very simple piece of

legislation. The bill makes it clear that the Clean Water Act docs not rcijuire
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states to regulate water in constructed conveyance facilitiei;. The idea came

from visits to other states which have taken the position that tlicso facilities

need not be regulated. It was reinforced by visits to U.S. EPA headquarters in

Washington, D.C. where the net result of our meetings was that ttie agency

had no desire to regulate these waters. Not only could we not find anyone

advocating the position being imposed in California, we were uiiable to find

anyone who even thought it was a good idea.

C)nce HR 2567 was iittroducod, however, the agency began to sing a

different song. In what appeared to be a dosing of the ranks in support of

Region IX, U.S. EPA immediately made it known that our efforts with

Congressmaii Condit were not appreciated. Region IX staff made it clear tliat

the "cooperation" we had seen by their agency up to this point would be

difficult to continue in light of tlic legislation. Region IX "suggested" we

contact Congressman Condit with U.S. EPA proposed amendments.

Having failed in its endeavor to press these amendments through CRIA,

the agency then turned its attention to the legislative process itself. U.S. EPA

offered a series of amendments (all previously presented to CRIA by Region

IX) which it claimed were necessary to remove its opposition to 1 IR 2567. The

nature of the amendments (some of which were accepted) in general

demonstrated an ongoing puzzling attitude by US. EPA relative to Clean

Water Act reform. The proposals are summarized below:

1. U.S. EPA Suggestion: Limit application of the bUl to the "arid west-"

Response: We believe the xmreasonable regulation of constructed

conveyance facilities intended to be addressed by HR 2567 has to do with

the nature of the waterway, not its geographical location. Treating an

agricultural ditch in the same fashion as the most pristiiic mountaii\

stream is as inappropriate in Indiana as it is in Arizona.

2. IJ.S. EPA Suggesrion: Umit the application of the bill to

''agricultural ronvevances."
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Response: Here too, U.S. EPA misses \hc point. It is tlie fact that the

ditch is not presently and never was a natural waterway, not the

ultimate use of the water in it, that makes Clean Water Act regulation

inappropriate. It must also be noted that practically, the distinction

suggested by U.S. EPA is impossible. As the staff of Region TX well

know, many constructed conveyances in Califoniia carry water used for

both agricultural and mumcipal purposes. It is unclear how US. EPA

intends to classify these dual-purpose facilities.

3. IJ-S. EPA Su^^estion: T.imit the application of the bill fo

conveyances that did not previously support wilHlifr.

Response: At the outset, the question must be asked whether this

means any wildlife, ever? Cearly, this has the ability to wipe out any

relief from the current unreasonable regulatory scheme. The bill only

applie.<: to waterways that are not now and never have been natural

waterways. Accordingly, the only wildlife that could be supported is that

resulting from the construction of the facility. Since the bill is limited to

these waterways, the suggested change is not necessary and would

eliminate any potential reform.

4. y.g, EFA Sugggfition- Change the standard under which «;fr;Ut»«; v^JH

be allowed to avoid repjlating for uses that do not prp^onfly ^^ \<^\

Response: HR 2567 includes a provision clarifying that states

choosing to regulate constructed conveyances need not regulate to

protect uses which do not exist, are not reasonably foreseeable to exist,

or where such regulation would interfere with ttie intended use of the

constructed facility. VS. EPA would change this to require state

regulation unless the state could prove the uses are not existing or

reasonably foreseeable and such regulation would unreasonably

interfere with the purposes for which tiie system was coastructed.
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U.S. KPA's suggestion would require stales to regulate for uses

which do not exist, making this provision more stringent and

unreasonable than existing law. Currently, if a use does not exist, the

state need not regulate to protect it. Under tlie U.S. EPA proposal, a state

would not only be required to demonstrate that the use docs not exist,

but also that regulation to protect the non-existent use would

unreasonably interfere with the authorized purpose of the constructed

facility. This can hardly be characterized as reform.

EPA's preferences—if wc understand them-would impo.sc a massive and

uiifunded workload on the states. For example, there are more titan 6,400

constructed conveyances in tlie Central Valley of California with a combined

length in excess of 20,000 miles. Obviously, a requirement that California play

water quality cop throughout the entirety of this extensive system, would

Impose an enormous burden for little or no environmental gain. We might

add that California already has tlie most extensive water quality control effort

of any of the states, although riglitfully focused on natural waterways.

In sum, HR 2567 does notliing more than allow states the flexibility to

focus their water quality resources on truly natural waterways. U.S. EPA

claims this flexibility exists, but \he states either think the medianism to get

flexibility is too expensive and /or unachievable, or so vague as to be

meaningless. The reforms set forth in HR 2567 will free the states from

creating a whole new regulatory structure to regulate cor^structed

conveyances, except to the extent necessary to ensure these waterways do not

adversely impact the natural waters to which tliey flow.

U.S. EPA's reaction to the bill indicates that despite Congressional intent

that Clean Water Act regulations apply only to "navigable waters," liic agency

believes anything that is now or has ever been wet is fair game. The agency's

inability or unwillingness to clearly define what waterways it believes are

included as a "water of the U.S." and which are not.keeps everyone guessing
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and unreasonably interferes witl\ state water quality policy. This costs

industry and taxpayers money, not to mention making federal guidelines

seem arbitrary and subject to the whims of federal agency staff. Which, by the

way, varies greatly between EPA offices.

We believe this stands as eloquent testimony to the need for regulatory

reform.
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Ms. Cordova. Thank you for having us here.

I actually serve in two roles. I am a board member of the Sand
Creek Flood Control District, and I am also a landowner and a
farmer in our district. I am here to testify about problems that our
district has faced and will continue to face and incur unless there
are significant reforms.
The Flood Control District was purposely created in June 1987,

to prevent flooding which occurs during heavy winter or spring
rains. Restrictive vegetation and increasing amounts of sediment
affect the efficient flow of the water in the Sand Creek channel.
Private property owners suffer crop losses and there is flooding in

several homes. In addition, there is a monumental public safety
hazard when roads are inundated with water. It is important to

emphasize that Sand Creek is unnavigable, non-recreational and is

simply an intermittent stream which serves as an agricultural

drain for private property owners. Sand Creek is not the Tuolumne
River, it is not a tributary of any river system. It is simply runoff
water which eventually discharges into a non-jurisdictional water-
way which happens to be a concrete-lined Turlock Irrigation Dis-
trict main canal.

March 1994, our Board and our District were absolutely incred-
ulous when we were told that permits were necessary for the rou-
tine maintenance and clearing of the drainage. Historically,

Turlock Irrigation District had maintained the lower flood plain as
an improvement district and Stanislaus County Flood Control Ena-
bling Act provided for the creation and operation of local flood con-
trol districts and granted powers to those districts to protect per-
sons and property from flood.

The Army Corps of Engineers claims jurisdiction over the natural
drainages and altered portions of Sand Creek. Therefore, we were
informed to comply with the Clean Water Act, Section 404, and ob-

tain the necessary permits. Our district applied for permits to be
in compliance. The process proved to be both lengthy and frustrat-

ing.

For example, we communicated by phone, by telephone, in person
with several individuals and agencies about the why and how of

compliance. The written testimony that we have provided contains
a comprehensive list of local. State and Federal agencies that we
have worked with. In fact, I brought the packet of all the paper-
work, and this does not include phone calls and personal contacts
as well.

The Corps required a wetlands delineation report to ensure no
endangered species. Our District retained a wetlands consultant to

comply with that requirement at the cost of $3,000 to our small
District which only generates a $3,200 yearly operational budget.
We were told at a pre-application meeting with the Corps that our
mitigation costs would be too high, but we were never told what
the figure was or what we had to mitigate.
Even though the USDA flood prevention study and the wetlands

delineation both found no endangered species, the Fish and Wild-
life questioned perhaps that there may be a tiger salamander in

our drainage. The Corps discouraged us from seeking a permit be-
cause of the lengthy process and scrutinization by several agencies,

including Fish and Wildlife, EPA, Fish and Game, Water Quality
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Board and the historic site register. Obtaining the permit would
have been nearly impossible if it would not have been for the major
flood March 1995.
For Stanislaus County, State permits and certifications were

waived due to the suspension of the State endangered species act.

Congressman Condit's efforts and others who communicated with
the Army Corps of Engineers to expedite the processing of the 404
permit which was finally secured 18 months after first learning
that Sand Creek was determined by the Corps to be "waters of the
United States."

Sand Creek Flood Control District has dealt first-hand with over-

regulation of existing laws. We implore Congress to implement re-

forms that reflect common sense, private property rights, safety

and protection of agricultural pursuits.
Thank you.
Mr. McIntosh. Thank you very much. Having dealt with the

wetlands issues for a long time now, I am very sympathetic with
your argument on that and look forward to talking with you more
in our questioning period.

Our next witness is Mr. Dan Nelson, who is the executive direc-

tor of San Luis Delta Mendota Water Authority. Welcome.
[The prepared statement of Ms. Cordova follows:]
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SAND CREEK FLOOD CONTROL DISTRICT
Stanislaus County, California

Sand Creek watershed ia located In eastern Stanislaus County. The
District encompasses approximately 11,800 privately-owned acres. The
132 aeeeased parcels are predominantly orchards, vineyards, permanent
pasture and field crops. The Individual property owners own Sand Creek
whose course runs across their respective agricultural properties.

Senate Bill 495, Chapter 421, established the Stanislaus County Flood
Control Enabling Act in 1981. The Act provided for the creation and
operation of local flood control districts and granted powers to protect
land, property and persons from flood damage.

A formal study was conducted in 1986 by the U.S. Department of
Agriculture, River Basin Planning Staff. The "Sand Creek Flood
Prevention Study" indicated that, "According to the U.S. Fish and
Wildlife Service, there are no known threatened or endangered species in
the project area." Subsequently, Stanislaus County Local Agency
Formation Commlseion (LAFCO) approved the formation of Sand Creek Flood
Control District (SCFCD) June, 1987, noting that "approval of the
proposal will not have significant effect on the environment."

The SCFCD board of directors implemented the option of routine
maintenance of the creek channel in order to prevent loss of or damage
to private property and to county property such as roads. Prior to the
formation of SCFCD, Turlock Irrigation District (TID) had the
reeponslbility of maintaining the drainage. The SCFCD board members are
elected by the Stanislaus Coxinty Board of Supervisors and serve without
compensation or support staff.

Direct assessment on the tax rolls for District property owners was
implemented in order to fund the maintenance projects. The current
assessment rate is $0.23/acre for the upper watershed and $0.40/acre for
the lower watershed. The assessment generates approximately $3,200/year
for the operational budget. TID has been historically retained by the
flood control district to perform the maintenance activities with
appropriate labor and equipment.

Prior to March, 1994. routine maintenance of Sand Creek was accomplished
each year in order to remove debris and excessive vegetation or sediment
which created flooding problems on County roads and private property.
Property owners in the lower flood plain (between Hall Road and the
point of discharge (TID Main Canal) receive the br\int of excessive water
due to restricted flow of water. There have been crop losses and
several homes have been flooded during each major storm. In addition,
there is a monumental public safety hazard when County roads are
Inundated with water.

March, 1994, marked the end of maintaining the agricultural drainage
(Sand Creek) as it had been accomplished in the past. The District was
told by various individuals and agencies that we would not be able to
continue the same types of cleaning and clearing activities without
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permits and certifications from the appropriate federal and etate
agencies.

Sand Creek ie an unnavigable, nonrecreational, intermittent stream which
discharees into a nonjuriodictlonal waterway (concrete-lined TID Main
Canal). The U.S. Army Corpo of Engineers claims jurisdiction over the
natural drainages and altered portions of Sand Creek. The SCFCD
underetanda that manmade drainages which inlet into the main channel are
exempt from Army Corps Jurisdiction.

The Sand Creek channel carries winter/spring rainwater and minimal
amounts of summer irrigation tallwater. Yet these waters have been
determined by the Corps to be "waters of the United States." SCFCD has
been notified to comply with the Clean Water Act, Section 404, in order
to obtain the appropriate permit(s).

Ehae to the floods of 1985 and the declaration of a federal disaster in
Stanislaus County, the usual requirement of obtaining the following
permits and certifications was waived for our flood control district:

(1) Stream Bed Alteration Permit, California State Department of
Fish and Game

(2) Water Quality certification, California Regional Water Quality
Control Board, and

(3) Historic Site certification. National Register of Historic
Places.

A wetlands delineation was required and the biological/wetlands
consultant retained for the delineation found tules, wild blackberry
bushes, Johnson Grass, water primrooe, water cress and willows. The
consultant found no evidence of the Elderberry Shrub and therefore no
habitat for the federally listed Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle. The
Public Notice Issued by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers for our project
was issued June 2, 1995, and was scrutinized by U.S. Fish and Wildlife
Service, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and California Native
Plant Society.

In order to expedite and amicably resolve the District's dilemma, the
SCFCD Board worked diligently and arduously and finally secured the 404
permit August 30, 1995. In summary, the District has communicated by
telephone, letter or in person with various county, state and federal
agencies and Individuals. Obtaining the necessary permit would have

been nearly Impossible if it had not been for the March, 1995, storm

which created a federal disaster for Stanislaus County. The event

prompted suspension of the state Endangered Species Act and created new

attention to the County's flooding problems.

Comnjunication during the lengthy, frustrating process included the
following individuals and/or agencies:

Michael Krausnlck, County Counsel, Stanislaus County
Andy Eshoo. Deputy County Counsel, Stanislaus County
Harold Callahan, Public Works Director, retired, Stanislaus County
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George Stillman. Public Works Director, Staniolauo County
Fran Sutton-Berardl, Senior Planner, Local Agency Formation

Commission, Stanislaus County
S\ipervisor Tom Mayfiold, Stanlolauo County, District 2
Assemblyman Sal Canslla's office

• Senator Dick Montelth's office
Dee Dee Moosekian, legal counsel for Congressman Gary Condit
Congressman Gary Condit
Michael McElhiney, District Coneervationiat for Natural Resource

Conservation Service, Modesto
Dale Mitchell, California Department of Fleh and Game, Fresno
Susan Sparks, California Regional Water Quality Control Board,

Sacramento
Carolyn Richardson, Environmental Attorney, California Farm Bureau

Federation, Sacramento
Gene Hlrsch, Office of Emergency Services, Sacramento
Bd Martin, Federal Emergency Management Agency, Sacramento
Mike Frls, U.S. Department, of Fish and Wildlife. Sacramento
June DeWeeee, U.S. Department of Fish and Wildlife. Sacramento
Tom Coe, Art Champ. Tom Cavanaugh, Karen Shaffer,

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Sacramento
Michael Skenfield, Biological/Wetlands consultant. Wetlands

Delineation report
Turlock Irrigation District, board member, engineers, management

Sand Creek Flood Control Dietriet has dealt firsthand with
overregulation of existing laws. We implore Congress to implement
reforms that reflect common sense, private property rights and
protection of agricultural pursuits.

Prepared March 25, 1996
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— 27— SB 495

Chapter 4. Powers and Duties of a District

Article 1. Introductory Provisions

SEC. 300. The board of directors is the governing
body of fi local district, and the powers of a local district

enumerated in this act shall, except as otherwise
provided, be exercised by the board of directors.

SEC. 301. The board of directors shall exercise

general supervision and con^plete control over the

construction, maintenance, and operation of all works
and projects of a local district, and generally over the

affairs of the local district.

Article 2. General Powers and Duties

SEC. 310. The object and duties of a local district are

to provide for the control of the flood, storm, and
drainage waters of the district and the flood, storm, and
drainage waters that have their source outside of the

district, but which waters flow into the district, to the end
of protecting the land, property, and persons within the

district from damage from those waters.

SEC. 311. A local district may do all things necessary

or convenient for accomplishing the purposes for which
it is formed.

rSEC. 312. Without limiting the provisions of Section"^
311, a local district may: J

(a) Deepen, widen, or reroute stream channels.

(b) Remove debris and vegetation.

(c) Clear vegetation.

(d) Construct levees, weirs, embankments, canals,

ditches, or pumping systems.

(e) Conduct studies, investigations, or planning for

such works.

J (0 Do any other work necessary or convenient for the

1^ control of flood, storm or drainage waters. I
SEC. 313. A local district may sue and be sued. •J
SEC. 314. A local district may, by ordinance, adopt

rules deemed necessary and proper for carrying out the

provisions of this act, including, but not limited to, rules

9S 490
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View of Sand Creek downstream from Hall Road.
Improperly managed riparian vegetation will restrict flows.

View of Sand Creek downstream from Bogue Road.

Good vegetation protects banks and helps maintain

wildlife habitat. Excess vegetation and silt build up

limits channel capacity.

- 6 *^S^A/o c/?ee/^ /=Uj0ab
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orn for silage, oac hay, alfalfa hay, and a forage mix conaistiaj of oaca,
vheac, barley, and vetch are the oajor row and field cropa. Major orchard crops
are applea, nectarines, peaches, walnuts, pistachios and almonds in the lower
watershed, and almonds in the upper area.

Host of the pastureland is grazed from March to December. Double-cropping, with
winter plantings of grain, occurs on moat of the cropland. On a typical farm,
com for silage or grain is grown from April to September; forage mix or oat hay
is planted in November and harvested the following April. The field crops are
usually disked between rotations. Most of the disking appears to be a form of
conservation tillage. Remaining crop residues reduce potential runoff that may
occur when early rains come before the new planting is well established.

fish. Wildlife and Wetlands: Fish and wildlife habitat in the area above the
Righline Canal is limited to grassed waterways through orchards, vineyards and
cropland. There is little opportunity for habitat improvement.

Below the Uighline Canal, there presently exist approximately 13 acres of wet-
land habitat along Sand Creek. Most of the wetlands are the result of pasture
or crop irrigation runoff. Some mature willows and cottonwood trees, along with
tulc and cattail clumps, are found between Hickman Road and the Turlock Main
Canal. These areas are being used by muskrats, frogs, nesting mallards,
pheasants, raptors, and a variety of songbirds. Mosquito fish, an effective
biological control for mosquito populations, are found in the creek and

associated ditches. Because of the intensive agrieultutal land use in the area,

>e wetlands and associated riparian vegetation are extremely valuable habitat

tor both game and nongame birds— important to the natural control of rodent and

insect populations. The present intensity of wetland use by both game and

nongarae wildlife underscores their importance in agricultural areas.

^ Endangered and Threatened Species : According to the U.S. Fish and Wildlife

Service, there are no known threatened or endangered species in the project

area, although there is a possibility that the study area may contain the

San Joaquin Kit Fox and the Blunt-nosed Leopard Lisard. Initial reconnaissance

produced no tracks, dens, sign or typical habitat of either species-

Several candidate species may occur in the project area. The most likely is the

Giant Garter Snake ( Thamnonh is eouchi eigas). an aquatic species which feeds

largely on fish, frogs, mice and other small vertebrates.

Bine plant species presently being considered for listing as threatened or en-

dangered may be present in the study area. A more intensive search for these

plants will be made, should they be formally proposed for listing.

Ongoing Programs : Presently, ongoing programs provided under SCS technical

assistance and Agricultural Conservation Program (ACP) cost sharing fall

significantly short In meeting land treatment needs and reducing the problems

occurring in Che study area within a reasonable time frame.

ASCS presently cost shares in Stanislaus County on cover crop installation but

t on grassed waterways. The cost-share rate is 50 percent or s naximum of

.^,500. The 1986 ACP cost-sharing allocation for Stanislaus County is $21,796.

",J?tA/^ Oas^ F^e>t>
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STANISL&DS COOHIY LOCAL ACENCT
PORMATIOH COMMISSION

RESOLUnOH

DATE; June 17, 1987 HO. 87-20

SUBJECT: Formation of th« Sand Creels Flood Control Dlatrlct

On notion of Commissioner , seconded by Conunlssloner , and approved. by the
following:
Ayes: Coomlss loners:
Noes: Commissioners:
Absent: Coouolssloners:
Disqualified: Commissioners:
Abstaining: Coooissloners:
Ineligible: CommissioQers:

TBE FOLLOtflMC RESOLUTION VAS ADOPTED:

WHEREAS, the Commission has conducted a public hearing on the proposed
Formation of the Sand Creek Flood Control District;

VHER£aS, notice of the said public hearing was given pursuant to Section
56834 ec. seq. of the California Government Code and Commission Policy; and

WHEREAS, the Commission has, in evaluating the proposal, considered the
report submitted by the Executive Officer and the factors set forth in
Section S68A1 of the California Government Codle;

NOV, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED chat the Commission;
•»

1. Certifies it has considered the contents of the . Environmental Review
Initial Study and the Negative Declaration prepared for the proposed
district;

2. Finds that the approval of the proposal vlll not have a significant
effect on the' environment;

3. Orders. the Notice of Determination to be filed;

i. Finds that: (a) the land Involved in the proposal consists entirely

of agricultural, preserves and is devoted to agricultural land uses and

zoned for agricultural purposes; (b) the approval of the proposed district

vlll not adversely affect the agricultural preserves or the agricultural

land uses; (c) the territory involved in the proposal is inhabited; (d) the

proposal would not conflict vlth any adopted spheres of Influence; (e)

there 1« a need for the service which would be provided by the district;
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July 26, 1994

TURLCXX IRRIGATION DISTRICT
333 EAST CANAL OBIVE
POST OFFICE BOX 949
TUOUOCK. CALIFORNIA 95391
laOSI 863-8300

Norma Cordova
3824 Montpelier Road
Denair, CA 95316

Rofexence

:

Dear Norma:

Request for Information - Sand Creek Maintenance

Pursuant to your request for maintenance information on Sand
Creek, we have prepared the following information for your use:

Since 1955, the TID has cleaned the Dallas Drain Improvement
District Drain on an "as needed" basis as requested by the Dallas
Drain Improvement District. Additionally, the District has been
retained by the SCRCD to periodically clean sections of the Sand .

Creek drainage channel.

The cleaning operations included removing the vegetation below
the water line. Normally no earth was removed except
occasionally to remove silt build up and then only to the
approximate natural grade of the bottom of the drain.

In recent years, excavators were used to perform the cleaning;
previously drag lines were used.

If you have additional questions concerning maintenance, please
feel free to call Richard Larson at 883-8391.

Sincerely,

TURLOCK IRRIGATION DISTRICT

Howard B. (Ben) Blazzard
Civil Engineering Technician

HBB : dp : Cordova . let

Brent Harrison
Richard Larson

W^



57

Stanislaus County
0«partm«nt of Public Worki

il

Novembers, 1994

nee h (trcct
MoeesTo, CALtFonNfA »iii<

Corps of Engineers

Department of the Army
650 Capttol Mall

Sacramento, CA 95814

• AOMINISTKATIVE OIVItlON (2OT) S2M$$0
• INGINEENINQ DIVISION (209) S2$-(SS]
BUILDING INSPECTION (]09) SU4S{7
TRANSIT OPERATION (209) S2S.6SS}
ROAD DIVISION (20)) 52S-41M
SANrTARV LANDFILL (201) U7-W00
COUIPMENT DIVISION (209) f2S-<14S
BUILOINO MAINTENANCE (20«) S2S-4tOI

' FAX (209) S2S4S07

Gentlemen:

SUBJECT: Sand Creek Flood Control District - Permit to Clear Vegetation

For your information, the Sand Creek Flood Control District was formed primarily for a
systematic way to accomplish the minor work detailed in the District's permit

The District has on file several studies which were made in cooperation with the

U.S. Department of Agriculture - Soil Conservation Service for the specific purpose of identifying

the need to do the woric as outlined. Substantial flood damage to property and flood hazards to

roadway areas are documented In these studies.

It is hoped that the Corps of Engineers will understand the District's dilemma in this matter.

The District was formed so that sufficient funds would be available to them to perform the minor

work involved. Should the Corps deny the permit or make the requirements and studies so costly

as to restrict the District's ability to comply, then their mission will not t>e accomplished and their

very existence could be severely jeopardized because of possible exposure to liability.

While this may be a small, Insignificant project in the eyes of the Corps, it Is yfiQcimportant

to the landowners involved. It is highly probable that this small ditch was primarily man-made to

carry irrigation tailwater when the use of portions of the land were changed from grazing or dry

farming to irrigated orchards some years ago. I have heard that where the ditch is located now
was really a swale area in the past. Therefore, you may really be applying all of your

requirements to something much less than what the regulations were meant for.

Any consideration which you can give this small District will be very much appredated by

Stanislaus County.

Very truly yours.

H. R. CALLAHAN, Director

HRCrsp
(l:/Servlce«/SandCrek.Cal)
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MICHAEL W. SKENFIELD
BIOLOGICAL CONSULTANT

Rcgif(trcd Profeitional Forester No. 1597

Rcgutered Eovironroental Assuior No. 00057

P.O. Box 747 Murphyi CA 95247

July 17. 1995

S«nd Creek Flood Control District

Attn: Nonna Cordova

3A24 Montpelicr Road

DeiuurCA 95316

Re: June 22, 1995, letter from U.S. FUh aod Wildlife Service;

Subject: FN 199400228

Dear Mrs. Cordova:

During my wetlands delineation ofSand Creek (my report of August, 1994) I found no

Sambucus sp. (Elderberry) shrubs along the banks which are planned for impact.

Since there are no Elderberry shrubs within your proposed project, there if no habitat

for the federally listed valley elderberry iongboro beetle (Desmocerus califomicus

dimorphus).

Sincerely,

Michael W. Skenfield^

Wetlands Coasultant listed vridi Sacramento District. USAGE
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Mr. Nelson. Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Congressman Condit, for this op-

portunity and thank you for having this hearing in the heart of the
San Joaquin Valley.

Our Authority represents 31 districts, predominantly agriculture,

on the west side of the San Joaquin Valley. I cannot imagine any-
one or any area that has been more impacted by Federal regula-

tions other than possibly the timber industry, than the ag lands in

our area.

Over the past several years, these agricultural folks have been
subjected to layers of Federal regulation through the statutes of the
Central Valley Project Improvement Act passage in 1992, the list-

ing of the winter run salmon and delta smelt under the Endan-
gered Species Act—they pretty much happened between 1991 and
1994—and also the Bay-Delta Clean Water Standards under the

Clean Water Act. Not only have they been subjected to the layers

of statutes but also the layers of bureaucracy in the implementa-
tion of these statutes.

We have no less than five Federal agencies currently trying to

implement California water policy and Federal water policy in the
State, including the Bureau of Reclamation, Fish and Wildlife, Na-
tional Marine Fisheries Service, the Environmental Protection

Agency and the Corps of Engineers. The implementation chaos
peaked in 1993 when you literally had field level biologists within
the National Marine Fisheries Service and the Fish and Wildlife,

literally dictating the operations of both the State and the Federal
projects.

This has gotten a little better since the water user-initiated Bay-
Delta Accord that tried to umbrella a lot of these statutes and tried

to make better sense out the way that these statutes were being
implemented. But there are still examples of renegade Federal reg-

ulators wanting to use these statutes as tools to extract more from
the water users.

Impacts: The Federal regulations have cost our water agencies

about 500,000 to 600,000 acre feet in an average year. For exam-
ple, that is enough water to meet the annual water needs of over

one half million five-person families. That is also enough water to

produce over 20 million average servings of tomatoes. The direct

impacts from significant water losses have indirect impacts on
businesses, jobs and economic activity throughout the region and
the State of California.

Land values: We have seen over the last 5 years, a reduction in

values conservatively speaking of about $1,000 per acre that can be
directly attributable to Federal regulations on our water. Over the

million acres or so where it is implemented, that is $1 billion in

equity that this region has lost almost overnight as a result of Fed-

eral regulations. And that is in rural communities that are having
high unemployment as a way of life on an ongoing basis.

There has recently been a report that I would like to refer you
to that has just come out by the California Institute for Rural
Studies. It is called 93640 at Risk and that is about the city of

Mendota. Generally, it spells out real clearly about the impacts on
the rural communities in the west side of the San Joaquin Valley.



60

In closing, I think our goals are not in conflict here. I think we
all want and need to find reasonable and equitable ways of bal-
ancing our environmental needs and our economic impacts. Unfor-
tunately we do have some flawed Federal statutes and some flawed
processes for implementing these statutes. We do need regulatory
relief, but in addition to changing some of these statutes, we also
need a new attitude in our Federal agencies in implementing these
statutes to develop better partnerships with State, local and com-
munities.
Thank you very much.
Mr. McIntosh. Thank you, I appreciate that. In our questioning,

I would like to come back to that report about Mendota and ask
you for a few more details on that. So thank you very much for
your testimony there.

Our final witness on this panel is Mr. Allen Short, who is the
general manager of the Modesto Irrigation District. Thank you for

coming.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Nelson follows:]
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U.S. House of Representative

Government Reform Committee and Oversight Subcommittee on National Economic
Growth, Natural Resources and Regulatory Affairs

Statement presented by

Daniel G. Nebon, Executive Director

San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority

April 1, 1996

Modesto, California

Members of the committee: I am Daniel Nelson, Executive Director of the San Luis &
Delta-Mendota Water Authority, which represents 3 1 water districts covering portions of Kings,

Fresno, Merced, Stanislaus and Santa Clara counties. The Authority represents agricultural,

municipal and industrial, and wildlife refuge and environmental water users in a two-million-acre

regioiL Our water agencies have individual contracts with the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation for the

collective delivery ofover 2.8 million acre-feet ofwater from the Central Valley Project (CVP). We

appreciate the opportunity to provide input on how federal regulations have impacted our diverse

area.

Few, if any, industries have been impacted by federal regulations as much as the water

industry. We can't overstate the significance ofchanges that have occurred in our region resulting

from inconsistent and unbalanced implementation of federal laws. These actions have left our water

customers with continued reductions in water supply and increased water rates -- costly impacts to

fanners and businesses, and ultimately, to you and me as consumers and taxpayers.

In fact, federal regulations cost our water agencies about 500,000 to 600,000 acre-feet in an

average year. For example, that's enough water to meet the annual water needs of over one-half

million, five-person families. (A &mily of five uses about one acre-foot of vrater per year for all of

its domestic needs, including landscaping and washing cars.) That's also enough water to produce

over 20 million average servings oftomatoes. The direct impacts from significant water losses have

41-532 97-3
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indirect impacts on businesses, jobs, and economic activity throughout the region and the state of

California.

Some ofour member agencies have seen reductions ranging from 25 percent to 50 percent -

resulting during non-drought conditions, in large part, from federal regulations. These regulations

include the Central Valley Project Improvement Act (CVPIA), Endangered Species Act (ESA),

Clean Water Act and Bay-Delta water quality standards. Not only have all ofthese provisions taken

water away from our cxistomers, they have removed the assurances ofhaving a reliable, long-term

water supply. More background information is provided in the attached White Paper, "Seeing the

Forest for the Trees."

Federal water contractors must also contend with uncertainty and burdensome

implementation of the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982. Lei's take a specific look at these burdens:

CVPIA

The CVPIA is a poorly written, ambiguous law that called for major changes in operation

ofthe federal CVP water delivery system. The CVPIA directly reallocated over 800,000 acre-feet

ofCVP water for environmental purposes, and required that water users pay $50 million a year into

an environmental restoration fund. Our supply also has been impacted by the CVPlA's provision

that calls for instream releases of 340,000 acre-feet per year for fish restoration and maintenance on

the Trinity River, and increased supplies of about 250,000 acre-feet for refuges. In reality, the

800,000 acre-feet designated for fish and wildlife purposes by the CVPIA has come only from 2.5

million acre-feet contracted to agricultural water service contractors in the Tehama Colusa and Delta

Division service areas - not from the total CVP yield of some seven million acre-fecL

Specifically, the CVPIA's 800,000 acre-feet requirement for environmental improvements

takes water away from water contractors south ofthe Delta - us. While no regulations have yet been
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promulgated, implementation actions by the Department of Interior, have caused water reductions

beginning in 1993. Yet, still today, we have no accounting of where this water is going and how it

has improved the Delta estuary — if, in fact, it has.

The CVPIA also mandates tiered-pricing provisions, and places penalties on water

contracts with longer remaining terms and erodes the certainty of renewal of long-term water

contracts, all of which can have dramatic financial impacts to farms and farm communities.

Endangered Species Act

Fednal actions to protect the winter-run Chinook salmon and Delta smelt unda the ESA also

serve to reduce the available CVP water supply and severely curtail pumping water south of the

Delta. Specifically, the biological opinions issued by the National Marine Fisheries Service require

the CVP to hold large amounts of water in Shasta Reservoir in order to help control water

temperature for salmon spawning, and diversions in the Delta are cut back as well, limiting the

amount ofwater available for human uses.

Clean Water Act ~ Bay-Delta Water Quality Standards

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency proposed its version ofBay-Delta water quality

standards in 1993, based on its bteipretation of the Clean Water Act The EPA's plan would have

required from two to three million acre-feet ofadditional water from the CVP and state water project

to be discharged through the Delta and Bay.

The EPA did not have the authority to implement its plan. >^ch would have been disastrous

for our water users. The State Water Resources Control Board had implementation responsibility,

and the issue was temporarily resolved by the historic December 15. 1994, Bay-Delta Accord,

Through the Accord, state and federal ageiuries and stakeholder groups reached consensus on a plan
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of water commitments required and water quality standards to be met during the Accord's 3-year

term. This Accord reduced our water supply to some extent, but far less than EPA had proposed.

Beyond that term ofthe Accord, the impacts of implementing the Clean Water Act in the Bay-Delta

Estuary are uncertain.

In addition, the Inland Surface Water Plan being developed by the State in order to

implement the Clean Water Act will have huge adverse impacts on the stale's agricultural water usets

if the EPA requires that the Act be used to impose stringent water quality objectives even in

agriculturally-dominated natural channels or in constructed delivery channels and drains.

Reclamation Reform Act of 1982

The Reclamation Reform Act of 1982 (RRA), administered by the Bureau of Reclamation,

imposed significant costs on farmers by increasing water pricing and changing eligibility rules.

Regulations implementing the RRA have created a steady stream ofmandatory paperwork

in the required filing of forms, annually or more frequently in many cases, at a significant cost to

fanners and water districts in time and money. Several major misfires in implementation also have

occurred, including now-abandoned efforts to collect unauthorized "conversion" penalties for forms

violations — whether minor or serious in nature - and the expenditure of over $S million on an

Environmental Impact Study which was shelved because ofa change in administration. A new BIS

has now been done, and some revisions to the regulations are expected.

These events continue to impact the regulated parties directly, as expenditures oftime, funds

and effort are required to respond to changed, inequitable or unauthorized approaches and indirectly

by creating instability in the program and a persistent atmosphere of mistrust of the federal

govenunent
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Impacts of Unbalanced Implementation

Not only are these excessive regulations restricting our water availability and long-term

certainty, equally as frustratiixg are tbe methods and ways these regulations are implemented.

For example, these supply-related regulations have resulted in disproportionate impacts on

our water users. Certain water users - those in our Authority - arc giving up more than they should.

This water year serves as a prime example. While the rest ofthe CVP and state water contractors

are receiving a full supply, the Authority's agricultural water service member-districts are getting a

80 percent supply. The reason - decisions urged by field-level federal employees to hold over

100,000 acre-feet in the Delta to implement fish-doubling provisions ofa drc^ plan developed under

the CVPIA, despite federal agencies' commitment in the Bay-Delta Accord not to harm contractors

by commiting more water to the Delta than the Accord requires.

That leads to another problem. Implementation of many of these federal regulations are

driven fh>m the "bottom - xq)." Specifically, field level employees ofagencies like Fish and Wildlife

Service focus on narrow issues, such as protection of a particular specie. As seen with

implementation ofthe Delta smelt protections in the ESA. these field level employees insist on the

need for implementing operational changes fiivorable to their narrow interests without looking at the

broader picture and considering all of the competing interests. All to often, policy makers are

reluctant to second guess these "e?g)eits'' to make balanced implementation decisions. Flaws in the

language ofCVPIA and ESA allow this to occur, leaving impacted parties with little opportunity for

relief.

This "bottom-up" approach also has caused water transfers to become bogged-down in

bureaucracy. Instead ofbeing advanced by CVPIA, many transfers were stopped by elaborate and

slow processes for approval developed by low-level bureaucrats.
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In addition, there can be conflicting regulations among federal agencies. Prior to the signing

of the historic Bay-Delta Accord m 1994, many agencies had authority over CVP operations

including National Marine Fisheries Service, EPA, Army Corps of Engineers, Bureau of

Reclamation and Fish and Wildlife Service. Although some improvements in coordination have

occurred through the Accord, more improvements can, and should be made.

Another problem with implementation of federal regulations is the "shotgun versus rifle"

approach to addressing environmental concerns. Many of the provisions in the CVPIA and ESA

take an inflexible, broad-brxished approach to address problems, instead of focusing on flexible,

workable, effective fixes. For example, the CVPIA's broad water conservation provisions mandate

that all districts should implement specific water conservation provisions, instead of allowing

Districts to focus on their resources on those conservation practices that are most effective under

local conditions, many ofwhich are already implemented and working.

In closing, there is a need for balanced regulations and consistency in their implementation.

There can be balance in meeting the needs ofthe environment and reducing the adverse impacts to

agricultural and urban water contractors. Many ofthe existing regulations are not balanced, and we

are working to correct that

In the meantime, administrative efforts can help improve coordination among the regulating

agencies, and give the needed assurances that our long-term water supply certainties will be

addressed. We look forward to working with you to achieve this balance.
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SEEING THE FOREST FOR THE TREES

A White Paper on the Factors Behind CVP Water Shortages

BACKGROUND

The past three years have brought ngnificant changes to the manner in which the Central VaDey
Project is operated. As we work on implementing the CVP Improvement Act. the December \SA
Bay/Delta Accord, and the Endangered Species Act, we need to step back and look at the bigger

picture.

The fiindamental reality is that the CVP is today primarily a project for the benefit of fish and

waterfowl We have been told (and reality proved tJus out) that any deliveries to Project contractors

should be considered incidental to the environmental obligations. This is certainly clear on the west

side ofboth the Sacramento and San Joaquin Valleys.

Just look at our circumstance in early March 1996, when we have the best water conditions in a

decade. Carryover storage fi-om 1995 was strong and precipitation has been over 100% ofnormal.

Some reservoirs are full, others have encroached into the food reservation.

At the same time, customers in significant portions ofthe CVP are being told to expect no more than

a 60% supply. That's almost a S0% cut in deliveries at the critical point when fanners are planting

thdr crops and trying to get financing. Obviously, the significance ofthe Project obb'gations for the

environment grows exponentially in below normal and dry years.

The purpose ofthis paper is to remind tlw reader ofthe extraordinary obligations now burdening the

CVP. Furdiermore, it should help in understanding why the following questions are so significant to

the CVP community:

1. WhDe there is broad agreement that environmental issues need to be resolved, is the

current distribution ofthe burden, of the responsibility to meet the goal, equitable?

2. Is there a fiindamental imbalance between our economic and environmental goals,

priorities and actions?

3. Are we making every effort to maximize environmental improvement (solving

problems) while also making every effort to minimize the adverse human economic

and social impacts?
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New CVP Water Supply Commitments:
(Commitments made since 1990)

CVPIA ESA
800,000 a/fEnvironmental Water Winter Run
New Level 2 Refuge Supplies, 2 1 S.OOO a/f Restricted Pumping

Trinity River Increased Outflow

Temperature Control

Carryover Storage

Bay/Delta Delta Snteh

Restricted Pumping Restricted Pumpiqg

Increased Outflow
**

Increased Outflow

Other pending CVP Water Supply Requests / Demands:

•
•
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• On behalf of aO hs contracting districti, the CVP hu taken on the retponAlUty for

Endangered Spedea, Bay/Delu issues, and CVPIA issues.

• The CVP can not meet its firm contractual conunitments & its new "post 90* conunitments
in all but unusually wet years - resulting in shortages.

• The CVP generally allocates shortages based on water contract shoruge provisions. (There
are excqjtions: CVPIA 800,000 a/fFriant exemption; Administrative M&I 2S% impact cap;

Administrative Friant ESA& Bay/Delta exclusion; etc.)

This method ofimplementation results in water delivered to "new CVP commitments' being tak^
from iust the 2.4 milUon a/f ofCVP Af service contractors.

CVP Finn Contracts (a/fx 1000):
Ag

Area -a Service M&I
Refuge

Level 2

Water Rights/

Exchange

Sac River Base Supply
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mKCLUSION

The significance of (he current environmenta] demands on the CVP cannot be understated. The

potential of further demands on the system significantly reallocating Project supplies must also be

examined when trying to see the forest of obligations in the front of the CVP.

Ifwe are inclined to strive for equity and balance in our pursiut of environmental improvement, it

seems we should spend a lot more energy in the following areas:

1. Using (and creating more) administrative flexibility in the execution of the

environmental obligations so as to minimize the adverse water supply impacts.

2. Distributing broadly the responsibility and obGgations to address our environmental

objectiveB.

3. Expanding the ovenll supply ofwater in the CVP to assure that current inequitable

adverse water supply impaa win be reversed.
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Mr. Short. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thank the sub-
committee for the opportunity to come before you.

I would like to put a little different spin on what you have heard
today because being an irrigation district we cover both water and
power, and not only do we cover agricultural, we also cover domes-
tic water service. So what I would like to do today is give you two
or three examples across the board that we have run into from the
Federal perspective that has caused us problems and what we have
done to help mitigate that.

First of all, we just built a surface water treatment facility, it be-
came operational in January of this year. Because of uncertainty
of Federal regulation and our ability to be proactive in trying to an-
ticipate what the Federal folks would to do implement new regu-
latory requirements on our drinking water supply, we included ad-
ditional processes in the treatment train which ultimately cost us
somewhere between $1V2 million and $2^2 million. That is so that
we are ready if water quality regulations get a little bit more strin-

gent. Who is paying for those improvements at this point in time?
Obviously, it is the water rate customer who will foot the bill for

those types of facilities, and again trying to be proactive.
On the electrical side, I have a couple of interesting stories to

talk about. We recently came to an agreement with the Federal En-
ergy Regulatory Commission, if you will, about water flows down
the Tuolumne River. Real briefly, the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission does, through a license of Don Pedro dictate how much
water for fish flows goes down the river.

We were proactive in the early nineties and thought that it

would be best to negotiate an agreement between all the parties,

and that being the environmental community, U.S. Fish and Wild-
life Service, Cal Fish and Game and the city and county of San
Francisco. Unfortunately, we were only able to come to agreement
with the Turlock and Modesto Irrigation Districts and Cal Fish and
Game. We could not get U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. Why? They
thought it was not enough water, it needed to be more. Cal Fish
and Game thought it was OK for the time being, allow it to be im-
plemented to see from that perspective whether we need more or
whether we need less.

In our negotiations, we found several interesting comments that
surfaced. Part of our problem really is salmon and in recovering
the fishery on the Tuolumne River, and part of the problem is pred-
atory fish. When we came up with an idea about getting rid of the
predatory fish, because they are non-native, the primary concern is

that they are or will become an endangered species and we would
have to protect them as well.

From the power side, we just got through installing a trans-
mission line from Phoenix, AZ into California. And as part of that,

we were to mitigate desert tortoises. We spent somewhere in the
neighborhood of $2 to $2V2 million in training folks, conducting
classes and mitigating the disruption of the desert tortoise. And
one of the issues, as you know, is when you install a power pole
or tower, you need to dig into the ground to be able to set the con-
crete to set the pole pads on top.

We were required within a 10 to 15 minute timeframe after we
poured the concrete in the hole to put a netting around the hole

—
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now mind you, it was filled up with concrete, 2V2 feet deep, 6 feet

high—so the desert tortoise would not be stuck in the concrete. The
project also was shut down at times until the tortoise crossed the
road, and finally we were not able to build new roads into some
areas because the Bureau of Land Management said no, we do not
think this is a good idea and would harm the environment. So we
had to fly these poles and all of our equipment in, yet there was
a road 100 feet to the north or 100 feet to the south, they simply
did not want us to use that.

We have mitigated ducks on our Oregon transmission line. We
spend about $3 million a year on an ongoing basis. And we have
also contributed to the spotted owl as well and we, on an ongoing
basis, spend about $100,000 a year mitigating the spotted owl.

So as you can see, we are impacted by the Endangered Species
Act, the Clean Water Act, which has been talked about, and the
Safe Drinking Water Act as well.

With that, I will answer any questions and thank you very much
again.
[The prepared statement of Mr. Short follows:]
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STATEMENT OF ALLEN SHORT. GENERAL MANAGER

THE MODESTO IRRIGATION DISTRICT

BEFORE THE HOUSE GOVERNMENT REFORM AND

OVERSIGHT SUBCOMMITTEE ON

NATIONAL ECONOMIC GROWTH, NATURAL RESOURCES

AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS

APRIL 1. 1996

Mr. Chairman. Members of the Subcommittee. My name is Allen Short and I

am the General Manager of the Modesto Irrigation District (MID). Operations of

the MID are governed by a five member board of directors, each of whom is

elected to represent a speciflc geographical area of the District for a four-year

term. Originally formed as an irrigation district in 1887, MID has evolved into

a multi-purpose utility, supplying farmers with irrigation water, electricity to

businesses and residents and domestic water to the greater Modesto area. MID

has 211 miles of lined irrigation canals and the 2.0 million acre foot capacity

Don Pedro Reservoir and generating facilities owned jointly with Turlock

Irrigation District. MID supplies irrigation water to 65,035 acres which support

orchards, vineyards, vegetables and numerous field crops. MID has self-financed

the construction of all of its facilities except for a portion of the cost of Don

Pedro Dam and Reservoir. Both the U. S. Corps of Engineers and the City and

Coimty of San Francisco participated in fmancing Don Pedro.

1
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MID entered the domestic water market in 1995 with the completion of the

Modesto Regional Water Treatment Plant. This plant is owned by MID and

initially supplied treated sxirface water to the City of Modesto and the Del Bate

Water Company for distribution to their end use customers. During 1995, the

City of Modesto acquired the Del Este Water Company and is now the sole

purchaser of treated water from MID. MID is reimbursed for the cost of owning

and operating the domestic water facilities on a non-profit pass-through basis.

The treatment facilities were designed for an initial capacity of 30 million

gallons per day and will be expanded to an ultimate capacity of 60 million

gallons a day.

MID is an independent agency with little, if any. dependency on the federal

government; that is, the District does not depend on the government for any

subsidies except for the initial Corps of Engineers' contribution for flood control

costs on the Tuolumne River. Yet, many of the laws and rules and regulations

passed by Congress and^or adopted by federal agencies impact District

operations. Following are some examples of the federal laws that have a direct

impact on MID.

SAFE DRINKING WATER ACT

Supports the efforts to restore a much needed balance and focus to the SDWA.

The Safe Drinking Water Act has significant implications for water suppliers

like MID. In its present form, the bill?? (?draft/hame) would modify the way the

EPA conducts risk assessments and increases the use of cost-benefit analyses
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when proposing new regulations. It would also guarantee that all standards

would be subject to sovmd scientiflc information methodologies.

ENDANGERED SPECIES ACT

The federal Endangered Species Act has caused great concern in California.

MID recognizes the need to establish a recovery plan that is based on good

science and reasonable targets for the protection of various species. However,

there must also be a good plan for delisting species once they have been listed

and recovered. Furthermore, the District supports those reform measures that

will result in a more balanced approach, again emphasizing sound science and

economic risVbenefit assessment. We support the efforts of the Association of

California Water Agencies, and others, who are endorsing legislative measures to

bring this balanced approach to the Endangered Species Act.

FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION

MID, along with many others, recently completed negotiations for increasing

minimum instream flows in the lower Tuolumne River in order to protect

chinook salmon which spawn in the river. We look forward to FERC's adoption

of the negotiated settlement.

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD

In regard to flows, MID is currently involved in negotiations regarding San

Francisco Bay, Sacramentc/San Joaquin Estuary issues. The District fully

recognizes the importance of the Sacramentf^San Joaquin Delta and its role in

California's complex water system. We support the urgent need to identify long-
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term Bolutions that will ultimately enable the state to balance the needs of the

Delta with those of agriculture and people. Theue identlRed solutions must,

however, be based on good science and allocation of responsibility, must be based

on either negotiated solutions or long held state water rights, area of origin and

watershed protection laws.

Mr. Chairman, and members of the Committee, we greatly appreciate the

opportunity to present our point of view on these important issues.
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Mr. McIntosh. Great. Thank you very much, I appreciate that
testimony on all of those issues.

I have a couple of questions, in no particular order, and in fact,

Mr. Short, I may start with you just because you just recently trig-

gered something. Who ends up paying for the $2 to $2V2 million

for the desert transmission and the $4 million for the different

parts of the endangered species in Oregon? I mean, is that some-
thing the company ends up absorbing or how is that dealt with?
Mr. Short. Well, we obviously end up paying for it but we cer-

tainly pass it along in our rate base to recover the costs that it

costs to do business. So the consumer ends up paying for the miti-

gation activities and the operation of those facilities.

Mr. McIntosh. So if you could mitigate in a less expensive man-
ner, you can pass that savings on to your ratepayers.

Mr. Short. Absolutely.

Mr. McIntosh. And still protect the environment.
Mr. Short. Absolutely. Let me add that the District is very envi-

ronmentally sensitive. We have spent about $10 million over the
last 12 years studying the fishery habitat on the Tuolumne River.

So we are very sensitive to environmental concerns and causes.

Mr. McIntosh. Another area that I wanted to explore with you
when you were mentioning the predatory fish, if there were pro-

grams developed to protect the salmon that created financial incen-

tives for people along the river, to encourage that either by elimi-

nating the predators or providing the access, would that work to

help facilitate the preservation of those species?

Mr. Short. Well, I think there are a couple of issues with that.

One is the predatory fish are a concern and since they are non-na-
tive, some of us, although being biologically sensitive, would like to

see them go since they are non-native to the particular area. The
other issue that needs to be addressed as well, and we are address-

ing that, is the environment of the river itself. And by that I mean
there have been some alterations of the river stream, there have
been some holes in the river stream in which these types of preda-

tory fish tend to live. So if you get rid of that or fix that, that tends

then to mitigate the predatory fish. And then again, from an incen-

tive perspective, we need a list of issues from that perspective.

Mr. McIntosh. OK, thank you.

Mr. Short. Thank you.
Mr. McIntosh. Mr. Roberts, I wanted to commend you on the

initiative that your industry took early on—as you put it, no good
deed goes unpunished—^but to take the initiative in order to correct

what was a very serious environmental problem, it sounds like

from your testimony, and to be able to effectively eliminate that

through different practices in your industry, I think is something
that we should commend and hold up as an example of how the

private sector is environmentally conscious and willing to take the

measures that are needed for that.

And Gary's bill is moving forward. In your testimony, that I

think you did not have time to get to, you referred to some changes
that EPA wanted that would have effectively reduced the good that

that bill would do. I take it from your testimony, you think we
should resist making any of those changes as it goes through Con-
gress, is that correct?
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Mr, Roberts. Absolutely. We just believe it undoes the spirit of

what Congressman Condit has tried to achieve through the bill.

Mr. McIntosh. It sounded to me—and I think those points were
very well taken. I think we should maybe take that back to the
Corrections committee and let them know about that.

One last question. On the Mendota report, did they look at any
of the impact on the loss of jobs or loss of economic opportunity on
people's lives in the community there?
Mr. Nelson. Yes, they did. It was a 6-year study directed, again,

at the community of Mendota, which has a population of about
7,000, and again it focused on the agricultural economy impacts of

rural communities as a result of new water policies. And it did go
into their analysis of unemployment, increased unemployment, et

cetera, as a result of the policies.

Mr. McIntosh. Did it extrapolate to any of the costs to the gov-

ernment? When you have higher unemployment, you have to pay
for unemployment services and health care and so on.

Mr. Nelson. No. It refers to that, but it does not quantify it. It

refers to that as sort of a third-party impact or an indirect cost.

Mr. McIntosh. And the taxpayer ends up pajdng for it twice.

Mr. Nelson. That is correct.

Mr. McIntosh. OK. I would be very interested in that report if

that would be available to take a look at.

Mr. Nelson. Yes, I will make copies available to the committee.
Mr. McIntosh. That would be great. Thank you.

I have no further questions for this panel. Gary, do you have
Mr. Condit. I would just say to John, we will continue to mon-

itor what we have done with the Corrections Day bill and we know
we have some difficulties with EPA and their end, but we will con-

tinue to work with that and I know David will pursue that with
us.

I would ask Norma—maybe she covered this, I had to step out
for a moment—^what the cost was, I understand you had to hire a
consultant to go through all this.

Ms. Cordova. Right. Direct cost to our District would include the

$3,000 for the wetlands consultant that we retained, $100 to secure
the Army Corps of Engineers 404 permit. Other indirect costs

which are really difficult to pinpoint because the board members

—

we have a five-member board and we serve voluntarily without
compensation, we do not have a support staff to do our typing or

our mailings and things like that—so we have a lot of indirect costs

that would be really difficult to substantiate but I would put a fig-

ure on all of that work at approximately—including the cost of the
consulting work—at approximately $15,000. And a lot of that is un-
substantiated because of people who voluntarily made phone calls,

who made personal contacts, who did copy work, you know, who
did all of the legwork and so on to expedite our effort.

Mr. Condit. What was the time it took?
Ms. Cordova. Well, actually when we first heard that Sand

Creek was subject to the Army Corps of Engineers' jurisdiction,

which was March 1994, this all culminated then at the end of Au-
gust 1995 when we actually secured our permit. And I want to

stress again, we would not have secured that permit except for

Congressman Condit's efforts to expedite the process with pressure
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on the Army Corps to do this, and also the March 1995 flood which
created a Federal disaster in Stanislaus County.
Mr. McIntosh. So you had an act of God and an act of Gary
Ms. Cordova. Right. [Laughter.]
Mr. McIntosh [continuing]. Combined to get the right thing

done.
You had mentioned in your testimony that your annual budget

is about $3,200, so on just the hard costs of a little over $3,000,
it doubled your budget as a result of that.

Ms. Cordova. That is correct. We are a very small district, we
are strictly on assessment on the tax rolls. We assess in a two level

structure where the upper watershed area is assessed at 23 cents
an acre and the lower watershed is assessed at 40 cents an acre,

which brings an annual revenue of approximately $3,200 for our
small flood control district. So we are a very small, small peanuts
compared to many of the witnesses who have testified today.
Mr. CONDIT. If I may, David, I would like to just clarify some-

thing with John Roberts.
Is it not true that the standards of the Clean Water Act will still

apply to the discharge of water into rivers and streams? Is that cor-

rect?

Mr. Roberts. I am sorry, I did not understand the question.
Mr. CONDIT. Is it true that the standards of the Clean Water Act

will still apply to the discharge of water into rivers and streams?
Mr. Roberts. Yes, absolutely. In other words, we like to say that

if the structures that we have built in order to protect natural
water bodies are protective of downstream uses, those are not vio-

lated, those continue to be protected.

Mr. CONDIT. I just wanted to clarify that.

And for Dan and Allen, I meet with those two guys regularly, so

I just want to thank them very much for being here.

Mr. McIntosh. I thank all of you, I appreciate this. And your
testimony will be very helpful to us in this. Thank you for coming.

Let us move now to our third panel of witnesses, which is the
impact of regulations on agriculture here in the Central Valley,

And Gary, while they are coming forward, refresh my memory, it

is an incredible percentage of the Nation's agricultural product that
comes from the Central Valley here and I do not know the numbers
but I have always been impressed at the productivity and the enor-
mous amount of resources and diversity that is in the agriculture

industry here.

Mr. CONDIT. David, you are in probably the most productive part
of the country right here in the Central Valley of California. In my
particular Congressional region, we produce 250 commodities, most
of them specialty crops. You see many of them right here in front

of you: the apricots, almonds—^the apricot lady is here now or she
was here just a minute ago. Most of them are specialty crops.

Water is very important to us. Burdensome regulation takes away
the ability for these people to farm, and as I said earlier, this is

kind of where the rubber meets the road. Regulation really impacts
the Central Valley because agriculture is the economy of the valley

and whether it is pesticide, whether it is water regulation, endan-
gered species—unchecked, over-burdensome regulation will abso-

lutely destroy the economy of this Central Valley. And so we are
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very productive, God has blessed the Central Valley, he has al-

lowed us to have some water, we are trying to keep some of it. So
you are in a great place.

I know you come from a great place too, but we are all very
proud of the Central Valley and glad to live here.

Mr. McIntosh. You ought to be.

If the panel would please rise and repeat after me.
[Witnesses sworn.]
Mr. McIntosh. Thank you. Let the record show that each of the

witnesses answered in the affirmative.

Our first witness on this panel today is Mr. Roger Wood, who is

the corporate vice president of J.R. Wood Co. Mr. Wood, thank you
for coming forward today.

STATEMENTS OF ROGER WOOD, CORPORATE VICE PRESI-
DENT, J.R WOOD CO.; CAROLYN RICHARDSON, ASSOCIATE
COUNSEL, CALIFORNIA FARM BUREAU; AND MANUEL
CUNHA, PRESIDENT, NISEI FARMERS' LEAGUE
Mr. Wood. Thank you. Congressman Mcintosh and also Con-

gressman Condit, for allowing us to speak today on regulatory re-

form. It is a tremendously challenging issue for us.

I am the vice president of our company. Our company is a family
owned company. We are a large family owned company I guess you
would call us. We were started back in 1919 when my father came
here. We were just a farm in those days—peaches, apricots, grapes,
sweet potatoes. My brother came back after World War II and ex-
panded the agriculture part of the operation, and in 1966 I came
back, and in 1970 a couple of his children came back, and so we
now have kind of four generations working on the place.

In 1968, we got into the food processing business, which makes
us quite different from most farmers. Most farmers, we produce our
crops and rely on someone else to take care of them after we
produce them. We were involved in the fresh market and now we
are involved in processing. As such, we kind of have problems on
both sides of the fence, both in agriculture and otherwise.

I thought what I would do today is give you three examples with-
in our own company of different little regulatory problems. I could
tell you another 10, but 3 is plenty for our little presentation here.
The first one involved pesticide regulation, which is always a

challenge. In California, most of our crops are minor crops, almost
every fruit and vegetable crop that we have here is a minor crop,
but they are major crops in California. One of our managers farms
boysenberries. The whole U.S. crop is 700 acres or something like

that, we have 200 in California. He raises 75, he thinks he's the
biggest boysenberry grower in the United States.

Last year with our wet winter, we had an extremely wet winter
for a change and got rid of our drought. And we caught downy mil-
dew all over California in a number of crops. Grapes were one of
the more noticeable ones. And when you catch downy mildew, it is

usually a pretty simple problem, you put a chemical called Ridomil
on it. The only trouble for boysenberry growers, is that boysen-
berries are so small a crop, the Ridomil manufacturer never both-
ered to put boysenberries on its label. And so while everybody else
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sprayed Ridomil and got rid of downy mildew relatively easily, our
boysenberry farmer lost a couple hundred thousand dollars.

The Ridomil problem even goes on beyond that because it is used
in New Zealand, one of the competitors for California boysen-
berries, and the New Zealand people can use it and even the Unit-
ed States Government allows a tolerance on boysenberries coming
into the United States, but there is no allowance to use it in Cali-

fornia. And again, Ridomil is a commonly used chemical, used on
many other fruits and vegetables, both for downy mildew and other
diseases, fungus diseases. But he couldn't use it and so he sus-
tained a big loss. The solution is to allow registrations on groups
of crops and not be so particular about each one.

We had another issue with spray paint cans and hazardous
waste that I think is kind of interesting. We got started going to

make sure we handled hazardous waste correctly and we found
that empty spray paint cans were hazardous waste and we were
having to put them in barrels and send them off to hazardous
waste dumps. It cost us $600 a barrel to send out spray cans. We
had to admonish everybody to handle them right. As we got going,
we screamed and hollered about such a ridiculous thing because at

home we could throw them in the trashcan. Later someone decided
that if you poked a hole in the can it was not hazardous any more
and now we do not have to do that. Now why somebody figured it

out a year and a half after we had saved those things at $600 a
pop, I will never know.
We also had an interesting problem with air pollution credits. We

had a plant that we rented in Escalon, a town near Modesto here.

It had a boiler in it. Our landlord decided he wanted to sell the
plant and so we wanted to move the boiler to our Atwater plant
to put it to work there. We were first told by the air people that
we could just move it down there and change the name. Later they
decided that was too easy and what we had to do was close it in

Escalon, which meant that you got credits for air pollution. But
they discount those credits, so instead of getting 100 credits, we got
like maybe 90 for this same boiler that needed 100 credits. The
boiler was a high tech boiler, met all the standards.
When we brought it to Atwater, then it got discounted because

we were going to use the credits, so instead of 90, now we had
maybe 80. And then because Atwater was 40 miles away from
Escalon, it got discounted some more. And so what we did was to

take a boiler and just move it within our company even, and within
the same air district, within the same regional air district, and we
had to use up a whole bunch of air pollution credits to move the
same boiler from one place to another.

I think the one thing that all of this has done, in the regulatory
thing, is created a new industry of regulators, of consultants for

regulation. And if there is any employment you want to look at,

there has certainly been an increase in employment in consultants
for regulators. We hire them to show us how to do all this stuff.

And that is the new industry. They do not produce anything, but
they certainly use up a lot of money and time.

All we hope for in our area is sound science and peer review on
the regulations and I think we could live with them just fine.

Thank you very much.
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Mr. McIntosh. Thank you, I appreciate that and we will get into

this more in the questioning. But ironically when I was working
with Vice President Quayle in a prior life, we actually spent a good
deal of time debating with EPA about whether you could define the

same company for purposes of the clean air as being one entity.

And we ended up losing that one after the Bush administration lost

the election and they went back to define each site as a separate

emitter and, as a result, you have to pay when you move from one
facility to the next. That brought back memories of very long, tedi-

ous debates with the EPA people about the ridiculous outcomes like

the one you explained that would result from that. Our predictions

were correct, unfortunately. Thank you for mentioning that.

Our next witness in this panel is Ms. Caroljni Richardson, who
is the associate counsel with the California Farm Bureau. Thank
you for coming, Ms. Richardson.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Wood follows:]
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J.R. WOOD, INC.
"Frozen Fruit — Cold Storage"

Congress of the United States

House of Representatives

Committee on Government Reform and Oversight

Subcommittee on National Economic Growth,

Natural Resources, and Regulatory Affairs

Testimony on April 1, 1996 at Modesto California from:

Mr. Roger Wood

Vice President of JR. Wood, Inc.

7916 West Bellevue Road

Atwater, California 95301

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Sub Committee:

Thank you for the opportunity to voice our concerns for the environment and business in

California. There are several areas that I wish to cover that I consider crucial issues for

business survival in our state.

I am Mr. Roger Wood, Vice President of JR. Wood, Inc. We are a fourth generation

family owned company that was started as Wood Fruit Company in 1 9 1 9 by my father

Elmer Wood.

We began as a farmer of peaches, apricots, grapes and sweet potatoes. We expanded our

acreage when my brother Jim, who is our president, joined my father after World War II.

I began to work for the company in 1966 and Jim's son and daughter joined in 1970 Our

7916 WEST BELLEVUE ROAD • P.O. BOX 545 • ATWATER, CALIFORNIA 95301 • 209-358-5643
FAX: ADMINISTRATION 209-358-41 97 FAX: PURCHASING 209-358-8497 FAX: TRAFFIC 209-358-3266
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farming operation today has expanded to 2000 acres. Peaches are our main crop with

apricots and grapes.

We began freezing peaches in 1968. We have expanded our frozen line to include other

fruits, berries and many California vegetables. We now have our main plant in Atwater

and a second plant in Sanger, California. Our 1995 Atwater plant expansion added juice

concentrates to our product line. Our fleet of 50 trucks handles most of our raw product

and ingredient transportation . We also haul some of our finished product to California

and Pacific Northwest customers.

Our 1995 payroll was $27 million with about 1200 people in the winter and 2400 during

the busy summer season. We produced 130 million pounds of product last year and

expect to do much more this year.

Our company has been an innovator in the use of new technologies. We were the first in

our area to use drip irrigation which has decreased our use of water and fertilizers. Our

farm managers have used integrated pest management for many years We designed a bio-

mass process for our process waste water disposal needs. We feed our cattle hay that is

grown with the plant's treated process water. Our cattle also are fed the by-products from

our fiiiit and vegetable processing. J.R. Wood is committed to be a part of the solution,

not part of the problem.

The tremendous growth in regulations has really been a challenge for our company. We

are big enough so that we never qualify for any of the small business exemptions. We

have worked hard to try and comply with all of them. We have had to dedicate several

employees along with consultants to keep our company current and in compliance. The

many costs associated with this regulatory revolution have been absorbed by our company

or passed on to our customers in the form of higher prices.

One example of the regulatory confusion that we have experienced is the disposal of

common small spray paint cans. We first were told that all empties were hazardous waste.

Our hazardous waste management was admonishing our maintenance staff to be sure and

put them in the specially marked disposal containers Then they were trucked off to an
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expensive hazardous waste treatment facility for disposal, just like if they were some

highly toxic industrial waste. Each barrel of these cans cost $600 to properly transport

and dispose.

We complained loudly that we had to spend $600 and more to collect and dispose of a

barrel of empty cans while at home we can send them out with our regular garbage. Some

regulator finally decided that if you puncture the can it will miraculously become a non-

hazardous waste. My question is why did we ever have the hazardous waste collection

regulation if puncturing the can was the solution.

With this in mind, the first area of concern I wish to stress today is air quality in the

California Central Valley. The federal Title III, Title V and Risk Management Plan (RMP)

programs are currently under development in California Our state is seeking equivalency

with the federal programs and is working closely with the federal Environmental

Protection Agency (EPA) on several issues. However, certain issues in this process raise

concern with businesses in California.

We have two programs in California that address the concerns of the RMP, the Risk

Management and Prevention Plan (RMPP) and the Cal-OSHA Process Safety

Management (PSM) program. Developing these programs is a tedious process that costs

thousands of dollars in consulting, employee and management time. Implementing an

RMPP & PSM program with the enveloping regulations is a tremendous commitment for

any company. In fact these regulations have created a whole new industry of consultants

to assist companies like ours to comply with these detailed regulations.

These issues are fiirther complicated by the overlapping and duplicative federal mandates

under section 112 of the amendments to the Clean Air Act (CAA). Due to the

comprehensive programs that are in place in California, the federal RMP should allow for

equivalency of our state programs. The federal RMP is a reporting tool that should allow

exemptions for the various states that have already implemented a risk management

regulation.

41-532 97-4
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My next issue addresses the future growth of business in California. The federal

government pressure on the various air districts in Region IX is considerably worse than

other parts of the country. This uneven playing field provides a significant economic and

strategic advantage to other businesses in the United States and particularly overseas

interests.

The myriad of rules being developed by our air district are mandated by the federal EPA

due to our status as a serious non-attainment area for ozone. Due to this designation the

federal EPA has mandated that a specific number of rules must be implemented each year,

regardless of the science, socio-economic impact or the effectiveness. This policy forces

the air district to promulgate rules and regulations without a sound basis in established

reliable scientific fact.

A prime example of this is Regulation VIII for control of particulate matter below 10

microns (PMI^). The current draft of these proposed regulations is based on data

provided by the federal EPA on crops that were studied in other areas of the country.

While this data may reflect the farming practices in other parts of our great nation, they do

not reflect our agricultural management here in California. After reviewing the data

supplied by federal EPA the affected industries in California recognized the lack of a

sound scientific basis and the need for information that reflected our agricultural practices.

Therefore, a group of farmers and concerned individuals got together and raised money to

initiate a study of this problem. With the help of federal funding they initiated a study of

this problem at the University of CaUfomia at Davis (UC Davis). This report will bring

valuable information to light identifying the critical components of dust control and the

Best Available Control Measures (BACM) to be implemented in the Valley. However, the

federal EPA is forcing a timeline that is causing the air district to act prior to the

completion of this relevant study.

We in the regulated community have always supported sound environmental practices, but

if regulators are forced to develop rules which are premature without a basis in good

science then we must raise a voice of protest. The federal EPA should review this

situation and take notice of the efforts that we are making to bring sound advise and

guidelines to the table.
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Next is the issue of Emission Reduction Credits (ERC's) and the expansion of businesses

in California. As business and local governments attempt to expand, a requirement will be

forced upon us to provide offsets for air pollution contaminants. These offsets are earned

by the closure of existing units or the banking of emissions reduction credits Emissions

reductions credits are earned when an emissions unit installs technology and maintains

emissions below the current emissions level. When the offset level has been determined

the credit can then be "banked" in our current system The district automatically discounts

the credits when they are placed in the bank and they are further discounted when they are

removed. The credits are also discounted at the new unit location depending on the

distance from the original source.

This banking system is under fire from the federal EPA. Many businesses in California are

concerned that we may loose existing credits and all of us wonder how expensive

expansion will be in the future. A secure economic fliture must allow for the expansion of

existing business and the establishment of new business. With this current system it will

become more and more difficult for business to expand without committing valuable

capital resources that could be allocated for personnel, equipment or other expansion

needs

As an example of this, the City of Stockton is in search of credits to offset the expansion

of the waste water treatment plant cogeneration facility. The use of air credits by this

municipal entity eliminates credits from the bank, raising the value and costs of credits and

forcing an economic disadvantage upon California business.

Another example of the hardship to California business is the recent offset requirement

forced upon JR. Wood. Our landlord for our Escalon plant wanted to sell the property.

When then consolidated our operations by closing Escalon, we moved our production

equipment approximately 40 miles south to our Atwater Facility This relocation included

moving a medium sized boiler used to support our production equipment. This boiler was

fijlly licensed and permitted in the Escalon location and met all emissions requirements.

Please note that both Escalon and Atwater are not only in the same state (California), but

in the same air district (SJVUAPCD) and further in the same regional office of that air
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district (Northern). Wlien we originally contacted the air district about this move (well in

advance) we were advised that it was a simple matter of changing the address on the

permit.

However, upon moving the boiler we discovered far different requirements. Not only do

we have to offset the boiler emissions but we now must also conduct source testing for

this unit.

Upon determination of the proper procedure, the Escalon permit for this unit was closed.

We then filed for an Authority to Construct Permit to move it to the Atwater Facility.

Now at our Atwater facility we must offset the emissions by using some of our precious

air credits and conduct source testing. All of this on an existing unit that operated in the

same area of the district.

The rationale used by the air district was the requirements of the New Source Review

(NSR) and the anticipated restriction from the federal EPA. By closing our permit in

Escalon and forcing us to "bank" the credits we automatically are penalized for moving

our own equipment. Upon entering credits in the bank an automatic 10% reduction is

taken by the district. To compound the injury the district then discounts the credits fijrther

depending on the distance from the original source location. On the bottom line, our

company was required to offset emissions for our own unit just for changing the address.

These tactics are used by the district to meet the significant commitments for reduction of

pollutants made in the State Implementation Plan (SIP) and the Federal Implementation

Plan (FIP). These actions are being questioned by the federal EPA and pose a serious

threat to business in California. Under these regulations California will no longer be

competitive with the rest of the nation or the world.

As the air district finds it more and more difficult to provide reductions to meet the SIP,

the inevitable strategy will be to fijrther regulate "stationary or point" sources PM'^,

reactive organic gases (ROG), volatile organic compounds (VOC), ozone precursors, and

even carbon monoxide (CO) will be designated in the point source rule development for

the air district before the end of 1996.
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This enforcement strategy disregards the cost effectiveness of these regulations and the

subsequent minor eflect to improving the environment. The socioeconomic impacts to the

California economy and the devastating effect in the business community are a formula for

disaster. As companies are faced with limited expansion potential many will follow the

trend to relocate or expand outside California, thus eroding our economic base.

This plethora of new njles is targeted directly at California business since the air district is

restricted from regulating the largest generating source of air pollutants in our state,

automobile exhaust and mobile sources. Since the air district is unable to regulate mobile

source emissions they continue to squeeze the life blood from business, pushing many

companies out of the state. The regulators in California continue to extract the toll from

business to accomplish the air pollution reduction targets specified in the SIP

While these issues may seem to be California state issues, the root cause is the mandates

prescribed by the federal EPA Our air district is citing the requirements stipulated by the

federal EPA as the reasoning for their actions. If business is to survive in California, the

federal EPA, and specifically Region IX, must open communication lines with the local

districts and heed the outcry from our business community. A close relationship must be

forged with the federal EPA and the local districts that includes input from the business

community The continued regulation promulgation without regard for substance or good

science is a disastrous course for our state and national economies

Another concern for business in California is the issue of audit disclosures Under the

current system, if a we conduct an audit of the environmental management and operations

we are obligated to record all discrepancies and keep them on file for various agency

review, including the USEPA. If the EPA should review the files and discover a violation

identified in our audit reports, they can issue a violation citation, fine us and further

prosecute the matter, whether the problem has been corrected or not.

When we conduct an audit of our system, our intent is to have a clear picture of the

current status of our programs. We want the audit to identify our successful programs,

program strengths, weaknesses and the areas that need correction. This punitive

enforcement action taken on our own identification of the problems is a negative
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reinforcement that discourages implementation of an auditing program that will identify

vital information.

All of the above examples illustrate how we have lost sight of the purpose and have

become entwined in the bureaucracy of the institutions that we have created. Another

example of this is the difficuhy of getting chemicals registered for use on the various fruit

and vegetable crops grown in California.

Boysenberries are a prime example of this type of regulation problem. Boysenberries are

regarded as less than a minor crop, there are approximately 200 acres in California and

500 acres in Oregon. One of my managers farms 75 acres in California and may be the

largest single boysenberry grower in the United States.

With such small planted acreage no chemical company wants to spend money to get

products registered for this crop Boysenberries are a cross between a blackberry and a

raspberry, and as a result seem to be susceptible to many of the disease problems of the

parent species. The California Department of Food and Agricuhure (CDFA) considers

boysenberries to be a form of a blackberry and therefore allows chemicals registered on

blackberries to be used on boysenberries. Raspberries are susceptible to Downy Mildew

while most blackberries are not. Unfortunately, boysenberries have inherited this

susceptibility.

Downy Mildew affects many different crops such as raspberries, grapes, honeydew,

cantaloupe, pumpkin, broccoli and hops. Downy Mildew is not considered a significant

problem since the grower can use Ridomil to abate this flingus. Ridomil is registered to

combat Downy Mildew and various other fungal diseases for each of the above referenced

crops. Ridomil is also registered on many other crops for various other fiingal diseases.

Last year we experienced a significantly wet spring providing an exceptional environment

for the formation of Downy Mildew. The California boysenberry crop contracted Downy

Mildew and the growers could not spray with Ridomil since it is not registered for

blackberries, and thus was not allowed to be sprayed on boysenberries.
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The subsequent losses ranged from 50% to 85% of normal crop yields. A boysenberry

patch will normally yield about 7000 pounds per acre with the fruit worth fifty cents a

pound. My manager estimates his loss at $200,000 dollars last year by not being able to

apply Ridomil.

This entire fiasco did not have to occur. New Zealand, the worlds largest producer of

boysenberries, regularly experiences wet weather during their spring season New Zealand

authorizes the use of Ridomil for their boysenberry crops.

Unfortunately the growers losses in 1995 weren't first time that boysenberry growers were

the victim of our cumbersome pesticide regulations. Several years ago because of an

outbreak ofDowny Mildew in the California boysenberry crops, some boysenberries were

imported from New Zealand. These imported berries were tested by the United States

Food and Drug Administration and were found to contain Ridomil residue .After some

discussion between governments it was decided to allow these berries into the United

States because the residue amount was lower than the amount allowed on some other

crops. This action was grossly unfair to two boysenberry growers who were bankrupted

by the severe losses they incurred when they could not use Ridomil to control their Downy

Mildew infestations.

My manager has worked since July of 1995 to get Ridomil registered in the United States

for application on boysenberries On approximately March 15, 1996 he received

temporary registration from the federal EPA and the CDFA I wonder if my employee

would have been successflil in his request had he not suffered his terrible loss Today, he

continues in his efforts towards permanent registry In a conversation with Ciba Geigy,

the manufacturer of Ridomil, he was advised that the federal EPA stated that they had

given temporary registration, why worry about permanent registration now'' This attitude

retlects a very short sighted view of these events

There is currently a proposal before the government to group similar crops together for

pesticide registration By grouping crops of similar types a company can amonize the

expense of pesticide registration over several crops. Boysenberries are just one of the

crops that would benefit from this philosophy.
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With third world countries becoming more proficient in their agricultural procedures, it is

going to become important to keep the United States on the leading edge of technology.

Otherwise the jobs related to these products and the economic base will dissolve.

Chemical registration reform in the federal system is a necessary step in helping to keep

United States agriculture viable in the future.

The California Department ofFood and Agriculture recently staged a four day symposium

in San Francisco on pesticide residue testing. We sent the head of our laboratory to

attend. She reported that there were representatives from Chile, Mexico, Canada, Japan

Korea. Sweden and England who gave presentations on their countries' pesticide

regulations The United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) had a staff

member scheduled to speak. The talk was canceled because the agency's travel budget

had been cut. Our employee felt the USEPA missed an opportunity to learn what other

countries are doing and to share with them what we are doing.

In conclusion I want to thank you for this opportunity to express some of our regulatory

concerns. We appreciate all of your efforts and continued commitment to improving our

environment and maintaining a viable business atmosphere.

Sincerely,

Roger Wood

Vice President

J R Wood. Inc.

WCB/bb

cc: Environmental Correspondence File
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Ms. Richardson. Thank you for having me.
I will present testimony here from other members of problems we

are having under the Clean Water Act and the Endangered Species
Act. Those problems have not abated; if anything, they have in-

creased since last year's hearings.
I would like to tell you about one particular case that is just

north of us in Butte County, north of us in Sacramento and Butte
County. This gentleman does not want his name used at this point
because he is almost, he thinks, ready to get his permit. You have
heard other testimony here and you will probably hear more, that
the agencies we are talking about here, the Corps of Engineers and
the Fish and Wildlife Service, are not only arrogant, arbitrary, but
they are also vindictive. His concern is justifiable.

So let me just tell you about him and call him our member. Our
member came to this country with his family from Laos when he
was 16, he is now 35. They settled in the Salinas area and they
started growing strawberries on leased lands. We call strawberries

our bootstrap crop. If you have a good-sized family, a lot of ability

to work hard, you can make a good living on strawberries on leased

lands and you can work yourself into being a landowner. It is a tre-

mendous example of the American opportunity.
They did save their money, they transported themselves to Butte

County to look for land that they could afford to buy. Salinas area
land is out of question. They found a piece of property of about 20
acres in Butte County. It was a very hard-to-farm piece of property,

but something a fellow with a lot of initiative and real drive could

probably make into strawberry land. It is bordered on two sides by
major highways, it has a canal cutting across it. It is a really hard-
to-farm piece of property, it is a hand-farm piece of property.

So he bought it, it was agriculturally zoned, you cannot do any-

thing with it except put it in agriculture. It is surrounded by rice

lands. He went through the process of getting encroachment ease-

ments from Cal Trans and the canal owner.
He hired a contractor to level it. This land had been in rice some

16 years ago and has been in pasture because it is such a darned
hard piece of property to farm. So he hired a contractor to go in

and start leveling it and working on it. And this kind of ground
prep takes some time. There were people on that property quite a

few times. His name and address were well known to any agency
that had an interest in him. But lo and behold after the leveling

began, after the investment had been sunk into the property. Fish

and Wildlife Service appeared on the property with badges and told

the contractor that this was violating the Endangered Species Act,

he could go to jail and would be subject to massive civil fines. Of
course, that stopped the leveling.

The supposed endangered species on the property was fairy

shrimp. So the property owner had to invest in biological surveys

to find out if indeed fairy shrimp were on the property. Lo and be-

hold, this is probably the only piece of property in the Central Val-

ley where there are not fairy shrimp. This did not satisfy the Fish

and Wildlife Service.

You have heard about regulatory whiplashing that our members
are subjected to. They turned it over to the Corps of Engineers be-

cause if there were not fairy shrimp on the property, they were
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darned sure there were vernal pools on the property. Sure enough,
the Corps of Engineers found vernal pools on the property and this

man has now gone through 2 years of administrative nightmare in

trying to get a permit on his property. They have lost his paper-
work, they have rejected his paperwork because the drawings were
not quite to scale. This is absolutely outrageous bureaucratic
abuse.
They have finally announced that they are going to give him a

permit. Mind you, this is a 20-acre piece of property, the only ver-

nal pool features on it are artifacts of earlier farming—an old canal
that no longer serves a function and some old rice checks. There
is nothing natural on this property. They are taking 7 acres of it

for mitigation, almost a third of the property. And he is going to

be required to maintain it in perpetuity.

He came to this country because it was the land of opportunity
and he was seeking refuge from governmental abuse. And I wonder
if he found it here.

We have more problems like this, multiply it 10-fold under the
Endangered Species Act. And we have tried to stop naysa5dng and
start working actively for some sort of a cooperative solution to the
problem with our governmental agencies. We, meaning Farm Bu-
reau, have presented to the Fish and Wildlife Service last week a
proposal for what we call a cooperative solution, local cooperation,
working partners for farming under the Endangered Species Act. I

have attached to my testimony a pretty thorough outline of our
proposal and what I would like is your assistance in talking to the
President or anyone who will listen, to make Fish and Wildlife

Service understand that they have the flexibility to try new solu-

tions like this, a pilot program for routine agricultural operations
in the Central Valley. It would create the kind of floor of security
against prosecution that our folks need before they can engage in
any active habitat enhancement on their property.
Thank you.
Mr. McIntosh. Thank you very much. I would be very interested

in working on that. We will take a look at it with Gary and see
what we can do in furthering that type of proposal. Because 1 think
those innovative approaches are what is needed in this day. I think
frankly we will do a better job, a cleaner job than our whole envi-

ronmental record.

Our final witness on this panel is Mr. Manuel Cunha, who is

president of Nisei Farmers League. Thank you for joining us.

[The prepared statement of Ms. Richardson follows:]
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TESTIMONY OF
CALIFORNIA FARM BUREAU FEDERATION

SUBMITTED TO
THE HOUSE OP REPRESENTATIVES

COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT REFORM AND OVERSIGHT
SUBCOMMITTEE ON NATIONAL ECONOMIC GROWTH, NATURAL

RESOURCES AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS
APRIL 1. 1996

Chairman and members of the House Subcommittee on National Economic
Growth, Natural Resources and Regulatory Affairs:

California Farm Bureau Federation is sincerely appreciative of this
opportunity to testify concerning adverse impacts of federal
regulations on California's Central Valley.

Despite a dedicated disinformation campaign conducted by very well-
funded interest groups residing primarily outside the Central
Valley, wrong-headed federal regulatory policies pushing
enforcement actions over wetlands in the name of the Clean Water
Act, and over listed species under the federal Endangered Species
Act, continue to be a very serious problem here for our members and
their communities. We will not repeat here the numerous individual
examples of such problems our membership stibmitted in connection
with the field hearings over both Acts last year. The problem has
not abated. Following the subsequent listings of four fairy shrimp
species, we could now add to that list at least four vineyardists
in Sacramento and San Joaquin Counties, and a Laotion immigrant in
Butte County trying to grow strawberries on about 20 acres of land
between two major roads, worth nothing to wildlife as a wetland.

We do not criticize the original lofty goals of either the Clean
Water Act or Endangered Species Act. We do criticize the manner in
which these laws are being manipulated for the sole purpose of
halting economic activity. This manipulation victimizes innocent
businesses and landowners who camnot afford to take on the heavy
prosecutorial machinery of the entire federal government to protect
their rights. The only feasible defense is avoidance. And
avoidance takes two forms, neither of which is consistent with our
fundamental democratic values of fair and equal treatment before
the law, or with the original environmental goals of these powerful
Acts. On one hand, our members are avoiding potential conflicts
with the law by not using land that should be productive: taking
a loss, relinquishing their right to realize a return on their
investment and thereby supporting public benefits at their own
private expense. On th© other hand, many are avoiding potential

Njncy N. McDonough, Catenil Counsel

AsttKiale CounsH:

Cftrl C lk>rdcn • Carolyn S. Richardson • Karen Noronc Mills • David J. Guy • Koimld Liebcrl
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conflicts Biinply by making sure no habitat or wetlands has a chance
to get established on their lands.

This is not only inequitable public policy, it is short-sighted.
A Bcrong, innovative, productive agricultural sector is the key to
a strong economy and diverse environment for California's future.
Indeed, this is true throughout the United States, but nowhere is

it more urgent for the environment that wrong-headed regulatory
disincentives be removed than here in California's Central Valley.

The State of California has grown from about 10 million people in
1950 to more than 32 million in 1996. Even during the recession of
the 1990s, when nearly 200,000 people left the state annually, its
population grew by nearly half a million people each year. Most of
the growth in this decade has been driven by reproduction, a
phenomenon that will push population increase exponentially for
many years to come, even without return migration from other states
as the economy rebounds. In fact, the California Department of
Finance estimates that there will be another doubling of
California's population in the next 50 years. Population in this
great Central Valley is expected to triple before the year 2040.

This growth has brought cultural and economic riches to the state,
but- has not come without cost to California's agricultural and
wildlife resources. As urban centers have grown, agriculture has
been displaced and has relocated. Great feats of civil engineering
have made this urban growth and agricultural relocation possible.

Now we are recognizing that our state's resources are not
limitless, that the ability of human engineering to increase the
carrying capacity of the land is finite, and that the state has to
protect the resources that support its people, its economy, and its
wildlife. Extraordinary creativity and flexibility will be
required.

Agriculture is a $58 billion industry in California, contributing
120.000 jobs to the state economy in 1995, providing food and fiber
Lo the state, the nation, and the world. Kxports of California
commodities contribute $5 billion annually to the U.S. balance of
trade. California agricultural resources are unique and
irreplaceable: a combination of climate, fertility, and wacer that
make it the most productive agricultural area of the nation,
indeed, the world. It surpasses the famed Fertile Crescent of
ancient Mesopotania. It has national economic and strategic
importance

.

California agriculture also provides a vast heOsitat resource, both
intentionally developed and as an incidental benefit of production
activities. Control of noxious, often alien weeds; forest, range,
and field meuiagement; fencing of environmentally sensitive areas;

2 fi\wp\<lab\t**t.«hr
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acreatnbank staibilization; erosion control, and a host of other
fanning and ranching practices provide and protect wildlife
habitat. Freshwater streams and stock ponds on these productive
private lands provide water-cleansing and recharging benefits as

well as habitat to fish; corn, wheat, rice, other field crops and
pasturage provide bountiful food and habitat for deer, antelope,
elk, ducks, geeee, and countless wild creatures, some of which have
been listed under the state and federal Endangered Species Acts.

Many rare, threatened, and endangered species depend heavily on
cultivated land as well as rangeland for their continuing
existence. For example, a recent study conducted in Northeastern
California for the U.S. Forest Service found that Swainson's hawks
nesting in sagebrush habitat more than one mile from alfalfa fields
suffered 100 percent nest failure, while pairs nesting within one-
half mile of alfalfa fields enjoyed an 86 percent success rate in
rearing broods. The Swainson's hawk is a state listed species which
nests in riparian areas of the Central Valley and Northeastern
California. In the Central Valley, not only alfalfa, but beets,
tomatoes, rice, cereal grains, and other low-growing row and field
crops, as well as managed rangeland and irrigated pasture, all
serve as iti^ortant foraging habitat for these hawks.

Another example is the tri-colored blackbird. One of the greatest
concentrations of tri-colored blackbirds in recent history nested
in a grain field on a San Joaquin Valley dairy, preferring this
site to a nearby federal wildlife refuge containing supposedly
"ideal" blackbird habitat. The tri-colored blackbird is a state
species of concern also listed under the federal Migratory Bird
Treaty Act, and therefore protected under the federal Endangered
Species Act.

California's productive agricultural lands clearly play a pivotal
role in the preservation of wildlife- -while contributing property
and income taxes, providing jobs, ensuring human food security for
the future, and preserving open space that is vital to the health
and beauty of the environment. Preserving California's wildlife
means preserving California's agriculture.

Sadly, over the last ten years, endangered species issues have
reduced wildlife habitat on agricultural lands, particularly in the
San Joaquin Valley. Because of the breadth given the take
prohibitions of both the state and federal Endangered Species Acts,
agricultural landowners and managers developed a well-founded fear
that the presence of potential endangered species habitat on their
lands could lead to regulatory interference with necessary
production activities, loss of management flexibility, and even
civil and criminal penalties for unintentional harm to threatened
or endangered species or their habitat. Loss of land collateral
value and financing problems resulted in many areas, most notably

3 9 : \wp\<i«b\t«»t . ehr



98

TESTIMONY OF CALIFORNIA FARM BUREAU FEDERATION

near urban growth centers, where endangered species enforcement
activities were most vigorously pursued, and habitat resources on
agricultural lands most important. Many agricultural landowners
and managers who once would have encouraged potential habitat
within their operations now actively discourage it, at great loss

of opportunities to increase the wildlife carrying-capacity of

nearby public lands, to sustain species not served by public lands,

and to contribute to the greater overall biological diversity of

the state.

The San Joaquin Valley supports a large number of species listed as
threatened or endangered, even though some biologists estimate that
only 3-5 percent of the Valley remains as natural landscape. Most
ecologists believe that management of private lands in ways
compatible with many species needs will be very important for long-
term species survival, providing linkages between core habitat
areas. Opportunities exist to promote conservation while
protecting agricultural productivity.

Private agricultural operations have historically played, and can
continue to play, an important role in providing habitat for a
wealth of species. With the removal of unnecessary disincentives
and the development of meaningful incentives, agricultural
producers could play a critical role in recovering listed species
in the San Joaquin Valley, while maintaining their unequalled
productivity

,

An absolutely essential requirement for reversing the downward
trend in heibitat on agricultural lands is removing the powerful
disincentive created by fear of liability for incidental takes in
the course of routine agricultural activities and emergency
response and repair actions. Without either a statutory exemption
or a general incidental take permit covering all such activities
and actions, prudent agricultural landowners and managers will
continue to prevent inadvertent violations of the Endangered
Species Act by keeping their lands free of habitat.

It is broadly recognized that our towering federal rgulatory
structure is plain wrong-headed in many, many areas, that it has
diverted investments Co pointless paper chases that should be
directed toward solving environmental problems, and that it has
stymied innovation by private and local public institutions. We
would repeat for the Subcotrmittee a call for change issued three
years ago by this administration. Fresh approaches, looking beyond
details to potential net benefits; greater confidence in this
nation's private social and economic institutions; greater reliance
on state and local management and on individual initiative were the
key elements of President Clinton's Executive Order for Regulatory
Reform. As stated by the President:

9 : \up\d*b\t««t . (hr
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The American people deserve a regulatory system that works for
them, not against them: a regulatory system that protects and
improves their health, safety, environment, and well-being
and improves the performance of the economy without imposing
unacceptable or unreasonable costs on society; regulatory
policies that recognize that the private sector and private
markets are the best engines for economic growth; regulatory
approaches that respect the role of State, local and tribal
governments; and regulations that ar6 effective, consistent,
sensible and understandeible . We do not have such a regulatory
system today.
Executive Order No. 12866, September 30, 1993, F.R. 517735.

Among the twelve factors that this Executive Order requires federal
agencies to satisfy in evaluating existing or proposed regulatory
programs, the four summarized below are particularly applicable to
this problem of endangered species regulation:

1. Each agency shall identify and assess the significance of the
problem it intends to address including the failures of
private narkets or public institutions that warrant new agency
action.

Here the problem is not the failure of private markets, but the
frustration of private market solutions by regulatory
disincentives. State and local public institutions have been
rendered ineffective by rigid federal regulatory prescriptions.
The loss of habitat resources that once were provided by private
enterprise on private lands, particularly agricultural lands, will
be seen as the regulatory misfire of the 20th century, as we look
back from the next five decades of rapid human population
expansion.

2

.

Each agency shall examine whether existing regulations or
other law have created, or contributed to, the problem that a
new regulation is intended to correct, and whether those
regulations or other law should be modified to achieve the
goal more effectively.

The failure of the existing regulatory approach is manifest both on
the ground and in the rift between the agricultural community and
wildlife agencies. Clearly, that approach must be significantly
modified before agricultural lands will again play any significant
role in species conservation.

3

.

Each agency shall identify and assess available alternatives
to direct regulation, including providing economic Incentives
to encourage the desired behavior, such as user fees or
marketable permits, or providing Information upon which
choices can be made by the public.

5 gi\wp\d*b\E»ac.*hr
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We have proposed an Endangered Species Act general incidental take

permit program to the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (the Service) .

Our Program offers significant advantages in increased flexibility

and reduced in^lementation costs over the existing direct
regulation approach. It creates the foundation of operational
certainty that is essential to maintaining agricultural land

values; without this, little habitat creation or enhancement can be
accomplished on private lands by market incentives or otherwise.

4. Each agency shall identify and assess alternative foms of

regulation and shall, to the extent feasible, specify
perfomance objectives, rather than specifying the behavior or
manner of coopliance that regulated entities must adopt.

This is a clear directive to explore results-oriented, cooperative
processes before resorting to direct, prescriptive regulation. Our
Program presents a sound system of scientifically-supported
performance objectives, to be implemented locally, with the
attainment of performance objectives monitored through a clear
reporting structure. Local implementation will result in closer
but less intrusive monitoring, and the flexibility of the general
permit structure will allow mid-term adjustments and modifications
which cannot be achieved under the rigidity of individual
prescriptive permits.

Although our limited proposal cannot address the most serious
problems of the Endangered Species Act- -these clearly are
insolvable without statutory reform- -we believe our proposal would
serve as a beginning regulatory model for cooperative partnership
between agricultural private enterprise and government, working
toward a richer, more diverse 2l6t century.

We have attached to this testimony the text of the Program as it
has been submitted to the Service. We would appreciate receiving
the benefit of the insight and wisdom of Subcommittee members and
their staff on this proposal. We ask for your support in achieving
such a cooperative partnership between industry, state, and federal
government, in working together to achieve our national
environmental goals, including secure and diverse wildlife
resources for the future. Agricultural producers and their
communities have a key role to play if they are not prevented from
doing so by poorly conceived federal regulation.

Thank you for this opportunity.

CAROLYN S. RICHARDSON
Director
California Farm Bureau Federation
Department of Environmental Advocacy

g :
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PROPOSAL FOR A GENERAL INCIDENTAL TAKE PERMIT FOR ROUTINE
AGRICULTXmAL ACTIVITIES AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE

AND REPAIR ACTIONS FOR AGRICULTURAL INFRASTRUCTURE

PeCinJ-cigns:

1. "Agriculture" shall include, but not be limited to, the
cultivation and tillage of the soil, dairying, the
production, cultivation, growing, and harvesting of any
agricultural commodity including timber, viticulture,
apiculture, or horticulture, and the raising of
livestock, fur bearing animals, fish, or poultry,

2 . "Agricultural Land" is land on which agriculture is
conducted, including but not limited to cultivated land,
managed rangeland, and lands which are managed as part of
an existing agricultural operation.

3. "Routine agricultural activities" is intended to
encompass all activities required to engage in
agriculture on agricultural land, including but not
limited to:

a. Planting; cultivation; tillage and harvest of
crops; range management; -fallowing land for crop
rotation, water conservation, water transfer, or
other accepted agricultural purposes, and returning
fallowed land to production; cultivating land
managed for grazing and returning cultivated land
to grazing; putting land under Conservation Reserve
Program or wetlands Reserve Program contract and
returning such lands to production; and application
and incorporation of organic and inorganic
materials on and into the land surface;

b. Water management including irrigation, pipe, pond,
lagoon, ditch and levee maintenance and repair,
control of surface runoff, and tailwater recovery;

c. Installation, operation, maintenance, and repair of
facilities and appurtenances for water production,
conveyance, storage, treatment and groundwater
recharge

;

d. Installation, operation, maintenance, and repair of
utility infrastructure;

e. Installation, operation, maintenance, and repair of

1 giNwpXdabVbuOcy.taioOlJit*; tilO a.a.
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facilities and appurtenances for agricultural
equipment, product and byproduct handling,
treatment, and storage

;

f. Installation, operation, maintenance, and repair of
facilities and appurtenances to shelter and
maintain landowners, employees, and agents, and
infrastructure to service them;

g. use of fixed and mobile equipment within and around
agricultural lands;

h. Compatible uses as defined by California Government
Code sections 512381. through 51238.3;

i. Changing crops or cropping patterns or cultural
practices to adapt to changing market needs, and
technological innovations that may be developed, so
as not to inhibit or retard improvements in farm or
ranch management;

j. Other ongoing, routine, agricultural activities as
may be verified as accepted practices by the County
Agricultural Commissioner.

4. "Emergency response and repair actions" shall include,
but not be limited by, corrective actions required to
restore agricultural facilities and infrastructure to
working condition following breakage or failure. Such
facilities and infrastructure shall include but not be
limited to utility infrastructure such as power lines,
gas or water pipelines, canals, ditches, dams and
existing buildings, whether on agricultural land or
connecting essential services to agricultural land.

5. "The Program" is this General Incidental Take Permit For
Agricultural Activities and Emergency Response and Repair
Actions for Agricultural Infrastructure, which is a
Habitat Conservation Plan pursuant to section 10(a) (1) (A)
or (B) of the federal Endangered Species Act

.

Features of the General Incidental Take Pepnit,;

1. Scope: The scope of this Program initially is
agricultural land in the San Joaquin Valley and Carrizo
Plain of California, although enrollment may be extended
county by county in other areas of the state upon the
request of agricultural producers. All or parts of nine
counties are Included in the pilot Program: Fresno,
Kern, Kings, Madera, Merced, Seui Joaquin, San Luis
Obispo, Stanislaus, and Tulare Counties. For purposes of
the Program, all references to the San Joaquin Valley
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shall include the Carrizo Plain and its surrounding
foothills, within this area, all types of agricultural
lands and activities, and all wildlife regardless of its
status under the state or federal Endangered Species Acts
will be included.

2. Purpose: To develop a voluntary program that will enable
agricultural landowners and managers to conduct their
normal activities, and to undertake voluntary additional
actions that may benefit wildlife species, without fear
of liability for incidental take under either the state
or the federal Endangered Species Act,

3. Incidental takes resulting from routine agricultural
activities, including infrastructure and facilities
maintenance and emergency response and repair actions,
would be authorized by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
(FWS) under a general permit held by the California
Department of Pish and Game (CDPG)

.

4. Individual permits, enrollments, or certificates of
inclusion would not be required; all agricultural lands
in an included county would be covered.

5. Incidental take would be minimized and mitigated under
the general permit by educational activities encouraging
the implementation of recommended voluntary management
practices in connection with routine agricultural
activities and emergency response and repair actions, and
by facilitating the development of incentives for
voluntary habitat conservation, enhancement, and creation
projects on agricultural land, where practicable. The
purpose of the voluntary management practices would be to
avoid, minimize or mitigate the impact of any take
resulting from routine agricultural activities and
emergency response and repair actions, to the maximum
extent practicable, and to foster opportunities to
benefit wildlife on agricultural lands to the extent
consistent with agricultural productivity.

6

.

The incidental take permit would not be contingent upon
completion of the process of developing recommended
voluntary management practices; rather, the development
of recommended voluntary management practices would be a
concurrent process under which recommendations would be
added, amended, or withdrawn according to advances in
scientific knowledge, technological innovation, and
experience with their success on the ground.

7. A State Coordinating Committee would be established.
Participants would consist of state and federal agencies
with land resource jurisdiction and other interested
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parties, including CDPQ, CDPA. DPR, SWRCB, FWS, EPA, BOR,

the Corps of Engineers, NRCS, University of California
Cooperative Extension (UCCE) , the State Agricultural
Commissioners Association, Regional Council of Rural
Counties, Society for Range Management, American Farmland
Trust, and organizations representing commercial
agriculture. CDFG would be the lead agency of the State
Coordinating Committee. Committee participants must
represent a balance of private sector and public sector
interests, and, as much as possible, public sector
participants should appoint representatives with an
understanding of agriculture.

8. Non-profit conservation organizations such as Trout
Unlimited, Ducks Unlimited, the California Waterfowl
Association, Mule Deer Foundation and others, would
consult with the State Coordinating Committee as
"cooperators" in the Program, to offer additional
expertise and practical problem- solving experience, to
develop funding for wildlife enhancement projects, to
assist in educational outreach efforts such as handbook
preparation and distribution, and otherwise contribute
positively to achieving Program goals.

9

.

The state and federal agencies on the State Coordinating
Committee that have regulatory authority would enter into
an MOU providing for interagency communication and
cooperation in the exercise of their authority to achieve
the purposes of the Program.

10. The State Coordinating Committee would identify
biological factors to be considered in the development of
voluntary management practices .recommendations, prepare
a framework for development of such voluntary management
practices recommendations by Local Advisory Committees,
identify sources of public and private funding and other
incentives, provide coordination among state and federal
agencies with jurisdiction over other environmental
programs affecting agricultural lands, and provide
consistency among state and federal agencies to eliminate
unnecessary barriers to the achievement of Program goals,
including the implementation of voluntary management
practices on agricultural lands.

11. Tho State Coordinating Committee would provide for the
estciblishment of Local Advisory Committees in counties at
the request of local producers. It would enter into an
MOU with each Local Advisory Committee as it is
established, to provide guidance, technical support, and,
where appropriate, funding for Local Advisory Committee
activities.

4 gi\Vp\4*k\bMlcy.aw>all1I*: i:)0 ».m.
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a. The establlEhment of Local Advisory Committees
would be Initiated within counties . Agricultural
producers in any county would ask the County
Agricultural Conunissioner to convene a local
committee, constituted as described below, to
consider inclusion in this Program. if it
determined inclusion was desirable, the committee
would send a written rec[uest to the State
Coordinating Committee for recognition as a Local
Advisory Committee, and for inclusion in the
Program. Where an Agricultural Commissioner has
jurisdiction over more than one county, producers
from any county within the jurisdiction could
request the Agricultural Commissioner to establish
a Local Advisory Committee for that county.

b. The Local Advisory Committees would consist of
representatives of the Office of the County
Agricultural Commissioner, UCCE, local water
districts, NRCS, RWQCB, Certified Rangeland
Managers, individual agricultural producers, and
other persons with relevant technical expertise and
experience to contribute positively to the
development of locally specific, voluntary
management practices recommendations.

c. The Local Advisory Committees would, in accordance
with the framework provided by the State
Coordinating Committee, and working with interested
producers: develop recommendations for voluntary
management practices in each county, addressing
locally specific geographic, biological,
agricultural-economic, and other variables relevant
to economically feasible and practicable
minimization and mitigation of incidental take;
undertake educational outreach to producers
concerning development and implementation of such
practices, and provide assistance to interested
producers, including providing technical expertise
when requested by the producer; provide
coordination with other environmental programs and
projects on agricultural lands to identify the
voluntary habitat enhancement opportunities of such
programs and projects and to reduce interference
with management practices implemented according to
its recommendations," provide coordination with
regional single species and multiple species
Habitat Conservation Plans (MHCPs, generically,
hereafter) that may be established in areas
encompassing agricultural lands (see paragraph (f .)

below)

.

gtVi^pXdabVbanlcy.BBoOIIft; *:10 a.B.
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d. Individual producers would be contacted by such
Local Advisory Committees through an active
educational outreach program, and encouraged to
consult with their County Agricultural
Commissioners and UCCE Farm Advisors and Livestock
Advisors on potential opportunicies for
implementation of recommended voluntary management
practices appropriate to the particular
agricultural operation.

e. when requested. Local Advisory Committees would
provide on-site consultation to interested
producers for identification of potential habitat
opportunities, implementation of habitat
enhancements, and mitigation and minimization of
incidental takes of threatened and endangered
species attracted by such habitat. If requested,
the Local Advisory Committees would assist
producers to obtain technical and scientific
expertise through cooperating institutional
committee participants, and would work with private
consultants retained by producers.

f

.

The Local Advisory Committees would serve as
coordinator between this agricultural Program and
any regional MHCP program that may be developed for
the area, for the purpose of making opportunities
available to interested producers to enter into
voluntary conservation agreements offered by the
regional MHCP for its reserve system.

12. UCCE Farm Advisors and Livestock Advisors, who play a key
role in the educational outreach program of the Local
Advisory Committees, would provide program monitoring by
submitting periodic trend analyses to the State
Coordinating Committee, covering producer involvement in
the program and habitat conditions on agricultural lands
within their jurisdiction. Information resources that
could be utilized in these analyses as examples of
indirect but generally re? iaile indicators of trend
include: water district crop reports, confidential
implementation reports submitted voluntarily by
individual producers, and consensual site visits by UCCE
personnel. From such indicators, a case study could be
conducted to test the extrapolation of data from reported
and surveyed properties to deduce area trend; this is
analogous to the methodology presently employed to
extrapolate fish population impacts from screen san^les
at water intake pumps. Based on such trend reports, the
State Coordinating Committee could determine whether
projected net species benefits are being realized, and
could investigate whether adjustments to recommended

6 gi\Mp\d*b\b«)ky.a<>oai]7M; )iia >.»,
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practices, greater support for educational activities, or
increased incentives should be undertaken, or such other
appropriate measures as would better achieve the goals of
the Program.

13. Use of fertilizers, insecticides, and other agricultural
chemicals would not be subject to the Program, but would
be addressed, as at present, by other means: the County
Agricultural Commissioner, State Department of Pesticide
Regulation, the USDA and USEPA through label use
restrictions and such means as the DPR/EPA County
Bulletins issued by DPR.

14. The Program would not confer federal jurisdiction over
private agricultural lands

.

Application of the General Incidental Take Permit to Habitat
Conservation. Enhancement and Creation:

1. Purpose: To maximize what willing landowners can
accomplish on their properties, by creating a secure
platform of protection for agricultural activities so
that there will be support for voluntary habitat
conservation, enhancement, and creation on agricultural
lands, and by developing incentive and reward mechanisms
within the Program that will support habitat projects
while maintaining and protecting the long-term economic
viability of the host agricultural operation and
neighboring operations

.

2. For uncompensated habitat enhancement, conservation or
creation, the preceding general incidental take permit
would insulate the landowner from liability for takes due
to routine agricultural activities and emergency response
and repair actions.

3. Habitat created or enhanced as an incident of
governmental programs such as the Conservation Reserve
Program, Wetlands Reserve Program, and watershed projects
for control of nonpoint source pollution under the Clean
Water Act, would be classified as routine agricultural
activities; incidental "takes" of species attracted by
such habitat would be covered by the incidental take
general perraic except as otherwise provided pursuant to
a voluntary conservation agreement.

4. For uncompensated habitat resources, there would be no
biological surveys or habitat baseline determinations
without written landowner consent. However, where
compensation is given for habitat, it is reasonable for
the Department, Service, and any provider of compensation
to reqpiire biological surveys and the establishment of

7 gi\«p\4al>\t>uiky.><moD]17«<i »iie ..
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appropriate protections for the resource.

5. The State Coordinating Committee would identify all
potentially applicable public and private compenBation
sources for habitat conservation, enhancement, and
creation projects on private lands, and would make this
information available to Local Advisory Committees.
Compensation could include a variety of means, including
funding, tax credits, non-monetary incentives such as
transferable development credits and any other means
accepted in a voluntary transaction. Emphasis would be
placed on finding sources of funding for projects that do
not take land permanently out of production, but allow
for shifting hsdaitat areas and rotation into and out of
habitat while maintaining the overall productivity and
economic viability of the agricultural enterprise. The
State Coordinating Committee would serve as a grant
coordinator for Local Advisory Committees, if requested,
but would not direct, control, or otherwise limit the
Local Advisory Committees in pursuing any form of
condensation for habitat projects within their counties.

6. The State Coordinating Committee would also develop
guidelines for Local Advisory Committees to facilitate
creation of habitat resources by interested agricultural
producers for sale or lease as income-producing
mitigation, or for other compensation. Such guidelines
should include recommendations for: evaluating impacts
on the overall agricultural viability of the enterprise;
periodic reevaluation of the net impacts of the habitat
project to the viability of the enterprise, allowing for
modification or termination, if appropriate

;

consideration of local tax base and economic impacts,
including loss of jobs and adverse impacts on the
critical mass of agricultural business in the county
necessary to support agricultural infrastructure; and
such other reconrnendations as may be determined to be
important to protect the state's agricultural as well as
wildlife resources. The Stite Coordinating Committee
would also establish a streanaining process to remove
unnecessary regulatory conflicts and procedural obstacles
to such transactions.

7. The Local Advisoiry Committees would consult with
interested producers in developing innovative proposals
for treating habitat creation and management as an
agricultural product, including development of stocks of
plants and plant communities required by species likely
to experience adverse impacts from projected local urban
growth

.

8

.

The Local Advisory Committees would provide a point of
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contact between development project proponents and MHCP
advisory bodies seeking mitigation opportunities, and
agricultural producers interested in obtaining income or
other compensation by developing mitigation resources on
their lands. In such coordination eftorts, Local
Advisory Committees would consult State Coordinating
Committee guidelines and any established procedures.

9. The following protections must be provided for
agricultural producers engaging in compensated habitat
projects on their lands, and for their neighbors:

a. Any restrictions on the immunity otherwise provided
to the host property by the general incidental take
permit for impacts of routine agricultural
activities should be specifically addressed in the
planning phase and expressly stated in the
conservation agreement.

b. There must be no additional incidental take
liability for the agricultural operations of other
landowners . The incidental take general permit
would fully protect such landowners from any take
liability due to adverse in^acts on listed species
caused by their routine agricultural activities and
emergency response and repair actions.

c. All necessary buffers for pesticide use and other
agricultural activities must be incorporated within
the boundaries of the host property; provision must
be made to compensate or otherwise resolve
potential depredation and other adverse impacts on
neighboring agricultural operations caused by plant
and animal species fostered or attracted by the
habitat enhanced or created for compensation,-
provision for such compensation or other resolution
must be made at the time the conservation agreement
is established.

d. Habitat conservation, enhancement, and creation on
agricultural land- -whether con^ensated or not- -must
be wholly voluntary, not achieved through eminent
domain or required as permit conditions or as
exactions for a parcel split in conformity with
existing zoning, as long as the property is
retained in agricultural production.

10. The Local Advisory Committee would establish an
arbitration panel or dispute resolution subcommittee to
resolve disagreements over compliance with the terms of
conservation agreements for compensated habitat on
agricultural lands, and to resolve disagreements between

9 fi\w[i\d*b\bwiky.Koe)31>«; t:ic *..
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neighbors over adverse impacts to and from agricultural
activities off the host property. The arbitration panel
or dispute resolution subcommittee should include the
County Agricultural Commissioner, U.C. Cooperative
Extension Farm Advisor and Livestock Advisor, at least
three agricultural producers knowledgeable in the
commodities affected, representatives from CDFG and FWS,
and such other people as may be necessary to arrive at an
informed and equitable resolution of the dispute.

10
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Mr. CuNHA. Thank you very much, Congressmen.
Nisei is second-generation Japanese-American farmers and it

was started in 1970 by the president, who is now retired, Harry
Cubo. Our organization represents small family farmers in the San
Joaquin Valley as well as in the Monterey-Salinas area, which are
predominantly flowers and vegetables. Our membership grows from
wine, raisin, table grapes, tree fruits, citrus, a variety of nut crops
as well. But the average age is 67 years old and the average acre
size is approximately 70 acres.
The issue that I will be discussing with you today, which has

confronted California agriculture as well as in other States, but es-
pecially California and that is under the Federal Clean Air Act of
1990. I will not read the document, I will just go over it briefly so
I can make the points to you.

In 1990, the Federal Clean Air Act adopted a thing called PM 10
which is 10 micron size of air particulate and smaller. In 1990, the
Clean Air Act published this standard called PM 10 and California
happened to be one of those States that apparently, due to good
science, as they say—they being EPA—was out of attainment for

PM 10, PM 10 being fugitive dust. Fugitive dust being geological

as well as gaseous type particles, those that are below 2.5 in size

micron affect the lower part of the respiratory into the lung system
and that part. Where as above 2.5 getting into the upper res-

piratory, being not as harmful as predicted.
But what happened is like everything else, as you heard today,

is a story of science, good science based with peer review and going
to the industry with PM 10, as I will confront you. Two weeks ago
we met at our air district in the San Joaquin Valley, called the
Unified Air Pollution Control District, with the California Air Re-
sources Board and Triangle Park EPA, met with several of us
growers and organizations to talk about how they are going to de-

velop a PM 10 standard for controls on farming operations. Imme-
diately they put up on the wall or on an overhead 12 new crops
that we are going to have to look at and control PM 10 fugitive

dust from. Those 12 crops consisted of carrots, lettuce, wheat and
barley. And their statement was that these crops produce 90 per-

cent of the PM 10 in the San Joaquin Valley. Lo and behold, in

1990, we started working, of course with Congressman Condit's ef-

forts, we were able to get funding to develop the first agricultural

real research going on in this valley on PM 10 in agriculture.

Again, a great opportunity, what we refer to as a love fest. The
love fest became where we have a partnership with the State, the
Federal and industries working together to try to get real answers,
real science.

Well, in that meeting 2 weeks ago, when they put that up there,

that immediately shot down our whole concept because again, Cali-

fornia Air Resources Board, knowing how involved agriculture has
been—and I will make a comment to this that needs to be on the

record—agriculture in California approached the California Air Re-

sources Board and EPA to start the first real heavy, intensive PM
10 study in the Nation. This study is $24 million over a 5-year pe-

riod and it is to address all types of PM 10 from urban, rural areas

and agriculture is the biggest part, about $7 million of that study,

to define the real problem.
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Two weeks ago they were recommending—and I will give you an
example—in 1989, EPA came out with a regulation called Reg 8
Fugitive Dust. In there, they cited that dairy cows had to control

the amount of emissions that a dairy cow dropped on the ground,
in other words, the manure, and how much manure can be around
the feet of that cow, about approximately 4 centimeters. Well, we
suggested a control measure that EPA recommended was to cork
off the cows, which we could do, the old girls are easy to get behind
and take care of, but we approached Henry Waxman in 1990 in

Washington, DC in his committee, it would be pretty difficult, we
thought, to go in and cork off a dairy bull that is 3,000 pounds that
is locked behind a fence that you could not drive a tank through,
and he got the hint that again EPA had come out with a control

measure that was absolutely baseless and senseless at all to deal
with manure.
Another issue upon the same track was to control the amount of

emissions that a farmer is disking. Again, they used the word till-

age. Tillage to EPA means any time you disturb the ground or any
movement. Well, their recommendation was to take all of our farm
land in the San Joaquin Valley in 1989-1990 and put a water tank
on the back of the disk to suppress the dust. Again, PM 10 is like

the ozone of the 21st century, we know very little about PM 10.

Let me quote you from the New England Journal of Medicine
from 1994, it stated that—the New England Journal of Medicine
stated that it is not PM 10 that is a problem, but it is 2.5 and the
gaseous molecules of that that are a real health threat to human
health, not geological and above 2.5. Again, EPA disregarded that.

So, at the present, we are in a situation where agriculture has
6 months—^you just stopped me, I am going to finish with this

Mr. McIntosh. No, go ahead and sum up.
Mr. CUNHA [continuing]. That in 6 months California agriculture,

the San Joaquin Valley, 4.5 million acres, $14 billion, has to de-

velop control measures on our farming operations which our
science is currently on its way through the University of Davis
with USDA in Washington, DC, in coordination, natural resource
conservation people. But yet, negating to let us use the good
science, they are saying we have deadlines that we have to submit
a plan in February 1997 with control measures of the bad science.

And in closing, they predicted that the Sierra Nevadas to my
right, to the east, created some 200 million tons of PM 10 because
we cultivate the Sierra Nevadas twice a year. We do not till the
Sierra Nevadas, you cannot do that—I mean it is just totally illogi-

cal, but that is their thinking, so we have some tremendous eco-

nomic disaster headed in the next 6 months for us.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Cunha follows:]
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THE IMPACT OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS OH THE CENTRAL VALLEY
TESTIMONY BY MANUEL CUNHA, JR.

PRESIDENT, NISEI FARMERS LEAGUE

I wish to thank you. Chairman David Mcintosh of the
Oversight Suhcommittee on National Economic Growth, Natural
Resources and Regulatory Affaire and the Honorable Gary A.
Condit for holding a hearing in California's San Joaquin
Valley. My name is Manuel Cunha, Jr. and I am the President
of the Nisei Farmers League which represents approximately
1000 family farms through the San Joaquin Valley and the
Salinas, Monterey area. Our membership consists of farms
that raise raisin, wine and table grapes, tree fruit,
vegetable.5, dairies and flowers and who have been farming
and ranching for the past 60 years.
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In May, 1991, the Advisory Committee expanded to Include non
agricultural organization and Industries such as the oil and
building industry. County Health Departments, Cal-Trans and
manufacturers. We changed our name to the San Joaquin
Valley Citizens Advisory Group of Industries for "Air
Quality" which has over 150 different organizations and
businesses

.

I will specifically address those areas of the 1990 Federal
Clean Air Act which have a major Impact on our Industry,
Agriculture, in California. The EPA document that I am
referring to is the 1985 Air Pollutant Emission Factors,
volume 1 &2. Stationary Point and Area Sources, (AP 42),

Midwest Research Institute-Control of Open Fugitive Dust
Sources, 1976-1981. The EFA's 1992 Best Available Control
Measures (BACM) is also questionable.

UNITY IN AGRICULTURE
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The San Joaquin Valley Unified Air Pollution Control District
(SJVUAPCD) in 1991, adopted the Moderate Area PMia Attainment Plan
which committed the district to implementing Reasonably Available
Control Measures (RACM). In 1994, the district adopted Its Serious
Non-attainment Plan for the San Joaquin Valley. Both plans were
based on the information above where agriculture was not based on
good science. The Federal Endangered species Act was in conflict
with the Federal Clean Air Act. For example, one control measure was
to let vegetation grow on your open areas which would help to control
wind blown dust, but by doing so you could have a endangered
species come on to your land and now you unable to farm that area.

We have a few major points which must be part of our future in
agriculture

.

* Determination of accuracy and appropriateness of the
published emissions inventories, emission factors, control
practices, best management techniques, seasons, and air
quality regulation. The Agricultural Advisory Committee
believes that good science must be employed prior to
assessing additional environmental mandates. In the area
of PMio, many emissions factors employed to arrive at the
emissions inventory are either outdated or do not apply to
the specific conditions of the San Joaquin Valley. The
Inappropriate values are later used as a regulatory tool
to promulgate rules on the industry.

The new rules developed without adequate scientific facts
yield to Incorrect control measures that create unneeded
burden upon industries. The Advisory Group has been
instrumental in obtaining EPA funds to study the emissions
factors selected agricultural practices. This study along
with the future studies will aid Air Pollution Officials as
well as the agriculture community to gain a better
understanding of the causes and nature of PM i o , the control
measures would be most effective since compliance will be

embraced voluntarily with education.

* Development of an adoption and implementation schedule for
specific control measures considering technological
feasibility, total emission acceptability, and
enforceability. This goal will be achieved through the

PMio study efforts. The first pliase of the PMio studies in

agriculture and other industries will be completed in the
upcoming five years.
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The second phase on the study focuses on the formation of
secondary particulate under the valley winter conditions.
This state of art study will provide valuable Information
for future coordination of pM i « plan with the expected
reduction from secondary precursors of PMio. The federal
government has already allocated funds to initiate the
study. The study will be performed under the direction
of the existing San Joaquin Valley Study Agency (formerly
SARMAP) with assistance from the California Air Resources
Board, EPA and the industries.

In closing, I would like to point out that it is important to note
that the studies are intended to provide Information not only
specific to the development of an effective attainment plan within
the San Joaquin Valley region, but also improved methods and tools
for monitoring, emission estimation, control strategy development
and modeling that can be used to develop effective PMie emission
reduction programs throughout the nation.

I have included a summary of the "California Regional PMio Air
Quality Study".

Hr. Chairman and Qub-committee merabers, 1 would like to thank you
again for the opportunity to present testimony before you today.

Manuel Cunha,Jr
April 1, 1996
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CALIFORMIA REGIONAL PMib AIR QUALITY STUDY

Background

Both the national and State air quality standards for particulate
matter smaller than 10 microns in diameter (PMio) are consistently
exceeded In Central California (Figure 1). This adverse air quality
compromises the health of the more than 10 million people living in
the region, reduces visibility, and adversely impacts quality of
life. The 1990 federal Clean Air Act Amendments require that
controls be implemented in Central California which will attain the
national PHio standards by December 31, 2001. Attainment of the
standards will require effective and equitable distribution of
controls among sources. However, gaps in our current understanding
of the amount each source contributes to the overall problem severely
hinder development of a cost-effective attainment plan. Additional
information on the chemical compositions, spatial and temporal
distributions, and chemical transformation of pollutants is needed to
address Central California's PMio problem.

The objectives of the California Regional PHie Air Quality Study
are to: 1) provide an improved understanding of emissions, PMio
composition and dynamic atmospheric processes, 2) establish a strong
scientific foundation for informed decision making, and 3) develop
methods to identify the most efficient and cost-effective emission
control strategies to achieve the PMia standards In Central
California.

Schedule

The study was initiated in 1991 by the agricultural community who
approached the U. S. Environmental Protection Agency for funding.
Government entitles and industries endorsed the study, and full-scale
planning began in 1992. Analysis and modeling of existing data and
emission control demonstration studies were initiated in 1994. A

preliminary field monitoring program was conducted during fall and
winter of 1995-96. Emission date improvement efforts will be
initiated In 1996. A list of on-going projects is provided in Table
1. Large scale field monitoring programs are planned for 1997
through 1999. Analysis of the data collected during the field
programs and air quality model development and application will
follow the field programs. Completion of the project is anticipated
in 2001. The project schedule is shown in Figure 2 with relevant
regulatory deadlines.
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Budget

The budget for the core study is S24 million,- an additional $3.4
million is identified for special agricultural emissions projects.
Funding is provided through a cooperative partnership between the
public and private sectors. Current and proposed contributors are
shown in Figures 3 and 4. The study is directed by the same Policy
Committee that managed the highly successful San Joaquin Valley ozone
study. The San Joaquin Valley ozone study was a landmark example of
cooperative environmental management. he proven methods and teamwork
established in the ozone study will provide a solid foundation for
the PMi8 program.

Approximately Sll million has been pledged to date. An
additional $8.4 million is needed for FY 96-97. Table 2 illustrates
previous funding commitmentB and highlights FY 96-97 funding
requests. Table 3 depicts the overall funding strategy for the
study.

Products

The study is Intended to provide early products to support the
development of an effective attainment plan for Central California.
The Information developed in the study will allow apportionment of

high PMio concentrations to contributing sources, thereby avoiding
burdens on industry from unnecessary or ineffective control
requirements. Implementation of the controls plans that result from
study information will result In significant improvements in the
health and well-being of the critizens of central California.
Moreover, the methods and tools for monitoring, emission estimation,
and modeling that are developed in the study can be used throughout
the nation. The otudy will also provide valiiahlp Infnrmation on
PMi . ;. to support new planning requirements that could result from
EPA's potential PMia standard revision.

41-532 97-5
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Table 1

CALIFORNIA REGIONAL
PMlo Am QUALITY STUDY

ON-GOING PROJECTS

PLANNING

Development of Protocols for Emissions, Field Monitoring, Data Analysis

aud Modeling

TECHPaCAL SUPPORT STUDIES

Determining Diurnal Variations and Optimal Averaging Times for PMio
Sanipies and Representativeness of Sampling and Spatial Scales of Source

Influences During the 1995 Integrated Monitonng Study

CharftCtcrizing Micromeieorologlcal Phcnyiucua Dtains th« 199^

Integrated Monitoring; Study

225.000

S 1,379,000

314,000

CharactCrizaHonof Silrface and Aloft Data for Winds and Temperature

Duriiig the 1995 integ)rated Monitoring Study

Investigating; the ;Dynamics and Chemistry ofFog Formation and

Dissipation (In Support of Planning a Winter-like Field Program) During

the 1995 LatCgrawd MJoniloring Study

Idendiytng R^ire ^arthj Isotopes and Single Particles in Dust as an Aid In

Discrirninating Between, the Contributions of F\jgitive Dust

FeasibiUty ofUsing RAre Earth Isotope and Organic Tracers for Tracking

the Fate of Primewy arri Secondary Aerosols from Combustion Sources

Dcwdopmcat of a Mctjiodologj' for Estimating Emissions ofNOx and
Ammonia from Soils

Evaluation of Methods for Determining Ainmoala Emissions from Selected

Sources in the Sdn Joaquin Valley
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Table 1 Continued

CALIFORNIA REGIONAL
PMio AIR QUALITY STUDY

ON-GOING PROJECTS

MOJOEUNC

PMio Modding; EvaKiatJon, Modification, and ImprovoncDt of Existmg

Approaches, and' Recommendation and Demonstration of a Modeling

System for Appl^ation in SIPs

DATA ANALYSIS

Analysis o£ Existing Daia for Technical Support Studies nnd to Aid Project

Planning

EMISSIONS

Improvements to ihc Emissdons Modeling System

Development of Day Specific Emissions During the 1995 Integrated

Monitoring Study

DEMONSTRATION STUDIES

Control Method Demwatraiion Study: Almond, Fig, Walnut, aivd Cotton

Harvesting

Control Method Pemtfttstration Study: Stabilization ofUnpavod

Asricultural Roads

Control Method Dan*nstration Study: Stabilization of Unpaved Public

Roads

Control Method pcmonstratlon Study: Stabilization of Unpaved Shoulders

ofPayed Roads

Control Method Pemonstiation Study: Dairies, Feedlots, Poultry, and Dry

Cereal Grains

$ $200,000

380,000

}

}

349,000

125,000

509,000

402,000

414.000
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Table 2

CALIFORNIA REGIONAL
PMio AIR QUALITY STUDY

SUMMARY OF CURRENT FUNDING NEEDS

FEDEItAL <50VERNMENT

U.S. DepartineiU of Agricullwrc

Environmentai Protection Agency

Department <vf Defence

OtJicr Federal

TOTAL

PRIVATE I^mUSTRY

AJ] Industry Sources

To Support FModraisiiig (in-kind)

TOTAL

Sl.713,000

$4,000,000

$380,000

S(i,093,00O

STATE'GOVERKMENT
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table 3

CALIFORNIA REGIONAL
PMiO AIR QUALITY STUDY

COMPREHENSIVE FUNDING STRATEGY

TOTAL CORE PROGRAM COST
$24 MILLION

FEDERAL GOVERNMETTT
EPA
USDA
DOD
OTHER FEDERAL

$2,400,000 $600,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $400,000 $.\400,000

$449,000 $414,00(1 $400,000 $417,000 $290,000 Sl.970,000

$130,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $880,000

$700 000 $700 000 $1 395 000

i..J<—-fiil — -«.—=t...«-
^^^-Jl

STATE GOVERNMENT
ARB $1,000,000 51,000.000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $5,00C000,000

ILOCAL Government
SJVUA?CD
OTHER LOCAL

$525,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 Sl.000.000 $3,523,000

luSPA SPECIAL AGRICULTURAL OPROJECTS $450,000 $1,490.000 $1,490.000 $3,430,000
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Mr. McI^^^OSH. I appreciate you coming forward on that. I heard
from several people earlier today about the problems of the PM 10
and it sounds to me like they are engaged in the study, but they
want to get their regulations in place before it is there so they do
not have to face the facts. We saw a history of that in the Clean
Air Act where they ignored the major study that said we do not
really have as much of a problem with acid rain as we thought,
better pass the acid rain title before that study comes out so that

we can go ahead and have the regulations in place. So I appreciate
you bringing that forward to us.

I would be also interested, and may have the staff contact you
afterwards, to find out more on some of those examples you pointed
to, particularly the one about corking the cows. [Laughter.]
Sometimes you wonder whether these regulatory agencies want

to defy the laws of nature in what they come up with. So we will

be talking with you about that and I appreciate you coming for-

ward on that testimony.
One thing is, have you heard any indication from the agencies

of what they plan to do when the study is finalized? Have they
made any commitments on how they would use it in their regu-

latory process?
Mr. CUNHA. Yes, their answer to me 2 weeks ago was we will use

the old science and calculations and shut down the farming. They
will literally shut down our farming in February. I mean that is

what will happen if we have to do it.

Mr. McIntosh. Even if the new studies are available?

Mr. CUNHA. The new studies are in the process of coming out,

we have 12 crops under research work. As those new crops come
out with the control measures, if in fact they are PM 10, then we
can take away those that are already on the book. Well, as you
stated at the very beginning today, trust me, government is here,

I am big government, I am here to help you, I am EPA, I am here

to help you.
Well, there is not to my sense in the last 6 years that EPA has

ever removed an old regulation with new science. The bureaucracy

of the process takes forever. So we are fighting that. Yes, our air

district is here today and they have mandates against them, but

the agriculture industry is not going to cave in to this one, we are

not going to shut down our farms because of science that is so bad.

But they want us to use the old science so that they can have a

regulation, and then as the new science continues along—^we are to

be done with the model in 1999.

Mr. McIntosh. OK. So that is the timeframe for it. Gary and I

will talk about what might be done on that.

Mr. CONDIT. If I understand this correctly, EPA ignored the first

or second study, or both?
Mr. CUNHA. Well, you know, which is great, Gary, the 1992 study

that we get the 350,000 that you and Rick Leeman got

Mr. CONDIT. Right.

Mr. CUNHA [continuing]. They sort of do not look at that as a

good study, but yet it was the founding study that created the

whole 23 million because we saw something of 7 million of that

being ag. They are saying that your science is not coming out fast

enough for the whole study, but for agriculture we have to work
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on a year because we are looking at all the activities. They are say-
ing well your science is not coming fast enough, we have got a
mandate and I am sorry. That is what they said 2 weeks ago and
when—I mean I am sitting there very nicely and calmly about this

whole thing as I am going to tell all my farmers, you know, they
have got to put a tank on the back of a disk. And the air district

did agree though, the overhead that they put up there, these new
crops that they picked out of a book—out of a book. They did not
go to the farmers and ask them if a lettuce crop creates PM 10.

And if any of you have done grain farming, they showed that we
farm grain, cereal crops, seven times, we go over the same piece

of ground seven times. That is a low-value crop, we do it once. We
cultivate and plant at the same time. And how they calculate this?

You till, that creates dust, you calculate the number of acres and
now you have got something called PM 10 out of control.

Mr. CONDIT. So does that instigate a second study, is that
what
Mr. CUNHA. The second study is on, including those crops. Those

studies will be on board for the dairies, the feed lots and the cotton.

The almonds are ready now, starting to release data. Now we are
going into the control measures, so in 1996 we will be looking at

control measures for some of the almond operations. If in fact there
are cotton problems or if in fact there are walnut problems, do you
follow me? We do not know what the results are totally yet, we are
getting them now. We are now starting to develop the control

measures, but that is going to take a year to see if we can use
these control measures and will they reduce it.

For your information, we are tied in with Sandia Labs, with that
operation, we are using military research to help some of our ac-

tivities.

Mr. McIntosh. But their basic statement at this point is where
the new studies come on line, we will use them, but where there
is no new study by next year, we intend to use the older studies,

and not even the most recent one because
Mr. CuNHA. You are exactly right.

Mr. McIntosh. That is something we can figure out. Thank you
for bringing that forward, we will take some steps on that.

Ms. Richardson, I wanted to ask you about your Laotian farmer.
Did he ever indicate to you, or anyone in his family, that he felt

particularly badly treated because of his heritage or his national
origin?

Ms. Richardson. There is some of that feeling, but I have as-

sured him that these agencies are equally arbitrary and outrageous
with native-bom citizens. [Laughter.]
Mr. McIntosh. They go after everyone with equal injustice.

Ms. Richardson. But he has an elderly father who does not
speak the language well and this man is terrified. That is why this

member will not come forward with his name right now. But I un-
derstand you have concerns about the bona fides of the story, and
I can give you the name and number of his consultant, who has
been trying to help him through this process.

Mr. McIntosh. I appreciate that. I also understand the reluc-

tance. And by the way, let me state for the record, the standing
policy of our committee is to open an investigation whenever we
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hear that an agency takes a retahation against somebody who has
participated in one of our hearings and provided information. So
please, through Gary, let us know about that and we have in fact

opened a couple of those studies where we have gotten indications

that perhaps by coming forward they have become subject to even
greater harassment from the agency.
Ms. Richardson. In fact, we do have concerns about one such

case. Fred and Nancy Cline, over in Sonoma County, testified last

year on their wetlands problems with the Corps of Engineers and
after that point, the Corps of Engineers, which had never been real

friendly with them, decided that they would in fact stop negotiating

and file a complaint against them and that complaint has now been
filed. Now there is only circumstantial evidence to show that it was
a retaliatory action, but the feeling of the Clines is that they are

being retaliated against. And because of that fear, they had not

gone public for several years while they tried to work through the

process.

Mr. McIntosh. Let us know about the details of that, that would
be helpful.

Thank you all. I have no further questions. Gary, do you
have
Mr. CONDIT. I might ask Roger and Carolyn both, I think that

both Dave and I, both Democrats and Republicans, forward-looking

Democrats and Republicans, agree that the key to resolving many
of the problems that we face is for us to have a strong policy of eco-

nomic development. And I guess I would just ask Roger and Caro-

lyn both how we could achieve the goal of developing a strong eco-

nomic development policy and at the same time balancing the envi-

ronmental concerns that I know some of us have. So have you got

any thoughts in those areas, either one of you?
Ms. Richardson. I think we have tremendous innovative ability

at the local level. Agriculture in the State is space age, we are way
ahead of the rest of the world and way ahead of the rest of the

country. We can solve problems if we are given clear problems
backed up by scientific evidence and given some leeway to come up
with our own solutions. And that is the core of our proposed ESA
exemption, general permit for routine agricultural activities. We
say give us the ability, we will make the commitment to come up
with voluntary management practices that minimize, mitigate and
avoid impacts to the extent possible. Understanding that we are

here to produce food and fiber. Habitat is an incidental benefit that

we can maximize, but we are here to produce food and fiber and
when there are 60 million people in this State, as there will be by
the low level projection in the next 50 years, we are going to need

that food and fiber land.

Mr. CONDIT. Roger.

Mr. Wood. I guess I would answer this in another area too. I

know you talked about development and we are always trying to

grow and everywhere you turn it is very difficult to grow here in

California. And I think the real issue is that the problem with reg-

ulations is it is real easy to add regulations, because they always

have a do-good goal about them. We talked about the Delaney

Clause at lunch today. It was there, we do not want cancer in our

food and all that sort of thing.
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But yet when science says we can have a small residue of a
chemical and not have cancer, any poor Congressman or elected

person that goes out and votes to lighten up the rules or to make
them comply with sound science but in effect you get painted up
as lightening up the rules, all of a sudden you are an enemy of the
environment, you are an enemy of the people, especially the people
that do not have the slightest idea what pesticides are or how we
use them. And I see that as a terrible challenge for us in the fu-

ture, how to exist with that when it is so easy to put a regulation
on because you always feel good when you are saving everybody,
and it is so hard to try and make it comply with science because
sound science is really boring and does not grab any sound bites

or anything and all it does is get your opponent out there saying
well you are in favor of poisoning all our babies. Boy, that is a
tough one to get off your back when you are trying to run for re-

election.

Mr. McIntosh. Yes. And one of the things that is very hard to

show, and in part because it is incremental, is what are the costs

of the alternatives. If you cannot use a particular pesticide and as
a result you have either less safe or more expensive food because
either you cannot use any substitute pesticide or the one you use
is more expensive, then people are not going to be able to afford

the product, they will eat less healthy diets and the consequences
there are very important, but not as immediately apparent or scary
to people as the threat of something that someone on television

tells you might cause cancer, even though the scientists say it is

perfectly safe in low levels.

So it is a very difficult, emotion-laden issue that we have to con-

tinually work against. I guess I end up concluding that if we edu-
cate people and continue to try to do that over and over again, al-

though it may seem difficult and it might seem like you are butting
your head up against the wall, that it is worth trying to continue
to get that word out and educate people.

I had one real quick question for you, Mr. Wood. What happens
if they plant the boysenberries, one row next to a row of black-

berries and just did that in their fields and did not spray the boy-
senberries but they happened to spray the blackberries and it got

over and took care of the boysenberries?
Mr. Wood. I do not know. I think you would still have a problem

because there is no tolerance allowed for the chemicals, that is one
of the problems we have with drift and things like that where a
neighbor sprays with one thing and it drifts over to his other
neighbor's produce and you have to be very careful with those sorts

of things. So you really could not do that.

I had one other comment
Mr. McIntosh. Obviously a silly solution, but it seems like the

government is making you go to that length.

Mr. Wood. I had one other comment on your education thing. I

think the challenge in education is that it is about 10 times easier

to scare somebody than it is to educate them. And it is a lot easier

to scare people about a whole lot of the issues we have talked about
today, species d5dng or mountain lions dying here in California or

fairy shrimp or salmon or owls or whatever, or the little kit fox.

And it is so much easier to scare people about all those things
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dying than it is to talk about that if you just keep doing this, food

costs are going to go up. Right now, agriculture is maybe its own
worst enemy, we produce so darn much that we hardly ever have
shortages. But one of these days things will finally happen that

way. I guess the only thing that I find consoling is that if the law
is applied uniformly over the United States, California with its

great environmental advantages that we have with our soil and our
water and our climate, will probably be surviving even under the
worst of times, but a whole bunch of other people that are in less

productive areas because of the climate or whatever, are the ones
that are going to sufier first. And those of us that really can apply
high tech and last it out in the 21st century, we will still be
around. But the cost of food will certainly not be like it is now and
I do not think anyone ever appreciates the cost of food in the Amer-
ican diet versus the cost of food in Europe or other parts of the

world.

Ms. Richardson. An observation, that in the long-run we in ag-

riculture are on the winning side, but if we get to that point, we
will also be on the losing side. We will undoubtedly outlast this en-

vironmental extremism because what we do is vital to the human
environment. The last gnat catcher will fall off its perch and die

before the first mother starves in this country.

But what we would like to see is a better world for all of us.

Beating the environmental drum is a multi-million dollar business

light now. We have heavy investment out there in raising environ-

mental extremist fears. We have to overcome that so that we can
work toward solutions.

Mr. CUNHA. One last comment, in the 1996 farm bill, the 1997

farm bill that just went to the President I believe, in there there

is an advisory task force now that will, under USDA, under the

Natural Resource Conservation, will head up to look at all air qual-

ity regulation by EPA or other agencies and have the ability then
to evaluate and respond to the Secretary directly, the USDA Sec-

retary, so that we will have a watchdog now. And that has been
signed into the—it is in the farm bill and we hope the President

does sign the farm bill. But that is now I think the one step that

us in the San Joaquin Valley, with Congressman Gary Condit's

help and his staff and Congressman Dooley and Richard Pombo, we
were able to get that through. And I want to thank those three

gentlemen very much for their efforts on that. I think that is the

right step, at least being able to watch things before they get out

of hand.
Mr. MclNTOSH. Thank you all very much for coming, I appreciate

your testimony. This has been enormously helpful to us.

We have one more panel, actually it is a panel of one, a govern-

ment official. Ms. Pat Paul has agreed to come and testify about

the influence of government regulations on local government in her

experience as the head of the Board of Supervisors. Thank you for

coming. Let me swear you in real quickly.

[Witness sworn.]

Mr. MclNTOSH. Thank you very much.
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STATEMENT OF PAT PAUL, CHAIR, STANISLAUS COUNTY
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Ms. Paul. Thank you very much for this opportunity. I brought
some support people with me in case you ask a technical question.

I have Jeff Jue, head of our Welfare Department, with me today,

and a caseworker, Jackie Davis.

Mr. McIntosh. Pat, excuse me just 1 second. What was the

name again? Mr. Roland Brook, if you are here, your work was
calling and said they needed you to call immediately.

Sorry.

Ms. Paul. That is all right. I wanted to introduce Jeff Jue, head
of our Welfare Department, and one of the casework management
workers, Jackie Davis and then the head of our Mental Health De-
partment, Dr. Larry Poaster, in case you have a technical question.

Thank you for this opportunity and I really appreciate you trav-

eling to Stanislaus County and I am so pleased that you have a

good working relationship with our Congressman, because as you
know, he comes from local government and he is an excellent

spokesperson for us.

Under the welfare, I gave you several situations and one says

welfare rules discourage work and then I gave you a series of ex-

amples.
Another area I mentioned was that welfare rules discourage mar-

riage. And I know all of us politicians always talk about family val-

ues and yet under some of the rules, marriage actually disadvan-

tages some families.

Another area I mentioned, that welfare quality control programs
do little to ensure correct grant amounts. We find that here we
have both State and Federal bureaucracies overlooking each other

and overlooking our programs.
Another area I mentioned was that welfare rules are inconsist-

ent, and it seems to us that we have an incredible number of very

complex, very conflicting rules and they seem to be ever-changing

rules, which burden Stanislaus County.
Another area I mentioned was that the Federal Gk)vernment

mandates certain child protective services but does not participate

in the cost of that. And Gary has certainly been a champion of un-

funded mandates. And this one for us is very high; in fact, 60 per-

cent of our cost.

And finally, under the welfare area, I mention that the court re-

quires child welfare case management to regulate and have home
visits, even when the child has been placed in a permanent situa-

tion with the relatives. So to us, this is unnecessary and in fact

burdensome to us.

Under mental health, I had mentioned that Health Care Financ-

ing Administration discourages innovation at the local level and
then I gave some examples, such as the Institute for Mental Dis-

ease exclusion; the Boren amendment and waivers process and
then finally under this area, I had mentioned that public health re-

quires and places unfunded mandates on the local government and
does not require us to recover any costs. Sometimes the family is
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very wealthy or they have insurance and we are not allowed to re-
coup those costs.

So those are some of my examples and if you have any questions,
we will try to respond.
[The prepared statement of Ms. Paul follows:]
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TESTIMONY AT THE HOUSE GOVERNMENT REFORM AND OVERSIGHT
SUBCOMMmrEE ON NATIONAL ECONOMIC GROWTH, NATURAL

RESOURCES AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS HEARING

SUBJECT: Overburdensome and Costly Federal Regulations Impacting Local
Department of Health and Social Services.

SITUATION 1 • Welfare rules discouraoe work. An example is the TREATMENT
OF BENEFITS TO DISABLED AFOC FAMILY MEMBERS.

A parenl with a work history who becomes disabled is eligible to

SSA benefits. The disabled parent is included in the AFDC
budget and the SSA benefits ARE COUNTED in determining the

amount of the AFDC grant

A parent with NO Y/otk history who becomes disabled is eligible to

SSt benefits. The disabled parent is NOT included in the AFDC
budget and SSI benefits are NOT counted in determining the

AFDC grant.

The family whose disabled parent DOES NOT HAVE a worit history

is advantaged since SSI benefits are not counted in determining

the amount of the AFDC grant. This family receives a higher

AFDC grant than the family whose disabled parent DOES have a

work history.

SITUATION 2 - Welfare rules discourage marriaoe. An example are the MAN IN

THE HOUSE RULES.

If a woman is married and living with the man who is the father of

her children, his income counts against her welfare benefits.

If, on ttie other hand, the woman lives with a man who is not her

husband or the father of h>er children, his income does not count at

all agair>st her welfare benefits.

If she marries the man, he is treated as a (step) father, and she

loses all of her benefits. If she Just lives with the man. she keeps

all of her benefits.

vun. <«M a.'»«k(«uMU(<un>ou'«uTt»«itiCTBB«o«i<nn(nMaKMT
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SITUATION 3 . Wetfare Qualitv oontrot proofams do tittle to ensure cprrert grant

amounts. Each level of government has a stake In issuing cx>nect

grant amounts. Yet, the feds operate large review programs In all

states, trying to give a specific accuracy rating to each one. The
state Is therefor required to watch the counties, and counties are

required to run qualify cxintrol programs to defend against federal

sanctioru.

Federal sanctions have never been applied. Huge bureaucrades
spend millions of dollars measuring questionable criteria and
defending against imaginary sanctions. Money could be much
better spent on programs to ensure greater accuracy.

SITUATION 4 - Wetfare rules are inconsistent between various oroorams. AFOC,
Food Stamps and Medi*Cal eadi determine naediness in different

ways.

Three separate application forms are needed for these programs,

asking many of the same questions. Because programs are run by
different federal and state agencies, almost rra sharing of forms is

allowed.

A source of income may be considered in one program, but not

another. Net Income from earnings is figured differently in each.

Property values are also calculated in different ways. The same
vehicle will t>e given a different net worth, or may even be
exempted, from one program to the other.

Each program also includes or excludes different household

members in their various assistance units. The same individual

may be included in the household Food Stamp case, have their

own cash assistance case, and not be eligible for Medi-Cal at all.

The US Department of Agriculture, which administers the Food

Stamp program has been talking of slmplificaUon for years. Yet,

they have a simple requirement for any changes; they must not

cost any more money, and they cannot disadvantage any client.

In other words, change is desirable, but Just not possible.
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SITUATION 6 • The Federal Government mandates certain child protective

services but does not participate in the cost of every child we
serve.

Current regulations only allow states and counties to claim federal

dollars for children who meet theAFDC eligibility criteria. The
mandate at the federal level Is to serve all children regardless of

AFDC eligibility. Therefore, this constitutes an unfijnded mandate.

This should apply particularly in the cost of placement for all

children in foster care.

SITUATION 6 • Current fedefal law requires Child Welfare case manaoement
SQrylces including re9ular home visits and six month court reviews

in order to meet federal requirements for funding. Social Services

should be able to eliminate child protective sodal worker and court

involvement in all cases where a child is in a long term foster

placement vrith a relative and still have the federal govenvnent

partidpate In the foster care payment to that relative. This

requirement is intrusive to family life and costly in terrrts of case

management and the court system.



133

TESTIMONY AT THE HOUSE GOVERNMENT REFORM AND OVERSIGHT
SUBCOMMITTEE ON NATIONAL ECONOMIC GROWTH. NATURAL RESOURCES
AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS HEARING

SUBJECT: Health Care Financing AdministraUon (HCFA) discourages Innovations.

SITUATION 1; Institute for Mental Disease Exclusion

Acute psy^iatric services not reimbursable under Medicaid if more
than 51% of patients in a fiadiity are mentally ill.

Serves Federal interest of long term cam by reducing financial

exposure, BUT

Increases cost for total government for short term acute psychiatric

services by requiring afRJiafon v^ith general medical care facility

Discourages Innovation in programming

Programs driven by how revenue Is targeted rather than what
meets clients' needs

SITUATION 2: Boren Amendment does not allow local Managed Care Plans to

promote cost effectiveness by relying on the market place and/or

competition

Regulations require reimbursement of "reasonable costs* as

defined in local environment

SITUATION 3: Process to gain HCFA waivers are archaic and slow

Difllcuity in obtaining waivers, red tape, and bureaucracy make
innovations difficult to obtain. This maintains the status quo.
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TESTIMONY AT THE HOUSE GOVERNMENT REFORM AND OVERSIGHT
SUBCOMMITTEE ON NATIONAL ECONOMIC GROWTH, NATURAL RESOURCES
AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS HEARING

SUBJECT: Public taw and regulations place unfunded mandates on local government

while eliminating efforts to appropnateiy recover co&ts

SITUATION 1

:

Public law requires local governments to provide appropriate health

and mental health »enrioes to meet the unique needs of children in

order to ensure appropriate public education.

Such health and mental health services are the financial

responsibility of local government

There is no means test so services must be provided foes

regardless of parents' economic status or the presence of

ir\8uranc8 wtuch would pay for services.
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Mr. McIntosh. Great. Thank you very much for coming today
and I want to commend you and the staff for the testimony. It is

one of the most succinct, but clear examples of how regulations im-
pact us in those areas; particularly, as you mentioned, the family
values. We talk about that a lot when it comes to welfare reform,
but nobody quite explains how it works. And you did it very well
and in about three sentences. So I plan to borrow from that, if I

may, from now on when I am talking to folks about it because I

think it is a critical problems.
Let me ask you, in your experience here with the Board, have

there been any examples where you have had to make decisions on
how to spend local resources that were unwise or at least not fit-

ting into the priorities that you think the citizens would want you
to have, because of a Federal mandate or a Federal regulation that
was particularly disturbing to you in your time there?
Ms. Paul. I think that is true because at times it does not reflect

maybe the values of our community. One actually that comes to

mind immediately was a State one where we were to pay pregnant
teen-agers to stay in school. Which, you know, is fine, I am glad
they stay in school, but the other part was at the end after they
had so many grades, we were to give them a certain amount of

money. And I thought, they have probably made some poor deci-

sions in their life already. To give them a cash allotment, I

thought, no, they might go out and buy a leather skirt. Why do we
not instead do some education but maybe money toward the chil-

dren or toward books, not toward the cash which I thought was ab-

surd. But maybe one of the people here has a comment.
Mr. McIntosh. Yes, please share with us an3rthing that you have

seen.

Mr. JUE. Just a very recent act which we find quite burdensome
is in the category of unfunded public mandates, is the National
Voter Registration Act, which requires a different level of activity

for everyone walking into our offices, which requires an exchange
of paper and time consumed for which there is no Federal com-
pensation reimbursement. That is just a very recent issue we have
been struggling with.

Mr. McIntosh. Well, I thank you very much, I appreciate this.

Gary, did you have any questions or comments?
Mr. CONDIT. No, I just might get maybe a general feeling of what

is happening with welfare reform. We have some very high-pow-
ered people sitting here at the table that I am well aware of their

experience over the years. And let me also give kudos to the chair-

man of the Board, Pat Paul, for her work on behalf of the county
and her service to the county, she does a great job for Stanislaus

County and I am delighted that you are here today, Pat, and that

you brought some experts with you.

I think you all have some idea of what we are trying to do in

Congress in terms of entitlement reform, in terms of this so-called

block grant back to the States, which will give decisionmaking, the

theory is, closer to the people at home, so they can make decisions

that hopefully are better.

I guess basically what I would like to get, maybe Pat or Jeff or

Larry, whoever, a response just in theory, do you think that works?
Does that help us with this burdensome regulations or mandates
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or what-have-you? My suspicions are a little bit that, you know, as
much as we can send back to the States, I believe in that, but I

also think there may be some problems for counties if this is not

—

if there is not a good relationship or a good understanding with the
State. So I would maybe like to get your reaction to that.

Ms. Paul. From the political point of view, if you were at the
State, as you always did battle for us, I think we would be in better
shape, but sometimes common sense does not rule.

We really would like to have local control, but the fear is that
we do not have the money that goes with that. And maybe Dr.
Poaster or Jeff would like to say something.

Dr. Poaster. Just briefly, Congressman Condit. My primary area
of interest is in the Medicaid arena and the Medicaid reform. We
have some tremendous opportunities, all of which could solve sev-

eral of the scenarios that Supervisor Paul submitted to you today.

I think that you are absolutely right in the sense that it is a very
delicate issue. Much of the block granting that has been talked
about in terms of Medicaid reform, given the current situation in

California, and for example the per capita spending that goes to

California as opposed to elsewhere in the country, and even more
specifically the number of MediCal beneficiaries that reside in the
San Joaquin Valley. Simply coming up with some quick and dirty

capitation given to the States through a block grant, whatever,
really could be harmful in terms of people who need health care
services in this Valley.

So I think that what ultimately needs to happen is there needs
to be some compromises in a variety of the areas that are being
talked about right now. But clearly we have good ideas and, you
know, as the safety net providers, as the providers of health care,

I believe we know how we can do things that would be ipore cost-

effective and that would provide a quality of service that would
benefit the beneficiaries but which because of the absolutely
unyielding presence of HCFA and their ability to look at innovation
and do things differently, the promise of a lot of those changes is

simply never realized.

So if nothing else is done, I think the concept of making it pos-

sible to have good ideas happen would be extremely beneficial at
the local level.

Mr. Condit. So the concept of getting it back to local government
as close as you can, is a good one as long as you just do not make
it that simple. I mean there are some things that you need to do
to ensure counties do not end up being the lowest level of the food
chain.

Dr. Poaster. Absolutely.
Mr. JUE. If I might, I would like to first reinforce everything that

Dr. Poaster said and thank you very much. Congressman Condit,
for asking that question. I think we at the local level do have a lot

of concerns.
In principle, the block grants and transferring responsibility, au-

thority and policymaking to the lowest level possible makes sense.

I think the problem will be, as we are testifying before you right

now, once you pass the policy, the regulations and the regulatory
machinery starts to unfold, and that is the awesome fear that we
have in terms of how a lot of policies get interpreted into regulation
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and at this point, whatever policy gets passed should be high-
lighted or prefaced with the demand for streamlining, simplifica-
tion and consolidation, because that is essentially what we are ask-
ing for so that we have more creativity at the local level.

The last thing is in the implementation, what is not being dis-

cussed is the impact at the local level as some of these reforms un-
fold and people are kicked off of entitlements and lose access to
services. At this point, it is the county safety net that will have the
responsibility for backfilling or providing whatever essential serv-
ices might be required, with little or no Federal or State support.
I think that is the most ominous fear at the county level.

Mr. McIntosh. Let me mention, I think it will be important as
we move the policy responsibility down to lower levels of govern-
ment that we get rid of the bureaucracy in Washington. I mean,
because bureaucracy abhors a policy vacuum and if they do not
have anything to do and they are still there, they will start
layering back all of the requirements and yet the financial respon-
sibility would have been shifted down to you without the ability to

make the decisions to make that work. So I think that has got to

be a key measure of whether one of these block grant proposals is

a good idea or not.

We could—at least I believe we could design good policy in Wash-
ington for a lot of these. The federalism notion says rather than me
and Gary and the rest of us competing with other people for our
vision of what is good, let us let each State do it because you could
adjust to local circumstances. But the problem is if you end up
doing that and keeping the Federal layer of bureaucracy, then you
have got the worst of all worlds at that point.

Ms. Paul. You do understand. Thank you.
Mr. McIntosh. Thank you, I appreciate it. We appreciate you

coming.
We are going to now move to the phase, the open mic phase of

the hearing. And let me invite everyone who would like to partici-

pate to come forward and just stand before the mic.
And I was just about to actually thank you, Joyce, for providing

these apricots. Gary had mentioned the apricot lady, but he did not
introduce me to you. So thank you.
Mr. CONDIT. She stepped out of the room.
Voice. I see you are eating on our little snack.
Mr. McIntosh. I like them.
Voice. They advertised in the New York Times a couple of weeks

ago, the February 14 issue, and they had a 1,000 calls a day for

5 days after the ad.

Mr. McIntosh. That is great. I will confess to you I would have
eaten more of the Jordan almonds except that I gave—the sweet
almonds, except I gave up sweets for Lent, so I have to wait until

after Easter for that.

Voice. You can have prunes.
Mr. McIntosh. That is right. [Laughter.]

Voice. Or blueberries.

Mr. McIntosh. Oh, those are not sweet?
Voice. No.
Mr. McIntosh. OK, then I will take those.

Voice. You can have pears.
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Mr. McIntosh. I was nibbling on those. Thank you.
Mr. CONDIT. Mr. Chairman, I know you are going to take some

testimony from the audience, but may I ask to include officially a
couple of documents for the record? The study that was men-
tioned—am I allowed to

Mr. McIntosh. Certainly.
Mr. CONDIT. It is a pretty thick study, that Mr. Nelson men-

tioned, 93640 at Risk, the study that you made reference to. And
I have a letter from the California League of Food Processors that
I would like to place in the record and testimony from Central Val-
ley—the CVPIA letter. I would like to submit that for the record.

And then I have an additional statement if I may, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. McIntosh. Yes, all of those will become part of the record

for this hearing.
Sir, if you could go ahead and state your name and position for

the record, then welcome to this hearing.
[Note.—The report entitled, "Farmers, Workers and Townspeople

in an Era of Water Uncertainty," can be found in subcommittee
files.]

[The information referred to follows:]
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April 1. 1396

Via Hand Delivery

Congressman Gary Condit

2444 Rayburri House Office Building

Waslnington, DC 20515

Public Hearing of the House Gcvernment Reform and

Oversight Subcommittee on National Efonoinic Grov/th

Modesto, California

Dear Congressman Condit:

The California League of FoC'd Processors appreciates the opportunity to note several concerns

related to the impact of the Federal Regulatory System on California's food processing industry.

1. 'J.S, EPA emission monitoring requirements on boilers installed since 1984

(CFR 50.49(b)(c) and 48(g)).

These requirements are extremely costly. They simply a.-e not necessary since Cali'omia

requirements exceed the Federal ones.

2. Title V Permits for .Air Quality.

These duplicate Cslifomia's. A wasie of resources.

3 Delaney Reform.

The Delaney Clause of the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act has been the subject of

congressional attention.

Resolution is needed and reasonable risk assessment/ccst benefit ar^aiysis should be

allowed to proceed.

This issue also touches upon California's Safe Drinking Wate: Act (Prop 65) and the lack of

uniforniity between the federal and state governments of risk assessment/management.

CLFP would be pleased to provide additional and detailed information if such is desired.

Very truly yours, /I

cc: Repr David Mcintosh, Subcommittee Chairman
EDY mm/ed/c«odr!l ooc

660 "J" Street. Suite 290 Sacnimemo, CA 95814 (916) 444-9260 FAX (916) 444-2746
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United States House ofRepresentatives

Committee on Govenmient Reform and Oversight

Subcommittee on National Economic Growth,

Natural Resources and Regulatory Affiairs

The Honorable David McMosh, Chairman

Statement ofthe Central Valley Project Water Association

1 April 1996

Modesto, California

Backgroujod

The federal Central Valley Project (CVP) serves agricultural, municqjal and industrial water

customers from Redding to Bakers6eld. As such, the Project and its contractors have a

responsibility to provide reliable and affordable water service to over 20,000 farms on three

million acres of the nation's most productive farmland, and to two million households and

industrial water users. Meeting these req)onsibilities is the most critical charge to the CVPs
contractor/customers.

However, in addition to water sendee and flood control, the CVP (as a multi-purpose utility) is

obligated to meet numerous federal environmental regulations emanating from the Central Valley

Project In5)rovement Act (CVPIA), the federal Endangered Species Act (ESA), and the 1994

Bay/Delta Accord (Accord) which sets water quality standards under federal and state "Clean

Water Act" mandates for the San Francisco Bay/Sacramento-San Joaquin River Delta.

By themselves, each of these three statutes places a heavy burden on the CVPs ability to meet its

obhgations to its customers to provide a cost-efficient and reliable source ofwater. Together and

without studied, reasonable and coordinated execution, these laws have proven their potential to

bring a devastating "legislative drought" to the Sacramento and San Joaquin Valleys — California's

heartland and key part of the nation's foodbasket. To illustrate the effects of significant and

sustained water shortage to agriculture-based rural economies, I have attached a California

Institute for Rural Studies report, 93640 at Risk: Farmers, Workers and Tawmpeople in an Era

of Water Uncertainty.

Questions ofPohcy and Process

At present, CVP agricultural customers in the San Joaquin VaUey are facing a 20% supply

shortage due to ESA, CVPIA and Bay/Delta Accord obligations. This is ocouring despite 1996

bemg the second of two of the wettest years in a decade, and with the Shasta reservoir projected

to carry more than half of its total capacity over into the next water year. To wit, ittplementation

of environmental regulations is causing federal agency regulators and decisionmakers to bold back

from deliveries a significant portion ofthe CVP system's water. A question yet unanswered, and I

believe the one being asked by this Subcommittee, is, "can these federal regulations be

implemented without, or with less o^ an adverse in:5)act ou the regulated community?"
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Unfortunately, the adverse inqjact of these federa) actions has occurred despite the obvious social

and economic costs of water shortages. Iti feet, there is little or no justification ofiFered by the

regulatory agencies by way of cost/benefit studies that indicates any attempt to consider these

costs in the decisionmaking process. (Certainly, the "science" behind these decisions is tbe focus

of sigoificant debate as well).

Significantly, this key information is lacking despite President Clinton's Executive Orders 12866

and 12875 directing federal agencies to undertake exactly this type of analysis and to broaden the

scope of the decisionmaking process to include consultation with affected local governments

before engaging in sipificant regulatory action, and repeated requests by affected parties that this

type of analysis be undertaken.

While some federal actions such as those directed by the ESA fall beyond the legal purview of

these Executive Orders, there is no reason w^y the spirit of these "Regulatory Reinvention

hiitiatives" cannot be adhered to hi even these cases. Would it not be beneficial to decisionmakers

to know the potential costs of their proposed regulatory mandates? Woiild it not be practical to

have the input and participation of local governments in developing the most effective and

efficient means of executing a particular federal action?

TTiere are of course, other federal regulations having an adverse impact on California's Central

Valley that do not have the ESA's statutorily defined narrow focus and scope ofimpact analysis.

The 1994 Bay/Delta Accord

In many ways, the Bay/Delta Accord is a positive cxan^Ie of such interaction between federal

(and state) agencies, affected local governments and public stakeholders. While not perfect and

far firom conqjlete in its implementation, the Accord and the resulting CALFED (state and federal

agency officials working together to coordinate implementation of state and federal legal

obligations) may be pointing the way towards a more balanced and studied approach to

regulation. Unfortunately, recent federal agency actions under the CVPIA to fiirther reallocate

water fi-om human to environmental uses have served to contradict the principles of the Accord

and place the historic agreement and its fimdamental bases in jeopardy.

Please see the attached letters from our Association to the USBR and U.S. Fish and Wildlife

Service in this regard.

The CVPIA

In contrast to the manner in which agreement was reached on the Accord and the princqjles under

which h is supposed to operate, is the federal agency unplementation ofthe CVPIA. Without the

benefit of legislative report language or statutory interpretation through a formal rulemaking

process, the CVPIA is being in^lemented through a mixture of draft "interim guideUnes" and

"poUcy directives". Our Association, its individual members, and other affected parties have

conxmented extensively throughout the ongoing implementation process of the last three and one-

half years with regard to both the technical and poUcy aspects of particular CVPIA provisions,

and have repeatedly indicated the need for a balanced approach that includes assessing and
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li and eooiioinic issues. Ibis input however, all too ofteo does not appear to be

l^the&deral agonoies' decisionmaking process.

^A^^ '^fOBUjle, the legislative history leading to the CVPIA water conservation provisions

^^^''^**'*cate8 Congress' intent that: 1) The Secretary be required to establish criteria and

'^^^^**ftJsnis for evaluating contractors' water conservation plans withjti a tijooe certain; 2) The
^^"^**<*ty be required to conduct such evaluation; and, 3) The Secretary be authorized to assist

^^**'^^*ny in the it[q>lementation ofconservation programs and measures.

yv!^^*"' instead of focusing on defining the Department of the Interior's responsibilities and

«.?v*^*^<*''s to seek and evaluate potential increases in efficiency and to assist in in5)lementation

/^^ applicable as the law requires, the USER water conservation policy and program makes an
'^wcrt assunqrtion that CVP contractors waste water and shifts a heavy burden upon contractors

^fO^'e, for all intents and purposes, that they are not wastmg water.

4. . ^ encoiuraging and assisting to inaease water management efficiency (many CVP water
«t»cts have demonstrated use efficiencies in excess of theoretical optimums), USBR/CVPIA

jkvJ^*' conservation policies and programs hinder progress in water management by forcing water
>Wlcts and contractors to expand significant amounts of time and financial resoturces towards
^^^yii^g the USBR's negative assumptions about CVP contractor water management and

BR 8 "cookie-cutter", "one-size-fits-all" approach to water conservation planning.

* Wc the attached letterfrom consulting engineer Dennis Keller to the USSR with regai-d

r^*t>ing "Garamendi Process" ofseeking administrative solutions to CVPIA issues related

rIA water transfer provisions were touted to promote and increase opportunities

^l^*^
enhance water management efficiency. Again, however, the USER

IJI^thu regard have only hindered water transfer opportunities and practices.

I
of the CVPIA, the USBR has significantly disrupted the CVP water

I^OfWater management transfer/exchange/banking. These short-term,

Iwig been used by water district customers to take advantage of
lUMi to mitigate xmmet water demands. Prior to the CVPIA,

Wero accorq)Ushed within hows or days through open
" oJIloials. Since the CVPIA was enacted however, USBR

'•d such opportunities through executive fiat or has

^^^ "0 many months that the transfer opportunity has

* iVater District to the USBR with regard to a
r'^ffki to another.
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Mi°. Chainnan, these comments are intended to illustrate a few key examples of conflicts between

federal agency regulators and the regulated community that have occuired in since enactment of

the CVPIA m 1992. All too often, it is painiully obvious that these conflicts would be minimized

or would not occur at all, were it not for excesses of discretion by federal agency staff and

policymakers. Wliile we strongly support flexibility in the interpretation and implementation of

law to account for balancing of various needs and interests, we equally strongly believe that the

federal agencies have an obhgation to interpret and execute laws such as the CVPIA in a manner

that is demonstrably reasonable, eflBcient and justifiable. This, the agencies have yet to

accooqjlish.

Despite numerous attempts at finding "admmistrative" solutions to the many regulatory issues

adversely inqpacting the CVP community, there has been little progress or mitigation.

Consequently, we have taken a position in strong support of eflforts to amend the CVPIA through

legislation (HR2738) — "reforming" the CVPIA and establishing clearer and more workable

statutory parameters for the federal regulating agencies to follow.

We would like to thank the Committee for holding this hearing and providing the opportunity for

us to illumiaate a few of the many regulatory and iinplementation problems feced by the

customers ofthe federal Central Valley Project.
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STATEMENT OF E.D. YATES, SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT,
CALIFORNIA LEAGUE OF FOOD PROCESSORS

Mr. Yates. Thank you, Chairman Mcintosh, Congressman
Condit, I am Ed Yates with the CaHfornia League of Food Proc-
essors.

You just mentioned the material we put in. There is one part of
it I thought was worthy of noting. I know the hour is late, but the
Federal Government has imposed a requirement called Continuous
Emissions Monitoring on food processors' boilers that have been
put in since 1984. Now California's program has standards that are
three times more strict than the Feds', yet the Feds are requiring
these folks who only operate that boiler about 10 or 12 percent of
the time, to put on this continuous emissions monitoring equip-
ment to the tune of $100,000 to $150,000 per stack, to make sure
that they are in compliance with a Federal standard that is three
times more liberal than the State standard that they already have
to meet. We do not think that that is quite right and there ought
to be some ways that we can overcome that arbitrary, in my opin-
ion, requirement.
We have very strict and very good air regulatory programs in

California and all of the processors do all they can to be good citi-

zens and put in the control equipment needed.
And with that, I know time is late—we certainly would like your

help in solving this problem because it exists right now.
Mr. Condit. May I ask a question? You said the State of Califor-

nia exceeds the Federal standard?
Mr. Yates. It is three times more strict.

Mr. Condit. Happens in California a lot, does it not?
Mr. Yates. Yes. Thank you.
Mr. McIntosh. Maybe we can even get Henry on board for this

correction, Gary.
Mr. Yates. Thank you.

STATEMENT OF BOB STANFIELD, GENERAL MANAGER AND
CHIEF ENGINEER, MADERA IRRIGATION DISTRICT

Mr. Stanfield. Thank you. Congressman Mcintosh and Condit,
I am Bob Stanfield, the general manager and chief engineer for the
Madera Irrigation District.

Our District is located about 50 miles south of here and encom-
passes about 130,000 acres predominantly of permanent crop plant-
ings. We had a commodity value last year of around $300 million
that came out of our district. Less than 5 percent of our cropping
patterns are of the so-called surplus commodity crops.

I would like to share with you, as others have this afternoon, an
experience we have just gone through and the need and why I am
here to encourage yoiir support of H.R. 2738, that is the CVPIA Re-
form Act.

The Deputy Secretary of Interior, Garamendi, has continued to

try to reassure us that there is no need for this reform legislation,

that the CVPIA itself will facilitate the concerns of the Federal con-
tractors.

Generally speaking, prior to the CVPIA, in a transfer of water,
historically we are able to do it in less than a week. We started
a transfer of project water out of Friant in October of last year.
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After almost 5 months, that transfer was never completed because
of the obstacles put up by U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. The cost

of not being able to complete that transfer from my district to a
groundwater deficient area near Bakersfield was $700,000 to my
district. Incidentally, about $200,000 was the cost to the U.S. cof-

fers.

Now, we are not quibbling with the fact that there was a need
for environmental legislation reform. Prior to 1992, an average
water year cost in our district was less than half a million dollars.

With the new legislation, new contracts, it is $6 million, 12-fold in-

crease. If you can maybe compare that to a bottle of Chevas Regal.

You go down to Luck/s and you buy it for $19, now you have got

to pay $240 for the same bottle. That gives you a comparison.
Another comparison would be in the transfers which Secretary

Garamendi has continued to reassure us will be rapidly taken care

of, when you compare 3 days to do a transfer before CVPIA and
almost 5 months ^ter CVPIA that is like the warp speed of an ele-

phant's gestation period.

Thank you very much for the opportunity to share this experi-

ence with you today.

Mr. McIntosh. I appreciate that. I had not heard of that legisla-

tion, so I appreciate you mentioning that.

Would anyone else like to testify today in the open mic period?

STATEMENT OF AL BRIZARD, FARMER
Mr. Brizard. Congressman Condit, my name is Al Brizard, I am

a small farmer on the west side over in Patterson.

I only have a comment to make, I guess it is a favorite horse that

I beat to death, but I think that almost all the testimony that you
heard today and that which we read about in the paper all the time

of all the horrors of some of these things, revolve around a system
which I call the best caste system in the world in this country, and
that is our bureaucracy. And that is where the problem is because

they are almost untouchable, as are castes in other countries.

And they are totally supported by our tax dollars and fees and
yet they are largely unregulated, they do all the regulating, and yet

they are unregulated.
There are several things I suppose that could be done, but one

of the things I think that the Congress needs to look at and our

own State legislature needs to look at is to make the funding for

all of these regulatory agencies come out of the general budget. Do
not have them support themselves on their own fees and assess-

ments and fines, make everything subject to the general budget.

And that is all that I really have. Just a comment. Thank you.

Mr. McIntosh. Thank you, I appreciate it.

The other idea that I have been thinking about is to make their

pay raises conditional upon a performance review from the people

they work with. If you had that kind of customer satisfaction meas-
ure that could go into it, I think you would have a much more re-

sponsive bureaucracy implementing a lot of these regulations.

I do not want to cut anybody off. Is there anybody else who want-

ed to say anything to us today?
[No response.]
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Mr. MclNTOSH. If not, I think we will bring this hearing to a
close. Let me say thank you again to all the people who testified,
thank you, Gary, for your great help and to your staff. They are
extremely competent and helpful to us in the way that we put to-
gether this hearing.
With that, this hearing of the Subcommittee on National Eco-

nomic Growth, Natural Resources, and Regulatory Affairs is now
adjourned.
[Whereupon, at 3:51 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned.]
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